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Chairman’s Statement
EFHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of Hong Kong
Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (“Hong Kong Education” or
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) for the year ended 30 June
2015 (“Year™).

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$208.44 million, representing a decrease by approximately
11.61% compared to the previous year. On the other hand,
the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$33.03 million as compared to a
loss of approximately HK$66.52 million in 2014. Such turnaround
was mainly attributable to the gain arising on change in fair
value of listed held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$56.19 million in the Year, and absence of realised loss on
the disposal of available-for-sale investment of approximately
HK$24.21 million and the reduction in the impairment losses of
available-for-sale investments by approximately HK$21.76 million
as compared to 2014.

In the past financial year, Hong Kong Education consistently put
effort in expanding its market share by merging and cooperating
with quality partners in Hong Kong and the People’'s Republic of
China (“PRC”) in order to enlarge the service scope and diversify
the service portfolio to cater for more learners’ needs.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Hong Kong Market — Consolidate the existing services

Competition remains intensive in the industry as more and more
tutoring centres enter the market to seize the cake. During the
Year, the Group had deployed more resources to maintain quality
services and brand image in order to consolidate our leading
position in the industry. Meanwhile, the Group continues the
vertical integration with strategic partners to expand the services
beyond primary and secondary tutoring segments. We believe the
strategic expansion decisions have broadened the income source of
the Group and capture the learning needs of wider age cohort.
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During the Year, the decrease in revenue from secondary
tutoring was partly offset by the increase in revenue of primary
tutoring segment (including franchising income) and the revenue
gained from re-launch of secondary day school. We devoted
in offering quality education services and continued to recruit
well-experienced tutors, thereby helping students achieve
outstanding performances in both public and school internal
examinations. With these noticeable achievements, enrolments as
well as revenue remain stable.

With respect to the uptrend momentum of early education services,
the Group has devoted extra attention and efforts to develop further
in this segment by forming a 50/50 joint venture company, Full
Profit Hong Kong Development Limited. During the Year, Full Profit
Hong Kong Development Limited had fulfilled the second years’
profit guarantee reflecting the Group’s perspicacity and prudence
in its decision made in 2013 is being rewarded. Furthermore,
Compass College, another investment made by the Group in
2013 through its acquisition of 47% equity interests in Seasoned
Leader Limited, offers non-academic tertiary education alternatives
for Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education (“HKDSE")
Examination graduates and on-the-job vocational training
programmes for continuous learners had performed as planned to
bring in promising profits to the Group.

The successful integration of aforesaid investments has enabled
the Group with a leading position as a comprehensive educational
services provider and differentiated us from our competitors. We
believe the provision of diversified educational services would
create synergies and help the Group to have further business
expansion with stable profit.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

PRC Market — Developing as comprehensive private
education provider

The Group has gradually built up its quality brand image and
gained the confidence of students and parents in the PRC market
after years of endeavor with good track records. Our students
are well-equipped with strong English language ability and have
obtained distinctive results in international English tests. The Group
has consistently enriched our course curriculum and teaching
materials to prepare students for worldwide examinations and
admissions to world class universities. In addition, the Group
has always seized opportunities in cooperation with strong local
partners in order to build up our “professional and versatile
education service provider” image in the PRC within a short time
span. During the Year, the Group entered a cooperative agreement
with SEG Training Center in Shenzhen to provide comprehensive
educational services, in particular, English training courses
and overseas education consultation services. We believe this
cooperation could further broaden our service scope and thus
improve our profitability in the PRC business segment. We will
remain alert to the dynamic market situation and capture the
opportunities created by emerging needs and trends in the private
educational services market there.

LOOKING FORWARD

In order to strengthen our leading position in the industry, the
Group will continue to provide quality learning and training services
to students and knowledge seekers with different study aspirations
in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Meanwhile, the Group will also
expedite its expansion in the PRC educational market. The Group
will retain its business diversification strategy and further broaden
the source of income.

The Group, with a prudent investment approach, possesses an
open attitude towards all profit-guaranteed potential merger and
acquisition opportunities or innovative cooperation modes with
strong potential growth partners. The Group strives to bring in more
high growth potential businesses and income stream, and hence
maximise returns to our shareholders.
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Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express our sincere gratitude to our shareholders, investors
and business partners for their trust and support and also to our
directors, teachers and all the staff of Hong Kong Education for
their contribution to the success of the Group.

Wong Yuk Tong
Chairman
Hong Kong

25 September 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFIWE S

The Group has been proactively participating in social and
community services to serve the general public of Hong Kong.
During the year ended 30 June 2015 (“Year”), the Group had been
awarded the Caring Company Logo 2014/15 from the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service to recognise our continuous contributions
to the social services. This is the third consecutive year in which
the Group has received the award. We will continue to motivate our
staff and students to participate and support social and community
services.

During the Year, the Group had been working closely with existing
business partners in both Hong Kong and the PRC aiming to foster
stronger market positions and to expand to capture the growth
potentials in wider regions; and diversifying the Group’s income
sources through strategic business collaborations with prudence
planning.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Provision of Private Education Services

Secondary Tutoring Services

The Group has been facing intense competition as more tutoring
centres established in the market recently. Under the new 3-3-4
secondary education system, the HKDSE is the only major public
examination of the mass high school students. During the Year,
the Group recorded segment revenue of approximately HK$157.36
million, representing a decrease of approximately 16.96% as
compared with last year. Nevertheless, our star-rating tutors are
highly appraised by students. The outstanding HKDSE results of
our students have proved that the competent test-taking skills and
unique complementary teaching methods of our tutors are effective
to help students to stay close to the examination trend as well as
enhancing the competitiveness of the students.
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EirHAE 2@ E R OR ™S LR AL RSB mER
BRI E - IRIEDEPEHNI-3ABF FEEFEUR
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The following table sets forth the number of course enrolments, the
number of tutors and the average course fees of each category of
secondary tutoring courses for the Year:
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TRIFERAFEAZSETEMERENREREA
RBEAB KR FH2E :

Year ended 30 June

#F6A30AILLERE
2015 2014

Number of course enrolments (in thousands) RIBMAB NIR (U TFE)
Regular courses BRGRIE 208 275
Intensive courses TEiE I 24 26
Summer courses ZHIRIE 33 38
T.I.P.S. courses FESR BT 8 9
Special courses ERRARE 23 40
Number of tutors (Note 1) BEMAB (KAL)
Regular courses BRGRIE 37 41
Intensive courses TEiE I 35 36
Summer courses ZHIRIE 36 39
T.I.PS. courses e I 24 27
Special courses ERRARE 32 34
Average course fees (HK$) (Note 2) EeEs (Er) (Kit2)
Regular courses BIRGRIE 540 494
Intensive courses FERE I 495 614
Summer courses ZHIRIE 511 451
T.I.P.S. courses FER BT 594 638
Special courses ERRARE 315 242
Note 1: Tutors may provide secondary tutoring services for all or certain Wil - BRAAMAESRE THEINRERHPERER

categories of courses. Thus, the sum of the number of tutors BB NEERBRETERRE FEH-2

for the provision of regular courses, intensive courses, summer HRENERREMNEMAZRERN  WAERE

courses and special courses is not equal to the total number of B 42 A E -

tutors for the year.
Note 2: Being revenue divided by course enrolments for the year. Kiizz: BUBRABRUAFERBRSA AR

As of 30 June 2015, the Group had 13 learning centres operated
under the brand of “Modern Education” 3R X 5 .

Secondary Day School Education

Considering the demand for Secondary 5 and Secondary 6 private
day school courses is still significant, the Group has re-launched
the secondary day school program since the academic year 2014-
2015 under the brand “Modern Day School” ¥t B#:, which
dedicates to serve students of Secondary 5 and Secondary 6 and
helps them prepare for the HKDSE examination. During the Year,
the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$2.49 million from
the day school segment. The number of course enrolments for
Secondary 5 and Secondary 6 were 215 and 622 respectively at an
average course fee of HK$3,080.

201576 5308 - AKEHIMEA [RAHAF | @12
BBEOHEF L -

ENARRE

EREP - Reh =AABRRENFTRIDAREAX
AEMB2014-20158F X [RABR] mEETE
MARERARRE FERERIRRERH =R
SR =2E LR EEREEETFEEEH -
RAFER AEER BRS B S I A%2,490,000
ABLemP Z_RER=REREL ARDHH/215% &
622% - R E /3,080/8 7T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHBEHRR SR

English Language Training and Test Preparation Courses

The Group has consistently provided professional and high-quality
language trainings to excel our students with high standard of
English language proficiency to meet with the challenges in their
work or pursuit further study in local or aboard. The International
English Language Testing System (IELTS) and Test of English for
International Communications (TOEIC) are the world’s two most
popular English language tests. The Group has been operating
high quality IELTS and TOEIC preparation courses to help students
who are going to sit for these two English tests for more than seven
years; our |IELTS courses have been accredited by the Hong Kong
Continuous Education Fund since 2008. There were approximately
13,000 course enrolments recorded for the Year, representing a
decrease of 18.75% as compared with last year.

Primary Tutoring Services, Skill Courses and Test Preparation
Courses

The Group always believes to nurture students to develop efficient
self-study techniques and have good foundations in the major
subjects are crucial to build up their confidence in tackling the
series of tests and examinations in the education journey. The
trainings should be started from early stage instead of at the last
mile of the critical path, Secondary 6. Therefore, the Group has
expanded the tutoring services to primary school education. As of
30 June 2015, there were 7 directly owned learning centres and 30
franchised centres under the brand “Modern Bachelor Education”
A/ NE T, One new franchised centre is underway and will be
ready to start operation in the coming financial year. Additions of
franchised centres have extended the Group’s network to serve
more primary students. The well-designed tutoring materials help to
strengthen students’ foundation in key subjects which in turn foster
their confidence and competitiveness and boost up their potentials
in facing the challenges at higher level education. Total revenue
contributed by franchised centres to the Group was approximately
HK$3.58 million, representing an increase of 17.52% as compared
to the previous year.

During the Year, the Group’s directly owned learning centres offered
primary school tutoring services, skills courses and test preparation
courses. There were approximately 9,000 course enrolments for
the Year, while there were approximately 11,100 course enrolments
in last year.

IR ERRE
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PRC Operations

Demographical imbalance has urged the PRC government to
relax the one-child policy on selected provinces and cities, it is
expected that the relaxation will be gradually applied nationwide.
We foresee that the immediate impact of the new policy is a surge
in new born child, followed by an increased demand in educational
services. The booming economic growth in the PRC together with
rapid increase of bourgeois in the recent two decades have caused
parents more willing to spend extra money on their children to
pursuit high-quality educational service or study aboard in order
to equip them well to face the competitive international arena. The
Group has established a quality brand in the PRC with successful
track records in providing international courses. All the teachers
of the Group are well experienced with international educational
backgrounds, holding master degrees from renowned universities
worldwide. Their rich experiences, together with their passion and
impressive teaching methods, help students pave their study paths
with a global vision. In providing of better individual attention to
students and an effective learning environment, the Group strictly
implements small-class policy with the student to teacher ratio at
the maximum of 6 to 1. The Group continues to capture the raising
momentum of educational demand in the PRC and is looking
forward to expanding the network of international courses to over
10 cities in the coming 2 to 3 years.

Shenzhen, one of the key business hubs in the Southern China, is
where most of the offices of multinational corporations and large
national corporations are located, and the demand for English
language training from executives and management personnel
are high. Besides, the demand to pursuit overseas study by local
students is also keen. During the Year, the Group had entered into
cooperation agreement with a business partner in Shenzhen, SEG
Training Centre, to operate English training courses and overseas
education consultation services to capture the aforesaid demands.
The Group believes the cooperation will further expand the Group’s
source of income and raise the brand’s awareness in the PRC
market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHBEHRR SR

Investments

Property Investments

On 12 December 2014, the Group entered into a shareholders
agreement with an independent third party to invest in a company,
Vision Smart Limited, which was formed to engage in the business
of property investment and property holding. Details of which
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
12 December 2014. On 26 August 2015, the Group further entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to purchase the remaining
issued shares owned by the same party, details of which are set out
in note 42(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, the Group recorded rental income of approximately
HK$0.66 million on properties investments. As at 30 June 2015,
the Group recorded a revaluation gain of HK$2.10 million on its
investment property. The Group remains prudent to our investment
strategy and reviews regularly the return on investments in order to
bring value to our stakeholders.

Securities Investments

During the Year, the Group (i) acquired shares of several listed
companies on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in a total
amount of approximately HK$37.09 million; and (ii) disposed some
shares in the securities investment portfolio of the Group and
recorded a net realised gain of approximately HK$37.04 million. In
addition, the Group recorded an unrealised gain arising on change
in fair value of held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$19.15 million during the Year. Nevertheless, the Group remains
cautious in the allocation of internal resources and to invest in
potential securities for deriving more income to the Group and
benefit to shareholders.
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Other Investments

(i)

(ir)

Early Education

With the world’s globalisation trends and the open economies
policy of the PRC, the students in Hong Kong are facing more
fierce competition nowadays. Parents are keen to equip their
children with competitive edges at an early stage to gain a
winning position at the starting line. Parents believe quality
pre-school education is essential to help develop children’s
multiple intelligences as well as their potentialities hence early
education is gaining more weight and focus amongst parents.
During the Year, our development of the management and
consultancy services to early education centres remained
stable. Full Profit Hong Kong Development Limited and its
subsidiary (“Full Profit Group”) generated steady revenue and
has fulfilled its second year’s profit guarantee of not less than
HK$4 million made to the Group pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement, details of which were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2013.

The Group is optimistic in the future business development
of early education services. Full Profit Group will continue
to devote in the provision of quality management and
consultancy services and the expansion of its services network
in order to generate more profits and benefit to the Group.

Continuing and Tertiary Education

As more and more people seek to upgrade their competence
other than academic qualifications in pursuit of better career
prospects or fulfill personal interests, the Group offers
professional vocation oriented academic programmes in
business management, hospitality and tourism management
as well as training courses in wedding planning, hair and
makeup styling and event management through Compass
College and Bridal Academy respectively, and these two
brands are owned by Seasoned Leader Limited in which the
Group owns 47% of shareholding. The Group shared a steady
profit generated by the aforesaid investment of approximately
HK$7.25 million during the Year.
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(iii) Consultation Services

With the introduction of the Group as a shareholder of Link
Resources (Asia) Limited (“Link Resources”) since February
2014, Link Resources group’s in-house team of experts has
been built up and the Greater China operations continue to
go stronger. Link Resources group has also embarked on an
ambitious regional growth by leveraging on its existing client
base, historical projects and the Group's extensive network,
resulting in its successful acquisition of over 20 new high
profile clients in Hong Kong and Singapore in the past six
months.

The business outlook of Link Resources group is positive.
It has been acquiring banking, capital markets, wealth and
investment management client firms from the Greater China
to the Asian and European countries and Australia. In fact a
pipeline of a large amount of revenue growth is anticipated in
the year to come.

The acquisition of Link Resources was subject to a profit
guarantee provided by the vendor and the guarantor. On
28 April 2015, a supplemental agreement was entered into to
amend certain terms of the original profit guarantee, details of
which are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
28 April 2015.

Money Lending Business

Through China Rich Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group which holds a valid money lenders license under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Group has commenced money lending business since
July 2014. During the Year, the Group recorded loan interest
income of approximately HK$5.44 million from granting loans to
independent third parties.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$208.44 million, representing a decrease of approximately
11.61% as compared with approximately HK$235.81 million
recorded last year. Such decrease was primarily due to the
decrease in revenue from (i) secondary tutoring services to
approximately HK$157.36 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 16.96% as compared to approximately
HK$189.50 million recorded last year; and (ii) English
language training and test preparation courses to approximately
HK$21.55 million, representing a decrease of approximately
11.32% as compared to approximately HK$24.30 million recorded
last year.

The Group re-started offering secondary day school program from
the academic year 2014-2015 onwards. During the Year, the
Group recorded revenue from secondary day school education of
approximately HK$2.49 million. Revenue from primary tutoring
services, skill courses and test preparation courses (including
franchising income) was approximately HK$16.42 million,
representing a slightly increase of approximately 1.52% as
compared to approximately HK$16.17 million recorded last year.

For the Year, the Group recorded rental income of approximately
HK$0.66 million generated by the investment properties
(2014: approximately HK$1.45 million). In addition, the Group
commenced the money lending business since July 2014 and
recorded loan interest income of approximately HK$5.44 million
during the Year.

Other income, gains and losses

For the Year, the Group’s other income, gains and losses recorded
net gain of approximately HK$5.25 million (2014: approximately
HK$0.40 million, as restated). Such increase was primarily
due to the net effect of (i) the increase in supporting services
income of approximately HK$6.70 million; and (ii) the recognition
of impairment loss on other receivables of approximately
HK$1.67 million during the Year.
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Staff costs

The Group’s staff costs increased by approximately
HK$1.27 million or approximately 2.22% compared with the
last financial year. Such increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in (i) directors’ emoluments (including the equity-settled
share-based payments) of approximately HK$0.49 million; and (ii)
various staff-related expenses of approximately HK$0.78 million
during the Year.

Tutor contractor fee

The Group’s tutor contractor fee decreased by approximately
HK$11.63 million or approximately 16.15% compared with the
last financial year. Such decrease was in line with the decline in
revenue derived from secondary tutoring services.

Operating lease payments

The Group’s operating lease payments slightly decreased by
approximately HK$0.99 million or approximately 1.98% compared
with the previous year. Such decrease was due to the adjustment
in monthly rental payment upon signing of certain new tenancy
contracts after expiry of the tenancy during the Year.

Marketing expenses

The Group’s marketing expenses slightly increased by
approximately HK$0.91 million or approximately 4.63% compared
with last year was mainly attributable to the increase in media
placement during the Year.

Other operating expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses slightly decreased by
approximately HK$0.21 million or approximately 0.44% compared
with the previous year. Such decrease was primarily due to the
net effect of (i) the decrease of approximately HK$1.20 million in
equity-settled share-based payment expenses for the share options
granted to eligible persons (other than Directors and employees) by
the Company; (ii) the decrease of approximately HK$1.21 million
in sales commission paid to external agents for introducing
potential students to the Group; (iii) the increase of approximately
HK$1.35 million in consultancy fee paid to external professional
parties; (iv) the increase of approximately HK$1.35 million in
donation to recognised charitable organisations; and (v) the net
decrease in various operating expenses during the Year.
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Finance costs

The Group did not incur any finance costs during the Year (2014:
approximately HK$1.56 million).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$33.03 million (2014: loss of approximately
HK$66.52 million). Such turnaround was mainly attributable to
the gain arising on change in fair value of listed held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$56.19 million in the Year, and
absence of realised loss on the disposal of available-for-sale
investment of approximately HK$24.21 million and the reduction
in the impairment loss of available-for-sale investments by
approximately HK$21.76 million as compared to 2014. Earnings
per share was HK6.58 cents for the Year (2014: loss per share of
HK26.14 cents, as restated).

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will strive to maintain its leading position
in the Hong Kong education industry and continue to venture
into the PRC market to provide quality and professional services
in the education and language training segments. At the same
time, the Group is actively seeking investment and merger and
acquisitions opportunities to broaden its range of business services
to related segments in Hong Kong and the PRC markets. With the
diversification of the Group’s businesses and market acuity, the
Group is confident in maintaining a steady development in order to
generate satisfactory returns to the shareholders of the Company.

In Hong Kong

In recent years, rapid development has been seen in the continuing
education and professional education segments since people are
keen to upgrade themselves either in personal competence or
academic qualifications in order to attain better career prospects.
Looking forward, the Group will allocate more resources on
developing the continuing education and professional education
segment. Meanwhile, the Group is investing in brand building,
recruiting related tutors and in our knowledge base to retain the
Group’s competitive edge and to drive business growth.
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In the PRC

The surge in demands from students, executives and corporates
together with the new government policies on economic
development and demographic planning have created very
favorable conditions for the development of education and training
business in the PRC. The Group will ride on this growing trend to
further explore cooperation opportunities with business partners to
extend and diversify the existing services and networks.

The Group always considers merger and acquisition actions in
prudence. The Group shall target businesses that are of high
growth potentials or can add value and create synergy to the
existing services, so as to increase the competitiveness and profits
of the Group. The Group believes that its insistence on delivering
high quality professional services to students has distinguished the
Group from other competitors and has made it outperformed them
in the markets.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management system to manage its short, medium and long-term
funding and to satisfy liquidity management requirements.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s total balance of cash and
cash equivalents and unpledged bank deposits amounted to
approximately HK$105.17 million (30 June 2014: approximately
HK$56.35 million), of which 96.29% is held in Hong Kong dollars
and 3.71% is held in Renminbi. As at 30 June 2015, the Group
did not have any bank and other borrowings (30 June 2014: nil).
Current ratio (defined as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) stood at 7.56 times (30 June 2014: 5.22 times).

As at 30 June 2015, the gearing ratio of the Group was 7.22%
(30 June 2014: 8.61%). Gearing ratio is total debts divided by
the sum of total equity and total debts. Total debts refer to total
liabilities minus the sum of tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
dividend payable (if any).
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Set out below are fund raising activities completed by the Company

during the Year and the usage of the net proceeds up to 30 June
2015.

(i)

On 13 May 2014, the Company and a placing agent entered
into a placing agreement pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, on a
best effort basis, up to 394,080,000 placing shares at a price
of HK$0.145 per placing share, which represented a discount
of approximately 14.71% to the closing market price of the
shares of the Company (“Shares”) on 13 May 2014, under
a specific mandate to be obtained from the shareholders at
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company, to not less
than six placees, who are professional, institutional or other
investors and who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
are independent third parties. The placing was completed
on 31 July 2014 and the net proceeds were approximately
HK$55.43 million, which were intended be used for the
development of the existing business and the development of
online education business of the Group. It was intended that
(i) approximately HK$8 million would be used for development
and/or acquisition of the primary school tutoring services,
skill coursed and test preparation courses; (i) approximately
HK$25 million would be used for brand image building
and promotion campaign; (iii) approximately HK$15 million
would be used for the development and operation of online
education platform; and (iv) approximately HK$7 million would
be used for the rental expenses of the Group’s education
centres. The allocated amount of (i), (ii) and (iv) were fully
utilised during the Year as intended, while the allocated
amount of (iii) has not yet been utilised as at 30 June 2015.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

(ii)

On 3 December 2014, the Company and two placing agents
entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place through the
placing agents, on a best effort basis, up to 271,616,000
new ordinary shares (with the aggregate nominal value of
HK$27,161,600) at a price of HK$0.122 per placing share,
which represented a discount of approximately 14.69%
to the closing market price of the Shares on 3 December
2014, under a general mandate granted to the Directors
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
26 November 2014, to not less than six placees, who are
professional, institutional or other investors and who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent third
parties. The placing can strengthen the financial position
of the Group and provide working capital to the Group
to meet any future development and obligations. The
placing also represents good opportunities to broaden the
shareholders’ base and the capital base of the Company.
The placing was completed on 18 December 2014 and the
net proceeds were approximately HK$31.82 million. The net
issue price per placing share is approximately HK$0.117.
The net proceeds were fully utilised during the Year as
intended as general working capital of the Group that (i)
approximately HK$15.64 million had used for the rental
expenses of the Group’s education centres; (ii) approximately
HK$14.71 million had used for staff salaries of the Group;
and (iii) approximately HK$1.47 million had used for legal and
professional fee of the Group.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

(i) On 24 April 2015, the Board proposed the implementation
of the rights issue (“Rights Issue”) on the basis of four rights
shares (“Rights Share(s)”) for every one new Share held on
15 July 2015 (i.e. the record date) at the subscription price
of HK$0.295 per Rights Share with the bonus issue (“Bonus
Issue”) on the basis of one bonus share (“Bonus Share”)
for every two Rights Shares taken up under the Rights Issue
to raise approximately HK$384.60 million, before deduction
of expenses, by issuing 1,303,756,800 Rights Shares with
651,878,400 Bonus Shares to qualifying shareholders of
the Company. The net proceeds of the Rights Issue with
the Bonus Issue was approximately HK$369.10 million,
which were intended to be applied as to (i) approximately
HK$120.0 million for property investment of the Group; (ii)
approximately HK$100.0 million for (a) infrastructure upgrade
and system revamp; (b) potential investments in companies
engaging in online education businesses; and (c) development
of information technology related company; (iii) approximately
HK$50.0 million for financial analyst training business and
related course development in Hong Kong and the PRC; (iv)
approximately HK$20.0 million for securities investment in
Hong Kong; and (v) the remaining balance as general working
capital.

The Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting of
the Company held after the reporting period on 3 July 2015.
Completion of the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue took
place after the reporting period on 7 August 2015. Details
of the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue were set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 16 July 2015.

During the Year, the Company also utilised the proceeds from
the placing of new shares completed on 30 May 2014. The net
proceeds from this placing were approximately HK$16.11 million
and have been utilised as working capital of the Group to develop
the secondary day school.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND TREASURY POLICIES
Increase in authorised share capital

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
26 November 2014, an ordinary resolution in relation to the
increase in authorised share capital was duly passed by way of
poll. Following the passing of such resolution, the authorised
share capital of the Company increased from HK$150,000,000
divided into 1,500,000,000 Shares to HK$300,000,000 divided
into 3,000,000,000 Shares by the creation of an additional
1,500,000,000 Shares. The increase in authorised share capital
took effect on the same date.

Capital reorganisation and change of board lot size

On 27 May 2015, the Company completed the capital
reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) as described in the
circular of the Company dated 30 March 2015. The Capital
Reorganisation involved the following:

(i) Consolidation (“Share Consolidation”) of every five existing
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued and unissued
share capital of the Company into one consolidated share
of HK$0.50 each (“Consolidated Share(s)”) and where
applicable, round down the total number of the Consolidated
Shares in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company to a whole number by cancelling any fraction in the
issued and unissued share capital of the Company which may
arise from the Share Consolidation;

(i) Reduction of the issued share capital of the Company through
a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company to the
extent of HK$0.49 on each of the issued Consolidated Share
such that the nominal value of each issued Consolidated
Share would be reduced from HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 (“Capital
Reduction”);

(iii) immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of the
authorised but unissued Consolidated Share has been
sub-divided into fifty (50) new shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company (“New Shares”);

(iv) the credits arising in the books of the Company from (a) the
cancellation of any fraction in the issued share capital of the
Company which may arise from the Share Consolidation; and
(b) the Capital Reduction of approximately HK$159.71 million
has been credited to the contributed surplus account of the
Company within the meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda; and

(v) upon the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective, the board
lot size for trading of the New Shares has been changed from
2,000 to 8,000.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND TREASURY POLICIES
(Continued)

Capital reorganisation and change of board lot size
(Continued)

The Capital Reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of
the Company by a special resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 22 April 2015 and became
effective on 27 May 2015. As at 30 June 2015, the issued
share capital of the Company was HK$3,259,392, divided into
325,939,200 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. Details of the
Capital Reorganisation were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 17 February 2015 and 26 May 2015 and the
circular of the Company dated 30 March 2015.

Treasury policies

The Group consistently employed a prudent treasury policy during
its development and generally financed its operations and business
development with internally generated resources and equity and/
or debt financing activities. The Group also adopted flexible and
prudent fiscal policies to effectively manage the Group’s assets and
liabilities and strengthen the Group's financial position.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and as such the impact of foreign exchange
exposure of the Group was considered minimal. Hence, no hedging
or other arrangements to reduce the currency risk have been
implemented.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had a total of 300 employees
(30 June 2014: 312 employees). They receive competitive
remuneration packages that are constantly monitored with
reference to the market circumstances, with incentives such
as discretionary bonuses based on the Group’s and individual
performance. The Group provides a comprehensive benefits
package and career development opportunities.

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on
11 June 2011 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant
options to eligible persons, including employees and Directors, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. During the Year, the Company
had granted options to subscribe for an aggregate of 19,280,000
shares (as adjusted by the Capital Reorganisation) of the Company
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. No options granted under
the Share Option Scheme were exercised.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (30 June 2014 nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2015, there were respective capital commitments
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounting to approximately HK$41.24 million (30 June
2014: approximately HK$10.05 million) and no authorised but not
contracted amount (30 June 2014: HK$0.50 million).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30 June 2015, an investment property of the Group
with carrying amount of HK$29.60 million (30 June 2014:
HK$27.50 million) was pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the Year, saved as disclosed above, the Group had the following
material acquisition:

On 12 December 2014, the Group entered into a shareholders
agreement with Mr. Leung Wai Hon (“Mr. Leung”) in relation to
the formation of a joint venture company, Vision Smart Limited
(“Vision Smart”), which was owned as to 51% by Mr. Leung and as
to 49% by the Group. Vision Smart was intended to be principally
engaged in the business of property investment and property
holding. Mr. Leung and the Group agreed to provide shareholders’
loan up to HK$45.90 million and HK$44.10 million respectively
for the financing of the acquisition of a property by Vision Smart.
Details of the investment were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 12 December 2014.

Save as disclosed, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries and associates companies during the Year.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

On 18 July 2014 and 24 March 2015, GET Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange, (“GET”) (formerly known as M Dream
Inward Limited) completed a capital reorganisation comprising
share consolidation, capital reduction and share subdivision
respectively. Immediately after the capital reorganisation in March
2015, the Group held an aggregate of 10,240,197 shares of GET.
On 24 February 2015, GET proposed to implement the rights
issue on the basis of three (3) rights shares for every one (1)
new share at the subscription price of HK$0.35 per rights share.
The Group has subscribed 30,720,591 right shares of GET in
June 2015. As of 30 June 2015, the Group held an aggregate
of 40,960,788 shares of GET, representing approximately 5.13%
of the issued share capital of GET. During the Year, the Group
recorded the impairment loss on available-for-sale investment of
approximately HK$6.45 million as a result of its investment in GET.
Notwithstanding this, the Directors consider that GET has ample
growth potential in view of its recent financial performance and
the business development. The Group will also continue to explore
the cooperation opportunity with GET on the business of website
development, e-learning products and services. The Group will
from time to time monitor the price movement of GET's shares
and may adjust its securities investment portfolio as and when
appropriate.

Annual Report 2015
20155 4

Management Discussion and Analysis
EHBEHRR DR

FRiSEXIRE

M2014F7H18H K2015F3A24H &£ 5E A
RARI(IE S]] HERONRBIFMAIZER M)
(ATEME2E A RBRAG) TRRAEH  »
AlBERMDEH BRAEIRZROIFE ZHER
2015F3AMBAEREE AEEFEE AL
10,240,1978% f% 15 - 2015528248 B S @3 1%
BEAE (DRI M IETE = QIR ER I (K 2 EE
REESRERBHOIGETLETEHR - AEER
2015F6 A 2 REE 5 130,720,591 1% t# B i 17 = 7
20156 A30R - AEEREE 54 140,960,788 %
BB SEETRALNS13% HRERE H 2%
B AEERAFEANSEAHEERE 2 REBE
#96,450,00078 7T o @R E t0 itk - MRS 5 < R BRI 7
KEREBRERE EERAEHAEEERERE
REBMBEERRUEE SN MELRAE EFEIE
mERBEE TR EERE AEBGTRERE
SROHZEREE WAgEREEREFAERLEFSE
BHEA -

25



26

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

BRHE (BB REEEERARA

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, aged 65, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 August 2012 before his redesignation
as an executive Director and appointment as the chairman of the
Board on 8 March 2013. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree
and a master degree in Education from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in October 1992 and December 1996 respectively. He
was the headmaster of Kei Sau Primary School from 1989 to 1990,
the headmaster of Kei Tze Primary School from 1990 to 1993, the
headmaster of Kei Wai Primary School from 1993 to 1995 and the
headmaster of Heep Woh Primary School from 1995 to 2010. He
served as a board member in the centralised board of manager for
feeder schools of The Hong Kong Council of the Church of Christ
in China for approximately 16 years. He was also a committee
member of the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee of the
Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau for the period from
2004 to 2009.

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, aged 45, is an executive Director,
the vice chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Group. Mr. Lee is an author of a series of mathematics reference
books and the consultant editor of mathematics reference book.
Mr. Lee was a columnist in the education section of Sing Tao Daily
from 2007 to 2011, commenting on the mathematics teaching
methodology and current education issues. His experience spans
such diverse areas as education, mathematics education research,
chain store management, marketing strategy and computer aided
management systems. Mr. Lee graduated from The University
of Hong Kong, with a Bachelor of Science degree with honors in
Applied Mathematics in 1992 and obtained a Master of Science
degree with Dean’s List honors in Mathematics Education from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2012. In addition to the 2nd
vice president of Lions Club of North Kowloon, Mr. Lee is also an
executive director of Hong Kong Shatin Industries and Commerce
Association Limited, a director of Salesian English School
Foundation Limited, and an alumni manager of Salesian English
School. He was also appointed as a director of Egive for You Charity
Foundation, a director of Hong Kong WuYi Youth Association and
an executive council member of Hong Kong New Youth Energy
Think Tank in 2015.
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Ms. Wu Mei Chu, aged 51, is an executive Director. Ms. Wu
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
21 December 2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director
on 18 June 2013. Ms. Wu graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in Arts with honors in 1987.
Ms. Wu has been holding various management positions in a
number of multinational corporations across office technology,
telecommunications and satellite communications business.
Ms. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the field of marketing
and business development in the People’s Republic of China and
Asia Pacific region. Ms. Wu was an executive director of China
Natural Investment Company Limited, a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 8250) from
February 2011 to November 2011.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ong Chi King, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 February 2014. Mr. Ong received a
bachelor degree in business administration from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a master degree in
corporate finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Ong has more than 19 years of
experience in accounting, finance and company secretarial fields
and held senior positions in finance and company secretarial
departments in various companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Ong was the company secretary of Yue Da Mining Holdings
Limited (stock code: 629), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from November 2008 to August 2015.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of Capital
VC Limited (stock code: 2324), China Environmental Resources
Group Limited (stock code: 1130) and Wan Kei Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1718), which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and King Force Security Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8315), Larry Jewelry International Company Limited
(stock code: 8351), KSL Holdings Limited (stock code: 8170) and
WLS Holdings Limited (stock code: 8021), which are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong was a director of Fitness
Concept International Holdings Limited prior to its dissolution.
The said company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
was dissolved on 30 June 2005 by striking off due to cessation of
business.
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Mr. Lee Shu Fai, aged 70, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 June 2013. Mr. Lee obtained a
bachelor degree in Social Science from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in October 1972. He has also obtained from The
University of Hong Kong a Certificate in Education in June 1977, an
Advanced Diploma in Education in June 1984 and a master degree
awarded with distinction in Education in November 1985. Mr. Lee
has more than 30 years of experience in the field of education and
has extensive administrative experience. He was the headmaster of
Lai Chack Middle School from 1987 to 2005 until his retirement.
Mr. Lee has a strong commitment to the community and
particularly involved in the education field which continues after
his retirement. He was a member of the Court of the Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2010 and 2011 and has been the supervisor
of Baptist Lui Ming Choi Primary School since 2007. He is also the
manager of various primary and secondary schools.

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 November 2014. Mr. Pun obtained a
bachelor degree in history from A& K2 (South China Normal
University) in 1984, a Master of Business Administration degree
from University of South Australia in 2002 and a doctorate degree
in enterprise management from #FEE KZ (Huagiao University)
in 2013. Mr. Pun has 4 years of experience in the education
field working in the history department of South China Normal
University. Mr. Pun has a strong commitment to the community and
has been actively participating in the public administration affairs.
Mr. Pun was elected in the 2013 Shatin District Council Tin Sum
By-election and is currently a District Council member of the Shatin
District Council. Mr. Pun has also served as a District Council
member of the Shatin District Council from 2004 to 2011.

&

FH@EE 705 N2013F6A18HAEEZERE L
FHRITEF - FHRERIINFIOARBEERXKE
M ENBE LB - RITRI77FAMBTREEX
BOHEESE RIBIFOARMSHE @B B RRE
1985F 11 AN S MRAEMERHBR LB - FhE
REEARBEFBIOFLRIER EENTRER K
BR1987F £2006F H EELRNAT —HETEZETE
MK -FEEBBRRGHRTE LEHIREKE
BESEHE R T WN2010F R2011F REER
GAREHASGE WH2007FE—EETRESR
RANBHRE R RZETNENEERAR-

BEIWSEE 5457 H2014F11 26 # T AB L
EBRITEE R ELENISAERNSEDMBAEF T
B Ef] - P2002F RS ER A2 T EEIRE T 240
RR201IBFMEBEFRECEEEELEM - FEL
REEMBASEL RRBAFTHAB B2 TIFER -
ERERRIMMEREER W —HERGSEQHT
BREBE - BLEER0I3FRAYAERSHOER R
REE BRASHREGNKE F L EITTR2004F
F2011FHAESPHEZEKE -



SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chau Kai Man, aged 59, has joined the group as Business
Development Director since January 2013 and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chau has over 27 years
of experience in the field of sales, marketing and business
development and around 8 years of experience in accounting
and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chau was appointed as an
executive director of Hanergy Solar Group Limited (formerly known
as RBI Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 566) in July 2007 and appointed
as chairman of the same company in January 2009. Mr. Chau
resigned from both positions in August 2010. Mr. Chau was the
vice chairman and an executive director of RBI Industries Holdings
Ltd from September 2010 to December 2012.

Ms. Cheung Po King, aged 35, joined the group in February
2013. She is the financial controller and the company secretary of
the Company. Ms. Cheung holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration (with honours) in Accountancy from Lingnan
University and a master of science degree in Finance from the
City University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Cheung has over 10 years of experience in the
field of accounting and financial management and previously
worked in certain unlisted and listed groups.
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Report of the Directors
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The directors (“Directors”) of Hong Kong Education (Int'l)
Investments Limited (“Company”) present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2015
(“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries as of
30 June 2015 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s operation for the Year by business
activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements and the paragraph headed “Business Review” of this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 65 to 66 of this annual report.

The board of the Company (“Board”) does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (2014: nil).
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares in
the initial public offering (after deducting expenses relating
specifically to the issue of new shares in the initial public offering
and expenses relating generally to the listing of all the shares of
the Company, whether existing or new) amounted to approximately
HK$130 million. As at 30 June 2015, the net proceeds from the
initial public offering had been utilised as follows:
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Planned Amount

amount per utilised up to Balance as at

Prospectus 30 June 2015 30 June 2015

#HE2015%F 20155

BEREED 6B30H 6A30BZ

FHEIRIA FRE) B IR B

HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million

B & T B &5 B &

Repayment of loans BEER 50 50 -

Setting up secondary learning centres %3 R EEHF L) 15 14.66 0.34

Setting up primary learning centres L NEBHE L 6 5.33 0.67

Setting up kids learning centres (Note) &3 5SREHE 0 (H1at) 15 12.71 2.29
Provision of overseas studies R IN BT AR

consultation services (Note) (K13E) 6 6 -

Provision of test preparation and R ER R ATERIE
bridging courses 4 4 -
Strategic merger and acquisition (Note) R EVEGFEE (H#72E) 34 34 -

Note: As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
28 March 2013, the Board decided to expand the use of
net proceeds from the initial public offering for investing into
non-educational business, in addition to the original purposes
as stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 June 2011
(“Prospectus”).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 202 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movement in the investment property of the Group are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-laws”) or the laws of the Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 70 of this annual report and the
statement of financial position of the Company on page 201 of this
annual report respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves available for distribution of the
Company during the Year are set out on page 201 of this annual
report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Income from the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
contributed to less than 30% of the Group’s total income during the
Year.

During the Year, tutor contractor fee paid/payable to the Group'’s top
five tutors, who entered into service contracts with us, accounted
for 63.49% of the Group’s total tutor contractor fee for the Year
(2014: 61.52%), and tutor contractor fee paid/payable to the
Group’s topmost tutor accounted for 24.60% of the Group's total
tutor contractor fee for the Year (2014: 21.95%). None of the
Directors, their close associates as well as substantial Shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) was anyone out of such top five
tutors (2014: none).

Contracts with the other five largest suppliers of the Group,
excluding the independent tutors, combined by values which are
not of a capital nature, contributed to less than 30% in value of
such supplies purchased during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wu Mei Chu

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Ong Chi King

Mr. Lee Shu Fai

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan (appointed on 26 November 2014)

Ms. Chan Lai Yee (retired with effect from 26 November 2014)
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Pursuant to Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”), one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years and
the retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Mr. Lee Wai
Lok, Ignatious and Mr. Lee Shu Fai will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”), the Company has received from Mr. Pun Kwok
Shan a confirmation of independence from the Group upon his
appointment with effect from 26 November 2014. The Company
also received from each of the existing independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence. Based on these
confirmations, the Company considers that each of such Directors
is independent from the Group during their respective tenures as
an independent non-executive Director.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors’ fees and other emoluments shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings or determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into either a service contract or a
letter of appointment with the Company as follows.

Name

4]

Contract type
CEakikE

EENREENH

Directorship term

EEEN
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Prior notice of
termination

BiEZEREN

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong

FTEREE

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

FRERE

Ms. Wu Mei Chu

HEKLL

Mr. Ong Chi King

Fraks

Mr. Lee Shu Fai

FHIELEAE

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan

EE LKL

Service contract

=
A
o>
e

Service contract

=5
=
o>
>

Service contract

RBAEH

Letter of appointment

ZER M

Letter of appointment

ZERM

Letter of appointment

ZER

Initial term of three years commenced on
8 March 2013 and continue thereafter

B2013F3A8H R MIFZ REI=F
MRHEERE

Initial term of three years commenced on

1 September 2013 and continue thereafter
B2013F9R 1R BT RBM=4F

R EERE

Initial term of three years commenced on
18 June 2013 and continue thereafter

B2013F6 A 18R i 11 REI=F
KR E B

Fixed term of three years commenced on
28 February 2014
B201452 A28 BT EEHIR A =45

Fixed term of three years commenced on
18 June 2013
B201356 A 18ARHETHRA=F

Fixed term of three years commenced on
26 November 2014
BE2014511R26B Bt EF HR A=F

Two-month notice in writing

i {E A& mEA

Six-month notice in writing

N EAEmEA

Two-month notice in writing

MEAE @A

Two-month notice in writing

i {E A& mE A

Two-month notice in writing

MEAE @A

Two-month notice in writing

w8 A & EE A
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These appointments are subject to directors’ retirement from
office and retirement by rotation under the Bye-laws. None of
the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has entered into a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on page 26 to page 29 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number
of transactions with entities in which an executive Director and
former executive Directors have substantial shareholding. Details
of those transactions are set out in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance, to which the
Company, any of its controlling entities or its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2015, the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had the following interests in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")) as recorded in the registers required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;
or notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules:

Long positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company
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NREREAREE (TR REFMABRGRD ([EH R
HIE RG] EXVER It - BB REHTHEE
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Approximate

% of
shareholding of
the Company

Number of
shares/underlying
shares of the

Name of Directors Capacity Nature of interests Company held (Note 1)
FRISELTF XA FREDN
Bin, BHESL
EEER =40 EanHE HHEBR B B (K1zE1)
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,170,400 0.67%
(“Mr. Lee") (Note 2)
TELEE ([FEE]) E=lEA A &l A 25 (H1a22)
Interest in a controlled Corporate interest 26,766,400 8.21%
corporation (Note 3)
REZSEB M ERE NAEE (H1:23)
Ms. Wu Mei Chu Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,170,400 0.67%
(Note 2)
[iE 379 dnn EnEA A &l A 2= (H1:t2)
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Notes:

1. Asat 30 June 2015, there was an aggregate of 325,939,200 shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”) in issue.

2. These number of shares represented the interests in the underlying
Shares, in respect of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are set out in the section titled “Share Option
Scheme” on page 180 to 183 of this annual report.

3. These 26,766,400 Shares are held by Beautiful Choice Investments
Limited (“Beautiful Choice”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Lee.
Therefore, Mr. Lee is deemed to be interested in the 26,766,400
Shares held by Beautiful Choice by virtue of the SFO. Mr. Lee is the
sole director of Beautiful Choice.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosure in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report, was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate, nor had
exercised any such right.

R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHER’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2015, so far as was known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
the directors and chief executive of the Company) had or were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or which
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would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Number of Shares
or underlying

Approximate %
of shareholding
of the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity Shares held (Note 1)
EELFRED
FRisBR iRl EOI=R i 4
TEREME B 51 HER DS E (W##1)
Jun Yang Securities Company Limited Other 2,045,270,400 (L) 627.50%
(“Jun Yang Securities”) (Note 3) (17£3)
EGBEHFERAR ([BGES]) Hit 610,000,000 (S) 187.15%
(Note 4) (f17t4)
Jun Yang Solar Power Investments Limited Interest of a controlled 2,054,270,400 (L) 630.26%
(“Jun Yang Solar Power") corporation (Note 5) (#17#5)
EGRGHEENREGRAF REZESEEOER 610,000,000 (S) 187.15%
(IEBK5eEEN]) (Note 4) ([f1724)
Trinity Finance Investment Limited Other 610,000,000 (L) 187.15%
(“Trinity Finance”) (Note 6) (f17£6)
NEem&kEERAR ([FMEeF]) Hith
Trinity Worldwide Capital Holding Limited Interest of a controlled 610,000,000 (L) 187.15%
(“Trinity Worldwide") corporation (Note 6) (#17#6)
RERGEE R R
Ng Ting Kit Interest of a controlled 610,000,000 (L) 187.15%
corporation (Note 6) (f17£6)
REGH RERGEE R R
Beautiful Choice Beneficial owner 26,766,400 (L) 8.21%

EmBBA
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Notes:

1. The total number of 325,939,200 Shares in issue as at 30 June 2015
has been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

2. “L” denotes a long position whilst the letter “S” denotes a short
position.

3. These 2,045,270,400 Shares (“JY Entitlements”) represented the
maximum number of the underwritten shares committed by Jun Yang
Securities, as the underwriter, together with its entitlement of bonus
shares thereto pursuant to the underwriting agreement in relation to
a rights issue of the Company signed on 24 April 2015. Based on the
notice of disclosure of interest filed with the Stock Exchange, Jun Yang
Securities is an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Jun Yang Solar
Power.

4.  These 610,000,000 Shares represented the rights shares that have
been sub-underwritten by Jun Yang Securities to a sub-underwriter.

5. These Shares comprised (i) the JY Entitlements of 2,045,270,400
Shares; and (i) 9,000,000 Shares held by Classictime Investments
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Jun Yang Solar Power.

6. As informed by Jun Yang Securities, Trinity Finance entered into
a sub-underwriting letter with Jun Yang Securities to take up
610,000,000 Shares. Based on the notices of disclosure of interests
filed with the Stock Exchange, Trinity Finance is wholly owned by
Trinity Worldwide, which in turn is wholly owned by Mr. Ng Ting Kit.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, the Company has
not been notified by any other substantial shareholder or person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who
had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into by the Company or subsisted during the Year.

R
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As set out in the Prospectus, according to the non-competition
deed (“Non-competition Deed”) entered between the Company
and the then controlling shareholders of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholders”) and certain non-competing covenantors
(“Non-Competing Covenantors”) on 7 June 2011, the non-compete
period under the Non-Competition Deed refers to the period during
which:

(@) in the case of the Controlling Shareholders, any of the
Controlling Shareholders or his/its respective associate is a
controlling shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
the Listing Rules in force from time to time;

(b) in the case of the other Non-Competing Covenantors, any
of them is interested in 5% or more of the total issued
share capital of the Company from time to time or such
Non-Competing Covenantor is a Director or member of the
senior management of the Group; and

(c) the Shares are and remain listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee and Beautiful Choice has confirmed to the Company of
his/its compliance with the Non-competition Deed during their
respective applicable non-compete period. The independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance
and confirmed that all of these non-competition undertakings
have been complied with by the relevant covenantors during their
respective applicable non-compete period. As at 30 June 2015,
Mr. Lee remained as an executive Director.

GENERAL DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.15 OF THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
12 December 2014, on 12 December 2014, Ultimate Elite
Investments Limited (“Ultimate Elite”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (as a joint venture partner) entered
into a shareholders agreement (“Shareholders Agreement”) with
Mr. Leung Wai Hon (as the other joint venture partner) and Vision
Smart Limited (as the joint venture company, “Vision Smart”) for
the joint investment of Ultimate Elite and Leung Wai Hon in Vision
Smart. It was the intention of the parties that Vision Smart would
be principally engaged in the business of property investment
and property holding. Pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement,
Ultimate Elite has agreed to provide a shareholders’ loan of up to
HK$44.1 million (interest-free, without collateral and without fixed
repayment term), in proportion to its 49% shareholding in Vision
Smart, to Vision Smart to finance its proposed acquisition of certain
properties. As at 30 June 2015, the amount due from Vision Smart
was approximately HK$15,200,000.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Tutor service contracts

(i)

Contracts with Italy Limited and Mr. Ng Norman

Transaction details

On 15 August 2013, ltaly Limited and Mr. Ng Norman
(“Mr. Ng”) entered into a service contract with the Group,
pursuant to which Italy Limited agreed to procure Mr. Ng to
provide tutoring services to students of the Group for a term
commencing from 1 July 2013 and expiring on 30 June 2016.

Pursuant to the service contract, Italy Limited is entitled to a
fee payable by the Company calculated at a commission rate
of HK$2,838 per student per course (with lecture conducted
by Mr. Ng only) or HK$4,015 per student per course (with
lecture conducted by Mr. Ng and tutorial class conducted
by other teaching assistants) or (as further agreed by a
supplemental agreement dated 28 September 2013 entered
into between the parties) HK$1,800 per student per course
(with lecture conducted by other teaching assistants). In a
lecture, Mr. Ng would be teaching a larger group of students
with key concepts and their application demonstrated,
whereas in a tutorial class, tutors would focus more on
guestion answering skills.

The commission rates aforesaid are calculated based on (i)
the tuition fees charged from students net of any refunds or
discounts; and (ii) fee per student which the Group should
pay for lecture and tutorial classes which Mr. Ng is in charge
of, and were determined after arm’s length negotiation. Given
that the duration of the lecture component of each course is
45 hours whereas the duration of each course which consists
of both lecture and tutorial class components is 90 hours,
the commission rate for courses with both lecture and tutorial
class is more than that applicable to courses with lecture only.
The fee payable by the Group to Italy Limited would be the
product of the relevant commission rate aforesaid and the
number of students attended the courses which Mr. Ng is in
charge of subject to deductions of other expenses, such as the
costs of teaching assistants and certain other costs associated
with his classes, including certain promotional and marketing
events, reference materials and copyright license fees. The
respective annual caps of the above transactions for the three
years ending 30 June 2016 are set out below:

REXH
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(i)
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R2013%8A15H  BAMABR AR K REM 5T
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Annual Caps Year ended/ending 30 June

BEGAALEEMERELR
2014 2015 2016
20145 20155 20165
Estimated number of students (A) EETEE ABA) 620 682 750
Commission rate payable to RERELGERE

Mr. Ng per student per course (B) BYNTREENAEEEB HK$4,015%87C  HK$4,015/7T  HK$4,015% T
Estimated other expenses (C) fEETEMEE(C) HK$809,0007c  HK$889,900 7T  HK$978,8907% 1t
Fee payable to Mr. Ng and/or ExRTREER/& Approximately Approximately Approximately
Italy Limited EAFIBERABINER HK$1,680,000 HK$1,848,000 HK$2,032,000
41,680,000/  #491,848,000%8 T 492,032,000/ 7

Note: Htez -

(1) Fee payable to Mr. Ng and/or Italy Limited =AxB - C

The actual annual transaction amount for the Year was
approximately HK$1,783,000 (2014: approximately
HK$1,612,000).

Connection of the parties

As Mr. Ng, our former executive Director (who retired with
effect from 19 November 2013), is the sole shareholder of
Italy Limited, both ltaly Limited and Mr. Ng are connected
persons of the Company until 19 November 2014 and
the transactions contemplated under the service contract
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Service Contract with Sense Publishing Company Limited
and Mr. Lee

Transaction details

On 15 August 2013, Sense Publishing Company Limited
and Mr. Lee entered into a service contract with the Group,
pursuant to which Sense Publishing Company Limited
agreed to (i) procure Mr. Lee to provide tutoring services to
students of the Group; and (i) grant a sole, exclusive and
non-transferable licence to the Group to use and reproduce
the teaching materials prepared by Mr. Lee for the tutorial
courses organised by the Group for secondary school students
and conducted by teaching assistants with the said teaching
materials for a term commenced from 1 July 2013 and
expiring on 30 June 2016.

(ii)

(1) EXNFREER/REANARAFNER
=AxB-C

RFEEERFERHEHA1,783,000/ T (2014
1 491,612,000/ 7T ) °

=o)L

BAREMOAANTESTR o4 (RE2013F11A
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IERARBNEEAL MBE TR ZR
BAROBETHETHR HBRAR BN FERE

HYBEHRBERLEIRFELTLHREESH

XGFHE

M201358A15H B ZHRAR AT RF L
ERAKERVRBEQ -FEI ABRELREAE
BorEEOREFEEANEEELRHBEE
R R EME— BRETAEEETRT
AEBFERRERFTREMRENEM  UAR
AEBRPELEMR L HBEBEEMEHM
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16 R FA201646 H30H fEim ©

43



44

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

BRHE (BB REEEERARA

Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

Pursuant to the service contract, Sense Publishing Company
Limited is entitled to certain fees calculated at a commission
rate (comprising of the commission and gratuity components)
of 60% of the tuition fees net of any refund, discounts
or rebate paid by the students to the Group to attend the
tutorial courses conducted entirely by Mr. Lee in person. If
the tutorial class is not entirely taught by Mr. Lee in person
but by other tutors or teaching assistants using the teaching
materials prepared by Mr. Lee and/or his teaching assistants,
the commission rate is adjusted downwards by 1.5% to
8%. The fee payable by the Group to Sense Publishing
Company Limited is the product of the relevant commission
rate and the net tuition fee aforesaid subject to further other
deductions such as the costs of teaching assistants and
certain other costs associated with his classes, including
certain promotional and marketing events, reference materials
and copyright licence fees. The respective annual caps of the
above transactions for the three year ending 30 June 2016 are
set out below:

&

RIEREE L ABEE LA R R AHAEWEZ
BARBFEEERFAEREHUROBEBREM
XNFASENHEE (AERETARR MK
ElH) WeonHE XA HEMNETER (BRAES
R#ymM e e ) - WME BN T2 hFRE
BERE HhEMSmHENEERAFEL
R/ SERBHIBRBENEN MR BIASE
K T#1.5%%E8% - ARBEX N FTHEZHLRE
RAFIMNERSHERASERA LIFHEEN
& MR — SRR B AN - HIAN R BN IR Y
ERREBERENETHEMER BRETE
ERTSERLE 2EMHRREE - LR
ZBE2016F6A30R IE=AFENHEBFE L
R :

Annual Caps Year ended/ending 30 June

HECAALEEMERELR

2014 2015 2016
20145 2015 20164
Estimated number of students (A) EEELIN () 13,500 14,175 14,834
Net tuition fee (B) FREE®B) HK$39078 7T HK$390/8 7T HK$39078 7T
Estimated average commission rate (C) T FHEELR(C) 54.6% 54.6% 54.6%
Estimated other expenses (D) EHELERI0) HK$1,000,0007C  HK$1,050,0008 7  HK$1,102,5007% T
Fee payable to Mr. Lee and/or EXRTERER/& Approximately Approximately Approximately
Sense Publishing Company Limited AEZHRERARNER HK$1,875,000 HK$1,968,000 HK$2,067,000
#)1,875,000/ T #71,968,000/ 7T #12,067,000% 7T

Note: Bt -

(1) Fee payable to Mr. Lee and/or Sense publishing Company
Limited=AxBxC-D

The actual annual transaction amount for the Year
was approximately HK$255,000 (2014: approximately
HK$819,000).

(1) EIZHFELRER/SBEEHRERARNE
A=AxBxC-D

AFEEERFER H S 255000/ 7T (2014
F : 49819,000/& 7T ) °



Connection of the parties

As Mr. Lee, an executive Director, is the sole shareholder of
Sense Publishing Company Limited, both Sense Publishing
Company Limited and Mr. Lee are connected persons of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
service contract constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the above (i) service contract with Mr. Ng; and (ii)

service contract with Mr. Lee were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 15 August 2013.

Annual Review

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)

have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and

confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

and

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

have followed the pricing policy pursuant to the relevant

contracts when determining the fee payable during the Year.
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HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the auditors of the Company,
were engaged to report on the above continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and reported
their findings to the Board that the transactions:

(i)  have been approved by the Board;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(ii) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed
above.

OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements (except the lease by Tellet Investment Limited
to the Group, management fee expenses to Creative Education
Technology Limited and commission expenses to China Vantage
International Holdings Limited) constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles in and adopted the code
provisions of the corporate governance code set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own corporate governance code
(“CG Code”). During the Year, the Company has complied with all
the provisions of the CG Code except for the deviation as disclosed
in the Corporate Governance Report which is set out on pages 49
to 62 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules during the Year and as at the date
of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2015 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB")
who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of HLB as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

HLB have been appointed as the auditors of the Company with
effect from 5 February 2014 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which took effect
from 30 January 2014. Save for the above, there has been no other
change in the auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
three years.
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CHANGE OF DOMICILE

On 22 April 2015, the change of domicile of the Company from
the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of deregistration in the
Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted company under
the laws of Bermuda (“Change of Domicile”) and the adoption
of the memorandum of continuance and Bye-laws in connection
with the Change of Domicile were approved by the Shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company. The details of
the Change of Domicile were disclosed in the Company’s circular
dated 30 March 2015 and the Company’s announcements dated
17 February 2015, 22 April 2015 and 8 May 2015.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Yuk Tong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 September 2015
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The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Hong Kong
Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (“Company”) is committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within
a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles in and adopted the code
provisions of the corporate governance code set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as
its own corporate governance code (“CG Code”). During the year
ended 30 June 2015 (“Year”), the Company has complied with all
the provisions of the CG Code except for the deviation as disclosed
below:

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the chairman of
the Board (“Chairman”) to hold meetings at least annually with
the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present. The Chairman,
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, during his tenure was himself executive
Director and as such, compliance with this code provision was
infeasible.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed
his/her compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
members, three of which are executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Yuk Tong (Chairman), Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Vice Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Wu Mei Chu.
The other three members are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Chi King, Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok Shan.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Profiles
of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 29 of this
annual report.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. The Board has established various
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference. All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith
and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, and have acted in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders (“Shareholders”) as a whole at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflicts of interest), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. During
the Year, nine Board meetings were held to perform the above
mentioned duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board. The Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.

Management Functions

While the Board is responsible for the overall strategic direction and
governance by considering and approving the Group’s strategies,
policies and business plan, the functions of implementing the
approved strategy and policies as well as managing the day-to-day
operations and administration are delegated to the executive
management under the chief executive officer’'s leadership
and supervision. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board.
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Appointments of the Directors are subject to retirement from office
and retirement by rotation under the bye-laws of the Company
(“Bye-laws”).

In accordance with the CG Code, any new Director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after the appointment, and according to the
Bye-laws, any new Director appointed as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Pursuant to the Bye-laws, at every annual general meeting
of the Company one-third of the Directors (or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not
less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
A retiring Director is eligible for re-election at that general meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy
(“Policy”) with effect from 1 September 2013. The Company
continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of its Board and
to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board.
A diversity of perspectives can be achieved through engaging
directors in possession of diversified skills, regional and industry
experience, educational background, race, gender and other
qualities, etc. The composition, experience and balance of skills
of the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board
retains a core of members with longstanding knowledge of the
Group alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who
bring fresh perspectives and diverse experience to the Board. The
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity in the Board. During the Year,
the Policy was taken into account by the Nomination Committee (as
defined below) and the Board in the appointment of Mr. Pun Kwok
Shan as a new independent non-executive Director in November
2014. The Board will continue to review the Policy to ensure its
continued effectiveness on an annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the Year, all of the
Directors received regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments of the Group’s business and the legislative and
regulatory environments in which the Group operates. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses. Effective
from September 2012, all Directors are required to provide the
Company with his or her training record on a yearly basis. During
the Year, each of Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious,
Ms. Wu Mei Chu, Mr. Ong Chi King, Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun
Kwok Shan participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business, amendments on
Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules, or directors’ duties
and responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company met the requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code which stipulates that the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

During the Year, the role of the Chairman was performed by
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, who provided leadership for the Board and
was responsible for chairing meetings, managing the operations of
the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues were
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. He
was also responsible for the strategic management of the Group
and for formulating the Group’s overall corporate direction and
focus.

During the Year, the role of chief executive officer was performed
by Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, who was responsible for the overall
management and operations of the Group. He was also responsible
for running the businesses of the Group and implementing the
Group’s strategic plans and business goals.

To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by the
Board in a timely manner, the Chairman co-ordinated with the
senior management to provide adequate, complete and reliable
information to all Directors for consideration and review during the
Year.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing at least
one-third of the Board under the CG Code with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. All independent non-executive Directors
were appointed for a specific term of three years.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received a written confirmation of independence from the
independent non-executive Director appointed during the Year
and an annual written confirmation from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Po King, was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 19 January 2015 and is responsible for facilitating the
Board processes, as well as communications among Board
members, with Shareholders and management. During the Year,
Ms. Cheung Po King has taken not less than 15 hours of the
relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) on 4 July 2011 with its role and
function set out in its specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code during the
Year, which are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policies on
such remuneration; (ii) determining the remuneration packages
of all individual executive Directors and the senior management
and making recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors; and (iii) reviewing and approving
compensation payable to the executive Directors and the senior
management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise
fair and not excessive.

Annual Report 2015
2015 4

Corporate Governance Report
LERELIRE

BIFRTES

RAFERN EF@—BHETLETHRAUEBEZEED
ZRBIUFATESNAT  AIRBEEXEARTAIE
LEEEN=NZ RBEUFNTER BEFED
—BBUFRTEFAAEEEXRERNEHIAH
MBEERER -MMBBUIFNTESAR=FZIETE
THIRZE-

RiIE EMARRAES 3G AAR D RBIRAFEANE
REMBIIFNTEENEEB L MR N RSRIE
BUYFRTEENFESERRBLN -ARERBR R
BEEMRANSINOBL S FIEBYIFRITES
VBB -

NEWE
RERLTHR2015F1IAI0RBEZERAAIWELE
BERKREFSRERF UNEEFTSKREEERLERE
BERETEE - RAFERN RERLLIDEXTD
TR 1518 /)N ) 48 B 55 36 55 51| DA BB 8 L e Bl S AR

FHERE
BEEECR01IF7RARRIFHEE S ([HFE
Bgl) RAFER HAGKBREENRELEXE
ATRMEXFI EMABERBESEN W TIBR
BE S BT B AN R R A8 U o

FHZEEMNIERAERE (BTRR)  OHAE
EEREREEENREHNBOR MBI RBFIE
FMBEMRLEABROREFAESSRMER
BE: (NECEBERTESTLSREEENFT M
B UHIFRTEENFHRETSREEREE:
Re (it & Bt e SLAT (R R sl R IE BT s R AE R
TEERSMEERBXNEBENERET A ORR
HARREIZBREIFRETE BETBRIFEE-

53



54

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

BRHE (BB REEEERARA

Corporate Governance Report
EETLIHRE

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises one executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong Chi King (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, Mr. Lee Shu
Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok Shan.

RAFEHRAY FHEZE R BATEFR =28
3F$ﬂﬁ%$%ﬂﬁk CBIEFHEL (FMEREER)
FREKE FHRBLEERRRILLL-

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting ~ RAEE R @H?E%éﬁg? —IREHUBIEE MR
to review the remuneration policy, remuneration packages of the @E‘]iﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁl BEHMER EFRaRhER
Directors and the senior management in accordance with the EBrEimEs -
Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.
The annual remuneration of the members of the senior RAFE ZAFE D2 SREIEBRKE 2 FE 5B
management by bands for the Year is set out below: T

Number of
Remuneration bands Individuals
TN B AB
Nil to HK$500,000 = £500,0007% 7T -
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001/ 7T £ 1,000,000/ 7T 2

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the Year are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) was
established by the Board on 9 March 2012 with specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code, which are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprises one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yuk Tong (chairman of
the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok

Shan.

The major functions of the Nomination Committee is to assist
the Board to identify suitable individuals qualified to become
Board members, assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, propose re-election of retiring Directors,
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

AEEZEZHNFBERNGAMBHRERMELL -

REER

%E%%Eiﬁ\@(f%m%%é\éj)ﬁé2012$3ﬂ95 HES
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TR MORRILI KA -

REZESENIZRERHDEESVESERKS
EEEREMNEGBAE B IFNTEENE L
M ERERRTES RIVESTINER - AZKA
WA MERESRESSELER  UEAXR
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee resolved to nominate
the new independent non-executive Director to the Board and the
Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, and review the arrangement for
re-election of all the retiring Directors at the forthcoming general
meetings of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
on 4 July 2011 with specific written terms of reference in
compliance with the provisions set out in the CG Code, which are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group, overseeing the audit process and performing
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong Chi
King (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lee Shu Fai and
Mr. Pun Kwok Shan. During the Year, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to review the annual and interim results of the Group
and made recommendations to the Board and the management
in respect of the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has also reviewed, with
the management and the Company’s auditor, the Group's
significant internal controls and financial matters in accordance
with the Audit Committee’s written terms of reference and made
relevant recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee’s
review covered the audit scope and findings, external auditor’'s
independence and performance, the Group’s accounting principles
and practices, the Listing Rules and statutory compliance,
connected transactions, internal controls, risk management,
financial reporting matters (including the interim and annual
financial reports for the Board’'s approval) and the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function as well as their training
programmes and budget.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with written terms of reference equivalent
to Code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the
corporate governance policies of the Company were reviewed by
the Board. The Board also reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code,
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report and the policy on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee during
the Year are set out below:

&
ZAN/N TE’J FERRRKLRE %?'aﬂ uﬂ‘ Exe DT%
MEELEREEBZBIRFEEXEER A0
BREXRERTAIZETE /R~E’$$/¢\%a/u$&¢2
WEIARFEIERIERBTE 2K

EEHFERZIWER

Zliif“lﬁq EEFHFEARABRRAS 529
i BRZEgew YMEZESeRNREZES
%%ZI%%@J%MDT:

Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)

HE/ BTeERS (171

Annual Audit Remuneration Nomination

General Extraordinary Board Committee Committee Committee
Director meeting  General meetings meetings meetings meeting meeting
£ BREEXE REBIKE EXGEeR ENZAGeR FHZAGEE RETHGER
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong TEREE Iy 02 719 NATE R NATE A mn
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, lgnatious TREESE 1 212 809 NARE n NAT &R
Ms. Wu Mei Chu WHERZT 1 202 89 NAZ & NARER NAZ i
Independent non-executive Directors BUFQTES
Mr. Ong Chi King TFEEE 1n 012 619 12 mn NAT &R
Mr. Lee Shu Fai TRBRA 01 202 319 12 011 o1
Mr. Pun Kwok Shan (Note 2) BB E (H72) NATER n 47 n NATE R NATEF
Ms. Chan Lai Yee (Note 3) RBRRT (H173) 01 VAt 212 11 mn mn



Notes:

1. Attendances of the Directors appointed/retired during the Year were
made by reference to the number of such meetings held during their
respective tenures.

2. Mr. Pun Kwok Shan was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 26 November 2014.

3. Ms. Chan Lai Yee retired as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 26 November 2014.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year. The
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of
the Group on a going concern basis, and have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, with applicable
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and pursuant to the
relevant statutory requirements.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 63 to 64 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. Relevant procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposal; for controlling excessive capital expenditure; for
maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability of
financial information used in the operations or for publication.
Qualified management personnel of the Company will maintain and
monitor the internal control system on a going concern basis.
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The Board has reviewed the internal control system of the Group,
which covers financial, operational, compliance procedural and
risk management functions, and in particular, considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function. The Board concluded that the internal
control systems are effective and efficient.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all of these non-competition
undertakings have been complied with by the relevant covenantors.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, for their audit services for
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year was
HK$680,000.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company maintains a two-way communication channel to
report the performance of the Company to the Shareholders
and investors. Annual reports, accounts and interim reports
containing full details of the Company’s activities are despatched
to Shareholders and investors. Such reports and other
announcements of the Company can be accessed on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Company also
communicates and discloses its latest business development plan
via road shows, seminars with institutional investors and analysts,
and telephone conferences.

To ensure effective disclosures made to Shareholders and
investors, and to ensure that the same information is made
available to the public at the same time, price sensitive information
is released in the form of official announcements in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with the Shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages the Shareholders to attend those meetings.
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Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
Shareholders. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting.

A proxy form for use at a general meeting of the Company is
enclosed with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are
unable to be present at the meeting should fill out the form and
return the same to the branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company in Hong Kong, so as to appoint a representative,
another Shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as their proxy.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a general
meeting

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws,
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Act”) and applicable
legislation and regulation.

1. An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in
each year. General meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called a special general meeting and may
be held in any part of the world as may be determined by the
Board.

2. Shareholder or Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Company’s registered office
or head office at Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the Act.
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3. The written requisition must state the purposes of the 3. ZEEXNEIAESZEN MNERESER

meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of the requisitionists. The requisition will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the
Company will ask the Board to convene a special general
meeting by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not
in order, the Shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a special general meeting will not
be convened as requested.
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Either (i) the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right
to vote at such meeting; or (ii) not less than one hundred
Shareholders, at the expenses of the Shareholders concerned,
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at a
general meeting or a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitonists
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered
office or head office at Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention
of the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other
requisition.
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3. The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the
annual general meeting; or (ii) convene a special general
meeting by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders,
provided that the requisitionists concerned have deposited a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws,
the Act and applicable legislation and regulation.

If a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person (“Candidate”)
to stand for election as a Director at a general meeting, the
following documents (i) a written notice signed by the concerned
Shareholder expressing his/her intention to propose the Candidate
for election as a Director at the general meeting; (ii) a written
notice signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to
be elected, together with the Candidate’s biographical details as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (iii) the Candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/
her personal data, must be validly lodged at the Company’s head
office at Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong or at Tricor Investor Services Limited, the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
within the period specified in the Bye-laws (the period for lodgment
of such notices shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting).

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.
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Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. Other general enquiries
can be directed to the Company through those communication
channels as shown on the Company’s website www.hkeduii.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

On 22 April 2015, the change of domicile of the Company from
the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of deregistration in the
Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted company under
the laws of Bermuda (“Change of Domicile”) and the adoption
of the memorandum of continuance and Bye-laws in connection
with the Change of Domicile were approved by the Shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company. The details of
the Change of Domicile were disclosed in the Company’s circular
dated 30 March 2015 and the Company’s announcements dated
17 February 2015, 22 April 2015 and 8 May 2015. The Change of
Domicile and the adoption of the memorandum of continuance and
the Bye-laws in substitution of the memorandum of association and
articles of association of the Company became effective on 7 May
2015 (Bermuda time). Save as disclosed above, there was no other
change of constitutional document during the year ended 30 June
2015.

The Company’s memorandum of continuance and Bye-laws are
available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HONG KONG EDUCATION (INT'L) INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (“Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Group”) set out on pages
65 to 200, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Companies Act of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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SEHDMNEEAVBRE ZEREAUBREREER
2015%F6 A30R MG E MBI K KB ZZ B IEF
ERGEEREMEERER GEEREHRR
GERERER URTESHBERBMEREMERE
MER -

EFRGAMEBRARENRE

ERPMEFARAERBEEESHMAGHEMNTEY
BREEARFEAGIINBREER RAEEEM
RNERRIFEANGEMBRE REFETHRER
REMBHRRBLENBRAMER IWEZEFHFE
BBBRIEFEANRFRERMERNERER
fRo -

RN RE

BEENAETREREFNEZ T HZFEAWH
BRELER  WRBAREQREEOMGERULLER
ERZRERRBE M AMEEMAE EEHIMA
BENNBTHEAMEMALTEESAREMEE-F
FEREBE G ASRMNB AR EETE
TR ERANBREFETERRE XRE AT
B UNAEBERSHAMEREAREFEENE
K6 AR PR
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Independent Auditors’ Report
I BN R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2015, and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: PO5769

Hong Kong, 25 September 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeRaRkEthZEla®

For the year ended 30 June 2015 # Z=201546A30H It F[E

2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Bt FRET FET
(#E )
Revenue A 7 208,439 235,805
Other income, gains and losses HEa A~ Uz K E 1R 8 5,251 404
Staff costs 8 THA 10 (58,634) (57,362)
Tutor contractor fee EHEEARE 10 (60,371) (71,996)
Operating lease payments SEFAE R 10 (48,684) (49,669)
Marketing expenses TS HER X (20,576) (19,665)
Printing costs N2 (340) (469)
Depreciation and amortisation WE R (5,250) (6,616)
Change in fair value of investment HEME L AT EZE)
properties 16 2,100 1,500
Change in fair value of unlisted EERZEATEISAERN
convertible notes designated as CREEMNI LT
financial assets at fair value through AMBREER A TEE
profit or loss 21 - 628
Change in fair value of listed LEREEBRREL
held-for-trading investments N EE 56,189 (37)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERE ZEBE
investment 21 - (24,207)
Impairment losses on available-for-sale R #HEIRE 7 REE B
investments 21 (6,512) (28,273)
Other operating expenses HMgEms (46,717) (46,923)
Finance costs s ER 9 - (1,561)
Share of results of joint ventures JEIE & & RR)ELE 20 924 830
Share of results of associates JEMLEE S N RS 19 8,259 1,299
Profit (loss) before tax BREADRA (EE) 10 34,078 (66,312)
Income tax expense FriSfiF X 12 (1,147) (195)
Profit (loss) for the year FERF (HR) 32,931 (66,507)
Other comprehensive income Htt2@EKA (BAX) »
(expense), HIRFRBR
net of income tax
Items that may be reclassified REAJEEHPEE
subsequently to profit or loss: HRZMHFE :
Exchange differences arising on B GIMNE L TSR
translating foreign operations EEREHE5 6 2
Reclassification adjustment on & — R B A F B
exchange differences released BEIWELEZEN
upon disposal of a subsidiary ENOEAE - (85)
Fair value loss on revaluation of EHATHHEERER
available-for-sale investment NFEREE (5,018) (52,480)
Reclassification adjustment upon AHEERERER 2
impairment of available-for-sale BN EAE
investment 6,451 28,273
Reclassification adjustment relating to BRERFELE
available-for-sale investment AHIEERE
disposed of during the year B OEAE - 24,207
Share of exchange differences of FEE—EsE AT
an associate bE 3 = & (19) (2)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeREREMZEKER
For the year ended 30 June 2015 # Z2015%6HA30H L F &

2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Bt FETT FET
(#5E31)
Other comprehensive income (expense) FEEMEEWA (FX)
for the year, net of income tax MBRFT1S 1,420 (85)
Total comprehensive income (expense) H£EZ2EHA (FIX)#EE
for the year 34,351 (66,592)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: AT AT EIEFEERT
(B8
Owners of the Company KABHEE A 33,028 (66,517)
Non-controlling interests I T2 AR A 25 (97) 10
32,931 (66,507)
Total comprehensive income (expense) WA T ATREEFEEZEZ2EEA
for the year attributable to: (AX) %
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ PN 34,448 (66,602)
Non-controlling interests FEIE i (97) 10
34,351 (66,592)
Earnings (loss) per share SEEF (H1R) 13
— Basic (HK cents) —FA GEANY) 6.58 (26.14)

— Diluted (HK cents) —8E E) 6.58 (26.14)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
fReMBERAE

At 30 June 2015 #2015%F6830H

2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
iokza F#ETT FHET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment W WE RE&E 15 14,217 14,344
Investment property "EME 16 29,600 27,500
Goodwill BES 17 60 60
Other intangible assets EtEEEE 18 1,088 1,286
Interests in associates R & N B R R = 19 75,251 53,691
Interests in joint ventures AE SN T RERS 20 10,360 10,936
Loan receivables fEUE X 24 6,854 -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 21 29,239 15,565
Non-current deposits ERBEE 22 7,508 14,796
174,177 138,178
Current assets MENVEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Nk H b e FRIE 23 26,001 18,997
Loan receivables FEULE X 24 23,547 6,033
Amounts due from related parties fEUS B A = FRIB 25 1,108 975
Other financial assets HEMemEE 31 2,609 4,054
Held-for-trading investments FIEEEMKRE 26 32,345 8,420
Current tax assets BNERRIH & B = 384
Fixed deposits held at banks with JREER R BB = 8 A /Y
original maturity over three months RI1TEBF R 27 - 17,430
Bank balances and cash WITHEB MRS 27 105,167 38,922
190,777 95,215
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables and accruals HMENRIERERTER 28 16,396 10,331
Deferred income PRI UL A 7,684 7,509
Current tax liabilities BIEAfIR B E 944 185
Amounts due to related parties FETRE:E A T RUIA 29 195 232
25,219 18,257
Net current assets REEEFE 165,558 76,958
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLEEE 339,735 215,136
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBRRAE
At 30 June 2015 7201546 530H
2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FiET
Non-current liabilities EmBBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIABE 30 1,216 1,022
Provision for long service payments REIRG & B HE 32 1,902 1,921
3,118 2,943
Net assets BEFE 336,617 212,193
Capital and reserves BAR K
Share capital % 7R 33 3,259 96,400
Reserves {1 333,230 115,568
Equity attributable to owners of RAREB AEEER
the Company 336,489 211,968
Non-controlling interests FE 12 P e 128 225
Total equity iR 336,617 212,193

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 200 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

25 September 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Yuk Tong

Director
EER
EE-

HNFEE5E200E BER A M BHMEKREN 201559 A25H
BEESHENRRENZE Wh MIIALTRRESE:

Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

Director
FER
E4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GeEEHE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 # Z=201546A30H It F[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

SARRAABSE
Attributable
Investment Share Accumulated to non-
Share Share  Contributed Merger Capital revaluation options  Translation Statutory profits controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve (losses) Subtotal interests Total
#E RitEH FERUG
23 RRER RhER 1 231} EfGE  REREEE EREHE HERE (&) M Bt i
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK§ 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FEr A TEr TEr TEr AT AT AT AT FEr FHr FEr TEr
(Note ) (ote ii) (Note iv)
(i) (i) (Hitin)
At July 2013 R013E781R 57,600 170,123 - (28321) 446 - - 17 9% (2975) 197,144 942 198,086
Loss for the year | - - - - - - - - - (66,517) (66,517) 10 (66,507)
Exchange differences arising on translating MIEEREELD
foreign operations EXZE - - - - - - - 2 - - 2 - 2
Reclassifcation adjustment on exchange HE-ENBRANARY
differences released upon disposal of EX s ENENHEER
a subsidiary - - - - - - - (85) - - (85) - (85)
Fair value loss on revaluation of ERTHHERENATE
avaiable-for-sale investment | - - - - - (52,480) - - - - (52,480) - (52,480)
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment W/ & R A HERHE
of available-for-sale investment PEAR - - - - - 28273 - - - - 28273 - 28273
Reclassfcation adjustment relating to EERFRLENAREREY
available-for-sale investment disposed of BHAERR
during the year - - - - - 24,207 - - - - 24,207 - 24,207
Share of exchange differences of EE-HRELAZEREE
an associate - - - - - - - ) - - @ - @
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ EE2EREE - - - - - - - (85) - (66,517) (66,602) 10 (66,592)
Issue of ordinary shares RILERG 38,800 37920 - - - - - - - - 76,720 - 76,720
Transaction costs atirbutable to issue of BINEBREGRARA
new ordinary shares - (1,918 - - - - - - - - (1,918 - (1,918
Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments - - - - - - 5897 - - - 5897 - 5897
Share options forfeited - - - - - - (3%8) - - 3% - - -
Changes in ownership interests
in a subsidiary without change of control
(Note 40) (#i3t40) - - - - - - - - - 721 721 (727) -
Disposal of a subsidiary E-HNBAA - - - - - - - - (%) % - - -
At 30 June 2014 A2014£68308 96,400 206,125 - (28,321) 446 - 54% % - (68,273) 211968 225 212193
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

- 2
ea=g £=1 1 IES
For the year ended 30 June 2015 & ZE20159F6A30H -t FE e
Attributable to owners of the Company
LR EIN 1]
Attributable
Investment Share Accumulated to non-
Share Share  Contributed Merger Capital revaluation options  Translation Statutory profits controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve (losses) Subtotal interests Total
#R RitEH FERES
k% RfER RiER efteR (e ] EffE  WMERER ERHE HEHE (BR) [y B @it
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEr FEr FEr FEr & & T TEr T FEr FEr TEr TEr
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i) (Note iv)
(#iti) ) (Witii) i
At 1 July 2014 RA1457R18 96,400 26125 - (28321) 446 - 5499 R - (68.273) 211,968 25 212,193
Profit (loss) for the year - - - - - - - - - 33028 33028 97 2931
Exchange differences arising on translating A
foreign operations EERERZE - - - - - - - 6 - - 6 - 6
Fair value loss on revaluation of ERTMRHERED
avallable-for-sele investment ATEER - - - - - (5018) - - - - (5018) - (5018)
Reclassification adjustment upon impaiment A/ &£ E R E R
of available-for-sale investment A - - - - - 6,451 - - - - 6,451 - 6,451
Share of exchange differences of EE-ERERR2
an associate EizE - - - - - - - (19 - - (19) - (19
Total comprehensive income (expense) ER2ENA (RR) 8%
for the year - - - - - 143 - 13 - 33028 34448 97 34351
Issue of ordinary shares RTEERD 66,570 23,709 - - - - - - - 90,279 - 90,279
Transaction costs attributable to issue of
new ordinary sheres - (2,591) - - - - - - - - (2,591) - (2,591)
Recognition of equity-setled share-based
payments - - - - - - 2385 - - - 2385 - 2385
Share options lapsed - - - - - - (5,499) - - 5499 - - -
Cancellation of share premium account - (227,243) 207,43 - - - - - - - - - -
Effects of Capital Reorganisation
(Note 33 () (189,711) - 159711 - - - - - - - - - -
At 30 June 2015 R01556A308 3259 - 386954 (28321) 45 143 238 I} - (29,746) 336,489 128 336617
Notes: Kiat -
(i)  The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising () AEBEZEHEBIEARRBNR2015F5 8 B HER G =

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

from the cancellation of share premium account and the reduction
of share capital of the Company in May 2015. The balance may be
utilised by the Directors in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws
and all applicable laws, including to eliminate the accumulated losses
of the Company.

The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of Sino Network Group Limited (“Sino Network”)
and the Company issued in exchange for the entire issued share
capital of Express Education Limited in 2010 and Sino Network
pursuant to group reorganisation in 2011.

The capital reserve represented capital contribution arising from
transfers of interest in subsidiaries to shareholders and waiver of
amount due to a shareholder in prior periods.

The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from profit
after tax of a subsidiary established in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") in accordance with the relevant PRC laws until the
PRC statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
subsidiary. The statutory reserve cannot be reduced except where
the approval is obtained from the relevant PRC authority to apply
the amount either in setting off the accumulated losses or increasing
capital.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ERNMHIBRARAEE ZER -ESEARIBARFZ
NEMAI R PR AER AR T AR R AR BREAN
HEARE 2 RetEiEe

& B RE# 3ESino Network Group Limited ([Sino
Network | ) 827K 22 T 48 4% & B & 40 7420104 BL 8 X
Express Education Limited & 7A20114F Sino Network#)&
BEBETRAMBEITHRMOEEHHZERE-

MR AR B A B M R EE N B A R B EE
FELXRIERBREN —BBRRMFE-

EEFBIERBAETEEERDEARKME ([Hh
BRIz MERRERARRRENZEH B2
TEDEERBEEFHEMB AR 2 EMEARS0% R -
EEREB N FRD - HEEISERE T B R R LA R
BRESBEAEHE R ERIIENEARER I
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2015 # Z=201546A30H It F[E

2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
iilz3 FAET FET
Cash flows from operating activities BEIDRENALRE
Profit (loss) before tax BRI ADaS (E1E) 34,078 (66,312)
Adjustments for: BATIER fEH A% -
Share of results of associates [ /N (8,259) (1,299)
Share of results of joint ventures ElEEERRIEE (924) (830)
Bank and other interest income RIT R H  ALF S A A (130) (406)
Finance costs recognised REZPERNITIEE A
in profit or loss - 1,561
Change in fair value of unlisted BT ABRAFERA
convertible notes designated BB EEN
as financial assets at fair value E IR v
through profit or loss NEEE - (628)
Change in fair value of HEthepEEL
other financial assets NEEED 1,445 620
Change in fair value of ITTIREEBERE Y
listed held-for-trading investments N EE (56,189) 37
Change in fair value of "EMEZ A TFEESY
investment property (2,100) (1,500)
Gain on disposal of assets classified HEDEARBIEHEEDN
as held for sale BEEMNKE - (873)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A A R M (6) (1,923)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BE&
plant and equipment RIEREE 243 1,431
Loss on disposal of HEHEE
available-for-sale investment &7 EE = 24,207
Depreciation of property, W -WEREETE
plant and equipment 5,052 6,418
Amortisation of intangible assets EEESE 198 198
Loss on acquisition of a subsidiary Ik iE— M B AR M EE - 59
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ATHIEEIRE 2
investments MEEE 6,512 28,273
Impairment loss on interests N E A AR 2
in an associate B E R = 2,014
Impairment loss on amount due W —HEEANTRIEZ
from a related party BB EE 65 -
Impairment loss recognised on Hh FE W SR IB TERR
other receivables BB E 8 1,673 -
Provision for long service payments REIRG & BE 20 12
Expense recognised in respect of RN AR EE RS
equity-settled share-based payments AEBNFNRAS 2,385 5,897
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBEeRER
For the year ended 30 June 2015 # Z2015%6HA30H L F &
2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FiET
Operating cash flows before movements & & & & & A1 HY
in working capital KERERE (15,937) (3,044)
(Increase) decrease in rental deposits, H&&E& BH K
trade and other receivables Hoth fE W sRIE (35 00) R/ (1,393) 2,148
Increase in loan receivables JE U B FR g hn (24,368) -
Increase in amounts due JRE L R 5 N - FRIEE AN
from related parties (198) (431)
Decrease in listed held-for-trading FHIEEERERD
investments 32,264 10,609
Increase (decrease) in deposits, e B ERNRIER
other payables and accruals FEETE A Ok 4) 6,065 (3,141)
Increase (decrease) in deferred income — #EIEU AL AN (FL4) 175 (2,364)
Decrease in long service payments & HABR 7% & R 2 (39) (355)
Cash (used in) generated from operations &8 (P ) E4HIR D (3,431) 3,422
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund (paid) RE (B EBRER 249 (2,611)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BEARPRBEPERER (59) (47)
Net cash (used in) generated by KRR (FTR) TS 8
operating activities REFRE (3,241) 764
Cash flows from investing activities BREITHREHREQRE
Withdrawal of fixed deposits held at RERINHABB=MEAZ
banks with original maturity over RITEHATER
three months 17,430 11,250
Interest received B U F B 130 351
Dividends received from associate and & W EEE 2~ 7 &
joint venture ABENFHRE 3,380 750
Proceeds from disposal of HEMHEERE
available-for-sale investment Fr 1S 38 = 20,677
Proceeds from disposal of assets HEDEAREHEER
classified as held for sale BEFTSIA = 19,303
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE BEK
plant and equipment BT CE 412 182
Purchase of available-for-sale investments i & A {L §4 & 1% & (18,753) -
Purchase of convertible notes BEEAMKREE - (64,547)
Payment for acquisition of associates g WNS LN BN 19 - (56,500)
Advances to an associate —MIHE S N R TEN & 19 (15,200) -
Placement of fixed deposits held at EARIBEBBE=M@AZ
banks with original maturity over RITEHAER
three months - (17,430)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 88 & %13 - B E LR (5,580) (6,628)
Loan advances to other entity HMEBHERBENAR - (5,978)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of W EEM B A R &R L F R
subsidiaries 37 - (154)
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries &M B QAR € R AFE 38 10 35,049
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFAMNIE ST (18,171) (63,675)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeBeaRER
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z2015F6A30H It FfE

2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
iilz3 FAET FET
Cash flows from financing activities MEITHREHEERE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 277 & 3@A% 1) AT 15 2B 90,279 76,720
Payment of transaction costs attributable 37 < 2577 %7 & E A%
to issue of new ordinary shares FEAE X SR (2,591) (1,918)
Repayment to related parties EEBEATHA (37) (327)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings $R 77 & £ 4th & & Fr 15 2018 - 61,000
Repayments of bank and other borrowings (&8 $£77 & E & & - (61,000)
Interest paid BAFLE - (1,561)
Net cash generated from financing RMEEEMEMIRESFE
activities 87,651 72,914
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBEEWIEINFE
equivalents 66,239 10,003
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYNReRREEEBY
beginning of year 38,922 28,917
Effects of exchange rate changes [EXEFHNTE 6 2
Cash and cash equivalents FEROBER
at the end of year, represented by ReFEMH

bank balances and cash IRITHEB LIRS 105,167 38,922
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERETME

For the year ended 30 June 2015 # Z201546H30H It F &

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman lIslands on 26 January
2011 and continued in Bermuda on 7 May 2015 (Bermuda
time). The registered office of the Company is located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong
is located at Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong. Its shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) since 4 July 2011. As of the end of
the reporting period, due to the diverse shareholding of the
Company, the Company has no controlling shareholder.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
principally engaged in the provision of private educational
services, investment in securities, property investments and
money lending business as set out in Notes 40, 19 and
20 respectively. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the function
currency of the Company.

—HREH
RATAB—KHR2011F1A26BRHAERF ST
S R R20155 A7H (B RERME) RBRE
GENERECER AR -AARMNEMMER
£z Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda® R ER BB T E &L M3
BEBFALEE YD HBI8IRI7TIECE - LRk
B2011F7R4B RN B BB E RS ER A A
([BERRFT)) ER ET - R AMEBR - ARAR
AR ARFE 2 B - AN BN AR AR AR R o

ARFA—IRERRAT - MRMA IR
40 - 19R20FTE A FZME AR BE R RE
BAREERBRELARE RS REES
WA B B T - A A AR E R
BEBE R BB IR RE R 2 FE R — 5
R -

RAMBHRERARNRRINEERET (ET])
£

o



APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS(s)”), HKFRS(s), amendments and interpretations
(“HK(IFRIC) - Int") (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"):

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Levies

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these

new standards and amendments will have a material effect on

the financial information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z2015F6A30H It FfE

2.

ERAMIIRESETERMBEREEN([F
RMBEREERN])

RAFE AEBCERATIHEEGFNAE
(BB EGHEAE]) B ZHF] MEERTER
SR ([BFRGHER]) BEYBREE
Al -grT kR ([55 (BRMBRE2BLE
g)—2E]) (ATHEIHTREETEEY
BamE2ERL)

RV BERE REERE
AERIZE 105
FREVBRE
HERIZE125% &
BEEHER
F27HRZAER]
(20115 &&57])
BEGREREISE HESBREERDH
ZIEFT =N
FEEFTERE36H  FEWMEEZANRE
Z1EFT TR E
BT ERFEI ITETAZER R
Z1EFT BB
78 (BRMBEHRSE BB

BELZB®)
—BER215%

ESHRHERARSEMENRET ST HWTE

HERERTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & ZE20159F6A30H -t FE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an
investment entity and require a reporting entity that meets
the definition of an investment entity not to consolidate its
subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss in its consolidated and separate
financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required
to:

e obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose
of providing them with investment management services;

e commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of
its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity, the application
of the amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or
the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first
time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify
the requirements relating to the offset of financial assets and
financial liabilities. Specifically, the amendments clarify the
meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’
and ‘simultaneous realization and settlement’.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The
Group has assessed whether certain of its financial assets and
financial liabilities qualify for offset based on the criteria set
out in the amendments and concluded that the application
of the amendments has had no impact on the amounts
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
for the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable
amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had
been allocated when there has been no impairment or
reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
applicable to when the recoverable amount of an asset
or a CGU is measured at fair value less costs of disposal.
These new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions and valuation techniques used which are in
line with the disclosure required by HKFRS 13 Ffair Value
Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39 Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for the
first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 39
provide relief from the requirement to discontinue hedge
accounting when a derivative designated as a hedging
instrument is novated under certain circumstances. The
amendments also clarify that any change to the fair value
of the derivative designated as a hedging instrument arising
from the novation should be included in the assessment and
measurement of hedge effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As
the Group does not have any derivatives that are subject to
novation, the application of these amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies for the
first time in the current year. HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 addresses
the issue as to when to recognise a liability to pay a levy
imposed by a government. The interpretation defines a levy,
and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise to the
liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy, as
identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides guidance
on how different levy arrangements should be accounted for,
in particular, it clarifies that neither economic compulsion nor
the going concern basis of financial statements preparation
implies that an entity has a present obligation to pay a levy
that will be triggered by operating in a future period.

HK(FRIC) — Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The
application of this Interpretation has had no material impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ERAFMIIREEITIEEMEREEN([E
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BMEREEN]) (&)
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

REEW AR A T2 BB HREB ZF

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: A NEIERI BB S EREER
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BB ELER ST A
el
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts? BB TSRS %R HERLTERB?
F145
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB IS A REEPEH WA’
Customers? F155%
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of BB ELER IR EEEE 2 fEm
Interests in Joint Operations? %1 15ﬁ2f§§ ZANERFE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable BESHERFEIE N AIESTEREEAFR
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and BB SFTEREI8R  2EF
Amortisation? ZfKET

Amendments to HKAS 16

Agriculture: Bearer Plants*

7_g/ll = A /EE\IJ%16%E&

B AEEMEY

and HKAS 41 BA G LR 415
Zf’}‘ET
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative* BB ERrER| A A
FBLRZMEF]
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate B ER B BTG R 2 HE R
Financial Statements? F279 2185
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BB EHwELER WEERHEEE QR
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FIOHRRBAESR GERAIZEACEE
Associate or Joint Venture? AR FE285R 218 7] g g EE
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying BB %S 4R REER EAZEA
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Exception* E105% BEAMB R 2 BI5ME S
HEEBEI29H K
BEESEER
Fo85E 2 187]
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to EATEHRELER 2 20129 £20144F HH
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle CH| HEBMBHRELER
2 E U

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets; and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value
through other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement

category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 may
have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until
a detailed review has been completed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets and clarify that
the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the amendments
to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not
explicitly required for all interim periods. However, the
disclosures may need to be included in condensed interim
financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 /nterim Financial
Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would result
in the depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds
being assessed at currency level. The amendments apply from
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in
the financial statements in which the amendments are first
applied. Any initial adjustment arising should be recognised in
retained earnings at the beginning of that period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is presented
elsewhere within the interim financial report but outside the
interim financial statements. The amendments require that
such information be incorporated by way of a cross-reference
from the interim financial statements to the other part of
the interim financial report that is available to users on the
same terms and at the same time as the interim financial
statements.

The Group has not applied the other new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of other
new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these other new and revised HKFRSs would have
a material impact on its results of operations and financial
position. The Group does not plan to adopt these standards
prior to their mandatory effective date.

Comparative figures

In prior year, the Group's loan and interest receivables of
approximately HK$6,033,000 were included in “trade and
other receivables” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In current year, the comparative amount of such loan
and interest receivables has been reclassified to conform with
the current year's presentation and presented in the face of
the consolidated statement of financial position within “loan
receivables”.

In addition, in prior year, the Group’s gain on disposal
of listed held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$1,924,000 was included in “other income, gains and
losses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. In current year, the comparative
amount of such gain on disposal of listed held-for-trading
investments has been reclassified to conform with the
current year’s presentation and presented in the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income within “change in fair value of listed
held-for-trading investments”.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, the collective
term which includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for the investment
property and certain financial instruments that are measured
by fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control) (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the

assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control) (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interests were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as at
that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities in which
the common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities are consolidated
using the existing book values from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or
excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling parties’ interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period
or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate
or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof)
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 # Z201596H30H - FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Franchising income includes initial fees and continuing
franchise fees. Initial fees are recognised when the Group has
performed substantially all initial services and other obligations
required of the franchisor (the Group) under the franchise
agreements. Continuing franchise fees represent fees charged
for the use of continuing rights granted by a franchise
agreement, or for other services provided during the period
of a franchise agreement, are recognised as revenue as the
services are provided or the rights are used.

Income from provision of tutoring and education services is
recognised when the tutoring and educational services are
rendered.

Management and consultancy fee income is recognised when
the management and consultancy services are rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive the payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy below.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents the tuition fee received in
advance. Deferred income is recognised as revenue when the
tuition services are rendered.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 # Z201596H30H - FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lumpsum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “translation reserve” (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which
all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of

the retained interest becomes a financial asset),

that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
is re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of a joint arrangement that do not result in
the Group losing joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
and government-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments under the requirements
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is recognised when
the employees have rendered services entitling them to the
benefits. The amounts recognised are determined at the
management’s best estimate of the future cash outflow for
settlement of the obligations and measured on a discounted
basis, if the effect is material.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments arrangements

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium/contributed surplus. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits/losses.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit (loss) before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Annual Report 2015
20154 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z2015F6A30H It FfE

3.

EXEBE (&)

RE (&)

EERE ()
ELERERENEENTERRNBEHARNE
EEREESENEEERAEREEMN M
SIBEBIFER

HEFEURFEEAHENREMENETEHIR
BEIELEHBREEMS  HEEENBERES
HEMEHKE  BRIFFBRREKD - ERE
MERTHERNERZERENEMEENE
R EEMENAEEATRHE MIEEB
B ARRREHKE

FTERZHRREERE
BIEIRRAE R RN B s P fE R - e BN E A
PHEHWANEZENESERAIAR B LB
SN RIBNEA R E R TR IR & 0 Rl E b 2 T UL
ARERN R o A AR A SRR IR
REBEHPINRARFESL  BIMBEZE T
AXBEHZRAE -

W% -BERER

ME- -BEIRREEERFFEESHES Rk
BREIFEEENEFTRLEE L (RERR
B DRAABREERNRFHERERNR
FHREE R (A ) RERA ISR BRI

BEREAEAFRIABREMBAR AL NG E
RepBEERNE At EAFEH RREE
RFTETTER S MERRT AR EREE
B B K IR ATIE DB

103



104

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

BRHE (BB REEEERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBERMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & Z20159F6A30H It FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transactions costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly classified into the
following specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Annual Report 2015
20155 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z=2015F6A30H It FE

3.

EXEBE (&)

&MIA (&)

eHEE
AEENEREETEDERUTARBER %
NFEFARSE ([RAFEFABSED O
BE -AHEE([AIHEEEREENRER
REWFE nBEGATeREEZEERBNM
TE - WR Y FHERE T LABE - T — RT3
BECZOMEEDIRE T R MEERMR LRI
Re—MRIABEEHRARTHERE NBEOFRE
RRARNEEZERMEERER -

B EX

BERMFE A ER AR BRER TABHERA
Ky BRMBWARTTE - BRMESBNER T
AWMFEHERFHRBEFEY (HER) HBHER
BAFTRICGRS WA (BRERAKRERN REBE—
MAOWMBENKCKRERED B KHMA K
Hﬁﬂ/ﬁn{ﬁ‘ﬂﬁuﬁ)i%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%‘ﬁfﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁmﬂ

# )

BEH TR (ZEMNERATFABRFEASEA
RAFEFABRZEREERIN) HRATIZ
BRI REERR -

BRFEFABZNEHBEE
EERMEEDBR/FFEETHIE
Baihs - B AR A ES ABR

B ATEA
FELY 2

107



108

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

BRHE (BB REEEERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBERMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & Z20159F6A30H It FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 6.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from related
parties, fixed deposits held at banks with original maturity over
three months and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

BEXEEE (&)

&MIA (&)

eHEE (F)

BT EFABSAI S REEN RS HIART
ERBBRENS EAEBEBRBRTRENE
HARREREARV T ERZEMEEREE
M—HAZREMFMZINTER ZeREEN
AR A ©

RTHMERARENS  BRATEABRE
BERIME A LA A IR AR (2 BB

B HMERMEEMS RENERIENE
oo

o HETAIRZHUFHREBAMBREE: 3

s ERAR MABHALELEAR K

o EBRABAREERKEXMBTEMR: X

s HMHREMETHMEEXREZETRMS-

%rﬂéﬁ?(1§\JZZD%3%FEHQE§M)E’J%:F“*
Bl EHEMEUpﬂﬁﬁj/}&@ﬁ’]é?ﬂ%g%?\\%ﬁ
BEET N GRE BREFASRE EEBE
1A RE ’E?EK’EI&EEEZH%AZ“‘%'iﬂ/—\ﬁiﬂtiﬂ
PR T 2 S35 {5 A BRI N 30 2 IR BUE I - A K2
I%W%imﬁ%/gf&iﬁﬁjfﬁéﬁik%ifuﬁz KRB R Z A
"‘_‘ZZZ{IZO

‘—Cll'



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under equity. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reserved
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including other payables and accruals and
amounts due to related parties) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that management has made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group's investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
rather than through sale.
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on

investment properties over time,
Therefore,
investment properties, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any
income taxes on disposal of its investment properties.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of intangible asset with indefinite
useful life

Determining whether the intangible asset is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating unit
to which intangible asset has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

Provision for long service payments

The provision for long service payments is based on the
best estimate of the future payments required to settle the
obligations under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in
relation to the employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

In making this judgement, the management mainly considers
the number of current employees who have achieved the
required number of years of service to the Group, at the
end of the reporting period, who are eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
employee turnover rate as well as salary growth. Any change
in these estimates will affect the provision to be recognised.

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
observable market data are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation and
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. The use of
valuation models and assumptions in valuing these financial
instruments is subjective and requires varying degrees of
judgement. Notes 6 and 16 provide detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various assets and
liabilities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

The management reviews the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new shares issues and debt financing.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EMITH
Categories of financial instruments ESRMIAEB
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Financial assets EREE
Fair value through profit or loss BAFER ABR
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEHRE 32,345 8,420
Derivative financial instruments PTESRmIA 2,284 2,199
Contingent consideration HARE 325 1,855
Loans and receivables (including BRI EWFRIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BRAEEEREEEY) 161,391 91,656
Available-for-sale investments A HIHEIRE 29,239 15,565
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost [ =D PN 8,206 4,960
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBEEEEREREEK

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade and other receivables,
loan receivables, amounts due from related parties,
derivative financial instruments, contingent consideration,
held-for-trading investments, fixed deposits held at banks
with original maturity over three months, bank balances and
cash, other payables and accruals and amounts due to related
parties. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate the effects of
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

AEENTZESRMIAGEAHHEERE B
No At FEMCERIA ~ FEURE K - FEURRRSE A L3RR
TESRTE HAKRE FEEERE RI
HI B8 = E A M IRTTEMFR  RITESHRRIR
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FENBRENTX -EEEBEEENERZFR
B - DAREORE B I B WU B 8 E e e o

PERTAKEEERFERRZIAME A
SEAR ZRRERILEEH -



FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances and fixed-rate loan receivables.
The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
related primarily to its fixed deposits held at banks with
original maturity over three months. The Directors consider
the Group’s exposure of the fair value interest rate risk on
fixed deposits is not significant as the interest bearing fixed
deposits are within short maturity period.

The Directors consider the Group’s exposure of the cash flow
interest rate risk on its bank balances and loan receivables are
insignificant. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities (Notes 21 and 26). The
management has appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective listed equity securities had been
10% higher/lower:

e the post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$2,701,000 (2014: post-tax loss
for the year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$2,260,000) as a result of the change in fair value of
listed security investments; and

e the investment revaluation reserve for the year would
increase/decrease by HK$2,130,000 (2014: nil) as
a result of change in fair value of the listed security
investments.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is the carrying amount
of those assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Except for the financial assets described as below,
the management considers the credit risk on the remaining
financial assets minimal.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
on trade and other receivables with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits held
at banks with original maturity over three months and bank
balances is minimal as such amounts are placed with banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings or
good reputation, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and
reserve borrowing facilities which are deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group has available short and
medium term bank loan facilities of HK$12,000,000 (2014:
HK$12,000,000).

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay and includes both interest and
principal cash flows for non-derivative financial liabilities.

Moreover, the following tables detail the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross
outflows on those derivatives instruments that require gross
settlement. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management considers that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of
the cash flows of these derivatives.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from market interest rates
prevailing at the end of reporting period.
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(i) The Vendor Put Option refers to a put option held by the
non-controlling shareholders of Able Investment Development
Limited (“Able Investment”) arising from business combination
and the amount disclosed above is the maximum amount
the Group could be required to pay under the Acquisition
Agreement (as defined in Note 31), if the conditions specified
in the Acquisition Agreement have been fulfilled (see Note 31).
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period the
management considers that it is unlikely that any amount will be
payable under the Vendor Put Option.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & Z20159F6A30H It FE e
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &MIA (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEEERERBE (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) AEELmEE (&)
More than
1 year
Weighted On demand but not Total
average or within more than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amounts
mEFY BRERE 1ELEE FURAL
flE 1R FBi#sE mEME IREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 30 June 2015 ®20155%6A30H
Non-derivative financial liabilities /T4 =@ E B
Other payables and accruals Hi BB R ERE R N/A TEF 8,011 - 8,011 8,011
Amounts due to related parties  JEfH#AE A L FIE N/A i 195 - 195 195
8,206 - 8,206 8,206
Derivatives - gross settlement  fI£ IR -BREHARH
Vendor Put Option (as defined in & 7 Rk 834k (T & L H1:#31)
Note 31) (note 1) (Hizi) NIA TR - 4,826 4,826 -
As at 30 June 2014 #2014%6A30H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ F#T4 2@ E B
Other payables and accruals Hib N FIBREER N/A 758 £ 4,728 - 4,728 4,728
Amounts due to related parties  JE{H#AE A L 7B N/A i 232 - 232 232
4,960 - 4,960 4,960
Derivatives - gross settlement ITETRA-IEEREE
Vendor Put Option (as defined in & 77 2 0 204 (£ £ B H1i#31)
Note 31) (note i) (Histi) N/A T A - 4,826 4,826 -
Notes: Bt -

() FEIRAHEENREEERARAR ([FRE
A SRR R B EBA G ELZNR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &EMIA (&)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments eMIAZAFERE
This note provides information about how the Group AR BERNSENNETE TeMEERS
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial BEENRATEIERER -
liabilities.
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that RIEEEEEERELNTFEMENIEELHETE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis REEHLFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities REETH»EMEEREREBBENSWEHRIR
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. NFEHE TRAEEHHBUOANEFTZES
The following table gives information about how the fair values MEENSRABCAFE(LERFMAMERS
of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined EREAEIER) o
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2015 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
1201556 A30H LFEE HERER FUERGARRA
SMEE SMAR NFE B EXGARE DEERE
Held-for-trading Listed equity securities in Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
non-derivative Hong Kong - approximately market
financial assets HK$32,345,000
(2014: approximately
HK$8,420,000) (Note 26)
BIEEEHTAE B LmRAES- £ ERMEMMEAE Sl
PREE #)32,345,00078 7T
(20144 : 478,420,000 7T)
(Hizt26)
Listed available-for-sale Listed equity securities in Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
investment Hong Kong - approximately market
HK$21,300,000
(2014: approximately
HK$15,565,000)
(Note 21)
THAHREERE BELmRARES - 1 ERMEMREAE TEA
#)21,300,0007% &
(20144 : £715,565,0007% 1)
(Hfz21)
Derivative financial Purchaser call option on Level 3 Binomial option pricing model The higher the volatility,
instruments issued share capital of Able the higher the fair
[nvestment — approximately Key unobservable input is: value
HK$670,000 volatility of 31% (2014: 28%)
(2014: Insignificant) over the option life by making
(Note 31) reference to volatility of the
similar companies in education
business
fTESBIE FRBECBIRAZEAR  £=4 “EABETERN HERE
¥ 5 — 49670,0007% 7T AHERS

(20145 : FEK)
(H:#31)

TETBEGASE £
BUHEEBARZKIE &
BEERNZRIEA31%
(2014% :28% )
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &@MTIA(#Z)

124

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

EMIAZAFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that IR MR EZ L TFEIBENERELHEE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REBHLFE (&)
Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2015 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
#201556A30HH LFEE HEAER AUBERBANRA
SMEE SMAR NFE 5 EXBANE NEERFE
Derivative financial Vendor Put Option on Level 3 Binomial option pricing model The higher the volatility,
instruments equity investment in Able the higher the fair
Investment — Insignificant Key unobservable input is: value
(2014: Insignificant) volatility of 31% (2014: 28%)
(Note 31) over the option life by making
reference to volatility of the
similar companies in education
business
TEEBIA MERRERARE 2 E ZIEARETERS KRIERR
BEhRLHE-TER ATERR
(20145 : FEX) FETABERARE  £2
(Hi31) BUHBEEBARLKE B
EERAZRIER3L%
(2014% : 28% )
Derivative financial Purchaser put option on Level 3 Binomial option pricing model The higher the volatility,
instruments equity investment in Able the higher the fair
[nvestment — approximately Key unobservable input is: value
HK$1,614,000 volatility of 31% (2014: 28%)
(2014: approximately over the option life by making
HK$1,915,000) reference to volatility of the
(Note 31) similar companies in education
business
THEEBIEA MNERRERAREZ EZH “EABETERS RIERR
BARL - ATERR
#)1,614,0007% 7T IENTBEH A TR £22

(20144 : #1,915,000% 7T.)
(B#31)

BUABEBARZKEE B
BERAZKIEA3L%
(20145 : 28% )



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and liabilities that

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Financial assets/
financial liabilities

EMEESMAR

Fair value as at Fair value
30 June 2015 hierarchy
201556 A30HH NFEE

LFE 3
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6. &MIA (&)

EMIAZAFEHE (&)

BRI EZELFENENTRAEHEE

REGALTFHE (&)

Valuation
technique(s) and
significant input(s)
HEHER
EXBARE

Relationship of
unobservable input(s)
to fair value
AUERBANRA
NFEERE

Derivative financial
instruments

TEEMIA

Purchaser put option on Level 3
equity investment in Link

Resources (Asia) Limited

(“Link Resources”)

- Insignificant

(2014: approximately

HK$284,000)

(Note 31)

REA & () EF=R
BRAR (B

B BARE

Z BT b e

-1TER

(20144 - #284,000% 7T.)

(hrez3l)

Discounted cash flow analysis

Key unobservable inputs are:
projected annual net profit
after tax (“NPAT”) of Link
Resources and its subsidiary
ranging from approximately
HK$1,941,000 to
HK$7,564,000 for the financial
years ending 31 December
2015, 2016, 2017 and
2018 (2014: approximately
HK$952,000 to HK$4,743,000
for the financial years ending
31 December 2014, 2015
and 2016); discount rate
ranging from 3.02% to 3.04%
(2014 3.44% to 3.49%);
and scenario probability
distribution ranging from 20%
to 60% (2014: 20% to 60%)

FRAGRESM

TERABER 2 HALE:
BULARENBRAEE
20154 « 20164 « 20174 |
2018512 A31BILBI B ERE
IR EERBAEH ([
MEH )N T 491,941,000
VT 27,564,000 7T (2014
FHZE2014% 2015 1
20161231 R ILBI B ERE
#7952,0007% 70 24,743,000
BIL) MR ENT3.02%
Z3.04% (2014% : 3.44% %
3.49% ) KBRS R
N TF20%Z60% (20144 :
20%%60% )

The higher the projected
NPAT, the lower the
fair value; the higher
the discount rate,
the lower the fair
value; the higher
the probability
assignment for
favourable scenarios,
the lower the fair
value and vice versa

fEEtEREaN e
RFERE FRE
s ATEDE:
BMER et
DIERARE  RFER
& RZ A
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

6. EMIA (&)
EMIAZAFEHE (&2)

(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that IR MR EZ L TFEIBENERELHEE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REBHLFE (&)
Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2015 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
#201556A30HH LFEE HEAER AUBERBANRA
SMEE SMAR NFE 5 EXBANE NEERFE
Contingent consideration Contingent consideration Level 3 Discounted cash flow analysis The higher the projected
receivable for equity NPAT, the lower the
investment in Seasoned Key unobservable inputs are: fair value; the higher
Leader Limited (“Seasoned projected average combined the discount rate,
Leader”) - Insignificant NPAT of Seasoned Leader and the lower the fair
(2014: HK$1,497,000) its subsidiaries for the two value; the higher
(Note 31) years ending 31 December the probability
2014 and 2015 ranging from assignment for
approximately HK$14,170,000 favourable scenarios,
to HK$17,012,000 (2014: the lower the fair
approximately HK$11,175,000 value and vice versa
to HK$18,625,000); discount
rate of 2.84% (2014: 3.46%);
and scenario probability
distribution ranging from
12.50% to 50% (2014:
12.50% to 50%)
HARE AJUER EF=R TRASRESN ERICR A TN

Seasoned Leader Limited
([Seasoned Leader |)
BAKEZ
FARE-TEX
(20144 : 1,497,000 7T)
(H#31)

RFERE FRE
AR AFEDE:
BHERZFEEMH
DIRBR ATER

& R IR

FTERAEEH AL Seasoned
Leader 2 £ I B A 7] B 220145
K2015F 128315 IEMAFE
AL RS SRR ]
- #)14,170,0007% 7T
£17,012,0007 1T
(20144 : #911,175,000
B 218,625,000/ L) : #13R
KD 84% (2014F :3.46% ) : |
BRATREHE D IRN T12.50%%E
50% (20144 : 12.50%250% )



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments
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6. &MIA (&)

EMIAZAFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that IR MR EZ L TFEII BN EREELHEE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REBHLFE (&)
Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2015 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
#2015%6A30A 1 LFE HEAER AUERBANRA
SMEE SMAR NEE %5 EXBANE NEERE
Contingent consideration Contingent consideration Level 3 Discounted cash flow analysis The higher the projected
receivable for equity NPAT, the lower the
investment in Link Key unobservable inputs are: fair value; the higher
Resources — approximately projected aggregate consolidated the discount rate,
HK$325,000 NPAT of Link Resources and the lower the fair
(2014 approximately its subsidiary for the three years value; the higher
HK$358,000) ending 31 December 2017 the probability
(Note 31) ranging from approximately assignment for
HK$6,611,000 to favourable scenarios,
HK$14,282,000 (2014: for the the lower the fair
two years ending value and vice versa
31 December 2014 ranging from
approximately HK$4,737,000
to HK$7,086,000); discount
rate ranging of 3.02% (2014:
3.12%); and scenario probability
distribution ranging from 20% to
60% (2014: 20% to 60%)
FARE PLENS BTN E=R TRASRESN et RRgENRE

REBZIRRE

—#1325,0007% 7T (20144 :

#41358,0008T) (#:231)

IETAERG AR B A;
LEMBRREZ2017F12A
SIHIE=AEE 2 it Ak
M40 F B3N T 496,611,000
¥ 7T 2 14,282,000 7T (2014
EHE2014F12A318 1EH
{EEE N T 494,737,000 T E
7,086,000 ) : #1373 £3.02%
(20144 :3.12% ) : Ri5 R A&
RN F20%E60%
(20144 : 20%%60% )

RFERE FRE
A5 AVERE:

BHER et

DIkARE  RFER
& RZIRA
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FEeMBERMEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015 & Z20159F6A30H It FE e
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &MIR (&)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMTAZAFEME (£2)
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial HHREEREBEZ L TFEIBEZEEELH
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring BERLHERGBS L FE
basis
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERAEBECEBHEHKRARGAWBEHREREENS
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in BEERCHEBENRAEREERNFEES-
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.
Fair value hierarchy KFERE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—8 k| E=R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 30 June 2015 1®2015%6H308
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 21,300 = = 21,300
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 32,345 = = 32,345
Derivative financial instruments TEeRIA - = 2,284 2,284
Contingent consideration HARE - - 325 325
53,645 - 2,609 56,254
As at 30 June 2014 201456 A30H
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 15,565 - - 15,565
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 8,420 - - 8,420
Derivative financial instruments fTEemITA - - 2,199 2,199
Contingent consideration HARE - - 1,855 1,855
23,985 - 4,054 28,039
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period. HANE—REE L 2 AT EEAEE-
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Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
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R MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z=2015F6A30H It FE
6. &MIA (&)

EMIAZAFEHE (&)

BRI FEHBHHENT -

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET FET

At the beginning of the year REH] 4,054 2,582

Change in fair value recognised REZERZAFEED

in profit or loss (included in (BT AEMUA - W R &)

other income, gains and losses) (1,445) (620)

Acquisition of associates (Note 19) W B & N A] (M15F19) = 2,092

At the end of the year NGRS 2,609 4,054

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reporting segments have been
identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with the accounting policies conform
to HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the executive
Directors, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
of the Group, in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performances.

The Group’s operations have been organised based on
four operating divisions as described below. Similarly, the
information reported to the CODM is also prepared on such
basis. No operating segments identified by the CODM have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

WBARSBEH

AEENEERRENBERETE BT BN R
EEAM G BRAROAIERRERLLE TN
BA BERBREHEARKRENERERLERESE
(FEV’“«%’*E&%%J)E’J%ﬂﬁi%m%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
DE D B E IR K E R

AREBEZZEEER T At a9 /@ & & 7 &
TR - R MEREERRERENE
BB RBEZEERE HEERAEE AT HRED
AR - WRRA BR K LERREMBI L ED

#B e
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 & Z20159F6A30H It FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

are as follows:

° Provision of
private
educational
services

° Investments in
securities

o Property
investments

o Money lending

secondary tutoring services,
secondary day school education,
primary tutoring services, skill
courses and test preparation
courses, franchising income,
English language training and test
preparation courses, technical
consultation, management and
software licensing services,
overseas studies consultation
services and the international
foundation year courses

trading of securities

investments of properties for rental

income and capital appreciation

providing loans as money lender

BARSBEH (&)

HEMS AKRENAREREEDEMT

o RHERA -
#E
AR 75

REME RS ERBER
RE NEHERS R
BRIZLEHRE FRT
BN -~ BT N &
AR BT B
K B R AL AR S Tt
B AIRISIA LGN E
FEAE I

[ ]
o
i
[
Ik

\
i
i
[
S

- REVEURRES KA
KMEXRIEE

tEE - FRERARHER
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FEaMBHREME
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z=2015F6A30H It FE
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSBEH (&)
(Continued)
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) #EBUTA B 4B
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REBIRGE R A RED IO EHWA T
results by operating and reportable segments: EOTWT
Provision of private
educational services Investment in securities Property investments Money lending Consolidated
REELABFTRE BRRES MERRA (34 it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$'000  HKS000 ~ HK$'000  HKSUOO — HK$'000  HKSUOO — HK$'000  HKSOO0 — HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET TFET

Segment revenue AEBA 202,339 234,357 - - 662 1,448 5,438 - 208,439 235,805
Segment results DHEE (3,032) 3,693 68,578 (237) 807 2,481 4,407 (10) 70,760 5,927
Change in fair value of BERRLTEFABREN

unlisted convertible notes SREEMIFE LT ATHA

designated as financial assets at ~ ZEAFEEE

fair value through profit or loss - 628
Change in fair value of HiteMEEZ DT EED

other financial assets (1,445) (620)
Loss on disposal of HEATREEREZFR

available-for-sale investment - (24,207)
Impairment losses on AHEERERBEER

available-for-sale investments (6,512) (28,273)
Impairment loss on interests in R ERAERRMERR

an associate - (2,014)
Finance costs MKER - (1,561)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ JE{HAEAFIEE 924 830
Share of results of associates J?s‘fﬁﬂ?#ﬁé’& EES 8,259 1,299
Unallocated corporate income RABRARRA 130 4,699
Unallocated corporate expenses iﬁ@ﬂ’& AR% (38,038) (23,020)
Profit (loss) before tax FRBEAT R R (B598) 34,078 (66,312)

The CODM assesses segment results using a measure of BEEEREENEE RO 2R TGS
operating profit whereby certain items are not included HEE ERPETHEHEUYREBRBEENRL
in arriving at the segment results of the operating DD EENAN BIBERIERAFER
segments (i.e. change in fair value of unlisted convertible ABZHNEREENIELTMARKEER
notes designated as financial assets at fair value HEHthS@EECATEEZS DEAHEE
through profit or loss and other financial assets, loss on Tx’éfZEﬂEo Al L EHE IS E RN & N R
disposal of available-for-sale investment, impairment HZREBE PKER BEAERAE
losses on available-for-sale investments and interests EOEEBERRESE KO ERARRAR
in an associate, finance costs, share of results of joint AOBEABIMRAE -

ventures, share of results of associates, unallocated
corporate income and unallocated corporate expenses).
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FEeMBERMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & Z20159F6A30H It FE e
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSBEH (£)
(Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PPEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AEFIEERAREDBOENEERE
liabilities by operating and reportable segments: ENMTaT
Provision of private
educational services Investment in securities Property investments Money lending Consolidated
RELABFTRE RRES MERRA (34 it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TET

HK$'000  HKSOOO — HK$'000  HKSDOO — HK$'000  HK$0OO
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Assets RE
Segment assets AHEE 43,462 45,434 32,345 8,420
Unallocated assets AAEAE
Fixed deposits held at banks RIHEBAB=EAHN
with original maturity over RITEBER
three months
Bank balances and cash RITEBRES
Interests in associates REE DRI ER
Interests in joint ventures REEDRINER
Other financial assets HthemEE
Current tax assets HSREEE
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
Other corporate assets HEMAREE
Liabilities R
Segment liabilities AHEE 20,451 19,186 3,901 -
Unallocated liabilities RARAR
Current tax liabilities HSREAE
Deferred tax liabilities EXHERRE
Other corporate liabilities HERREE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to the operating segments
other than fixed deposits held at banks with original
maturity over three months, bank balances and
cash (other than those included in the money
lending segment), interests in associates and joint
ventures, other financial assets, current tax assets,
available-for-sale investments and other corporate
assets. Goodwill is allocated to operating segment as
described in Note 17; and

e all liabilities are allocated to the operating segments
other than current tax liabilities, deferred tax
liabilities and other corporate liabilities.

29,978 278718 31,310 951 137,095 82,683

- 17,430
104,475 38,233
75,251 53,691
10,360 10,936

2,609 4,054
- 384
29,239 15,565

5,925 10,417

364,954 233,393

137 116 - - 24,489 19,302
944 185
1,216 1,022

1,688 691

28,337 21,200

REEHBERRRAD B2 HHEERNE
HTE -

BRIREI B BBE=EANRITERT
TORTERLERE (HFABED
ERON) REBERRRAERAINE
m HthemEE NRRBEEE A
HHEREREMAREEN FIEE
ENORELEDR -HBDIOREL
o Eb (BN REL7 PR - R

BREVEAR IR A  EEHRRE R EAM
AABREIN FIBREOIEEEED

#Beo



7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Other segment information

Provision of private
educational services

Investment in securities
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Fe BB RMEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z=2015F6A30H It FE

7. WARSEHEH (&)

(c) Rty BEH

Property investments

Money lending

Consolidated

RO ANTBHS gHEs nERR 5t et
2015 014 2015 04 2015 014 2005 014 2005 2014
HKS000  HKSOO0 — HKS'000  HKSO0D ~ HKS'000  HKSOOO  HKS'O00  HKSOOD — HKS'000  HKS000
FAT AT TET  TET  FRLT  TET  TAE  TET  TEE TR
Capitel additons EAFE 5572 7308 8 1630 . - - 35 5580 9253
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 4,814 6,376 376 235 - - 60 5 5,250 6,616
Provision for long service payments ~ REIRE ¢ E & 20 12 - - - - - - 20 12
The Group’s assets, revenue and results for the year REBRRFERBMREE NI E A ZE
derived from activities located outside Hong Kong are BHEE WAREEIRAEBRAFE
less than 10% of the Group’s total assets, revenue and REEE WA REENLOS -
results for the year.
No individual customer accounted for over 10% of the AR EE E A - A E B 3 2 A 2N 5 [ 4B U
Group’s total revenue during both years. AREE10% °
Revenue from major services (d) EERBUEA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by services is as REEIZRB D EHRASHTIT :
follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#&T FET
Secondary tutoring services FEHE RS 157,361 189,501
Secondary day school education FHARRE 2,487 -
Primary tutoring services, skill courses /NEBEERE  BERER
and test preparation courses e R 12,834 13,123
Franchising income R s g I 3,582 3,048
English language training and test HERBIEIIRERRE
preparation courses 21,552 24,295
Technical consultation, management RITsE -~ BB LT R
and software licensing services 3,973 3,910
Overseas studies consultation services SN E 4 RS 550 480
Rental income el A 662 1,448
Loan interest income B BUWA 5,438 -
Total revenue U A 208,439 235,805
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FEaMBEREME
For the year ended 30 June 2015 & ZE20159F6A30H -t FE e
8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HtA - WEBREBIR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
F#TT FET
(#=E %)
Change in fair value of other financial assets  H fih % §i & 2= A & & (1,445) (620)
Impairment loss on LATRIE B RRE S 1B
— interests in an associate —REE AT MRS - (2,014)
— other receivables — E b FE YRR (1,673) -
Interest income on RKETHEEHFEHRA
— bank deposits —RITFER 92 212
— other loan and receivables —H A B3 & E YR IE 38 194
Gain (loss) on disposal of HENUTSERN K (E18)
— property, plant and equipment —W%E B R (243) (1,431)
— assets classified as held for sale —DEABIEHENEE - 873
— subsidiaries NG 6 1,923
Loss on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) W BEHI B R &) E18 (H#1:2£37) - (59)
Supporting services income IR BRI UA 7,325 629
Others HAp 1,151 697
5,251 404
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. M¥%EH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Interests on bank and other borrowings ARAFANBHEENRETR
wholly repayable within five years H &R F) 2 = 1,561
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FaMBHREME
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z2015F6A30H It FfE
10. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 10. BRRBIEF (E5IR)
Profit (loss) before tax has been arrived at after charging: BEanas (EE)EHNBKRTHIER -
2015 2014
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) BEHFM (A1) 6,615 8,304
Other staff costs B8 TA 49,718 48,168
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme Hh B THRIRAE FIGH B 3K
contributions 1,962 1,794
Share-based payments MEME THHH
to other staff AR 19 BB R 594 1,527
58,889 59,793
Tutor contractor fee to Directors MESIZAHEAS
(Note 11) (H1a£11) (255) (2,431)
Staff costs 8T KA 58,634 57,362
Auditor’'s remuneration 1% BRI 37 B 680 630
Provision for long service payments REARTS & B 20 12
Gross rental income from REMERSE
investment properties A 662 1,448
Less: direct operating expenses from BRFRNEERS KA
investment properties that generated WEMENEERKERT
rental income during the year (39) (176)
623 1,272
Tutor contractor fee is calculated based on (i) certain EENEB B THREG) R 8 P EHE R & RS
percentage of revenue derived from secondary tutoring Ik EARBRANETES L &) N EHE
services and English language training and test preparation RS BREREREAREUS/ N EETWES
courses; and (ii) fixed hourly rate on primary tutoring services, o

skill courses and test preparation courses.
Operating lease payments represent the minimum lease ENFTIERELEHERNEBA(EES

e
payments under operating leases paid or payable to lessors BYE =R BN ENNRERENK-
which mainly are independent third parties.
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e BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & ZE20159F6A30H -t FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

1. EERFETRARNME R A6 &S HH

EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID Ax
INDIVIDUALS
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Directors’ fees Yok 581 613
Other emoluments to Directors MEEIAHEMME
— basic salaries and allowances —EKF e MERL 4,069 3,223
— bonus —1E4T 1,126 75
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RREFIFH B 36 38
— share-based payments — AR D BERE R 548 1,924
6,360 5,873
Tutor contractor fee to Directors MEESINHEMEABE 255 2,431
6,615 8,304

The bonus is determined with reference to the operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics during both years.

AR ERMEANLE
A] L BT 5 S AT BUR T A E

EE EARER



11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERMEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z2015F6A30H It FfE

1. EERFETRARNME& R A G &S HH

A (&)

AEEREZEREEZTRABNOMEFREL

chief executive are as follows: T:
Year ended 30 June 2015
#BE2015F6A30HLEE
Mr. Lee
Wai Lok,
Mr. Wong Ms. Wu Ignatious Mr. Ong Ms. Chan Mr. Lee Mr. Pun
Yuk Tong Mei Chu (“Mr. Lee") Chi King Lai Yee Shu Fai Kwok Shan Total
FREEEE
IEREE WEERT  ([FXE]) IF8%E FRERX:T FEEcE EELEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note iv) (note v) (note vi)
(Hiztiv) (Kiztv) (Kiztvi)
Director's fee EEoka 240 - - 120 29 120 72 581
Other emoluments Hifi e
Basic salaries and allowances EA#H 4 28 - 932 3,137 - - - - 4,069
Bonus Tett - 76 1,050 - - - = 1,126
Tutor contractor fee EBHARE - - 255 - - - = 255
Retirement benefit scheme  E(RABFIFH &I 3%
contributions - 18 18 - - - - 36
Share-based payments AR 1 A E RS 3R = 274 274 = = = = 548
Total @it 240 1,300 4,734 120 29 120 72 6,615
Year ended 30 June 2014
HE201456A30B L FE
Mr. Chow
Mr. Wong Kai Wah, Ms. Wu Mr. Ng Mr. Kwok Mr.Ong  Ms. Chan Mr. Lee
Yuk Tong Gary Mei Chu Norman Mr. Lee  Shun Tim Chi King Lai Yee Shu Fai Total
TER%AE BREXE HEhod RERLE FHE PRERE TTEEE RBRZ:T TEEXE st
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHET FET FHET FHET FET FET FHET FHET FET
(note i) (note ii) (note iii) (note iv) (note v)
(Hiiti) (Kistir) (Hiztii) — (Wiagv)  (Watv)
Director's fee EEd 240 93 - - - 48 40 72 120 613
Other emoluments Hifi e
Basic salaries and allowances E &% 4 k28 - - 906 425 1,892 - - - - 3,223
Bonus b - - 75 - - - - - - 75
Tutor contractor fee BiEDE - - - 1612 819 - - - - 2,431
Retirement benefit scheme  RIRAEFIFH S 4 5%
contributions - - 17 6 15 - - - - 38
Share-based payments AR BEBMR - 398 564 398 564 - - - - 1,924
Total st 240 491 1,562 2,441 3,290 48 40 72 120 8,304
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e BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & ZE20159F6A30H -t FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary was appointed as an executive
Director on 3 August 2012 and retired from the position on
19 November 2013.

Mr. Ng Norman retired as an executive Director on
19 November 2013.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 August 2012 and resigned from
the position on 28 February 2014.

Mr. Ong Chi King was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 February 2014.

Ms. Chan Lai Yee was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 8 March 2013 and retired from the
position on 26 November 2014.

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 November 2014.

Details of tutor contractor fee of the five highest paid

individuals (excluding Directors) during the year are as

follows:

CEERFETHRARMMERAMSSHEH

A (&)

sz

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

FRELRETIN2012F8AHELZ T ANITES
2013511 A19FRE-

RELS S A A2013F 11 A 19 REFHITES -

BALIE R ER2012F8 A 10H EE ERBILIEH
TEE RH2014562 A28H B fE ©

T FaR L £ 20142 A28H E LT A B IEH
SEE L

R R LT M2013F3 AR EER(E A B IEMIT
BEENN2014FE11 A26HRE-

EE L AER2014F11 B26 HEZR T BB FEH
SEE L

RER AUGSFMAL (TEREES) HEE
EBEFEBNOTN:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Tutor contractor fee EHE AR E 38,329 44 291




11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Tutor contractor fee was collected by individuals through their
service companies during the year. Their tutor contractor fees
were within the following bands:
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FeMBERMEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z2015F6A30H It FfE

1. EERFETRARNME& R A G &S HH
A (&)

BEIABEDRENALTRNFRNBBERE AR
YeER - R BRI AR BN F T HIAER -

2015 2014
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A& A&

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000
HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000
HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000

2,000,001 7T 22,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7% 7T % 3,000,0007% 7T
7,500,001 7t £8,000,0007% 7T
10,000,001 % 7T 2 10,500,000/% 7T
10,500,001# 7T % 11,000,0007% 7T
13,000,001 % 7. % 13,500,000/% 7T
14,500,001 % 7T & 15,000,000/% 7T
15,000,001 % 7T % 15,500,000/% 7T

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. During
the year ended 30 June 2015, none of the Directors (2014
none) waived their emoluments on a voluntary basis.

AEBEWERAESHAMRSH A B
EAE ST INA SR INA N 5 B B 1 B 2 31
B E - NELE20155F6 A30R IEFE - &
(0145 B)EZHEMEEMS -
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e BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & ZE20159F6A30H -t FE e
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FREMAX
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET
Current tax: BVHAR 18 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH 892 7
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RIS 61 39
953 46
Overprovision in prior years: BT FEBRERE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax ABFIEH - (25)
Deferred tax (Note 30) BIETRIA (#77130) 194 174
Total income tax recognised in profit or loss ~ RIBZZHPER Z TS 25 1,147 195

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes
at the rate of taxation applicable to each year. Subsidiaries
established in the PRC were subject to Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% for both years.

BB NGB ARE M EF E /05T R B8 AR

16.5% M T K:HE -

PECEMEREGRRETBERIEAMNS < A5
JERBMAIR & FRBERZHEFTE - NP EIK
STEVH B A B PR B S 39 1R 25 % BN I E 1S

Mo
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FeMBERMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & £2015%F6H30H - F &
12. FRBMAXI (Z)

AEENRBA D REA B MEMEERER
PIREOBR B AT S A (B8 ) HER T -

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to profit (loss)
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Profit (loss) before tax bR AR A (EE) 34,078 (66,312)
Tax charge (credit) at Hong Kong Profits Tax 12 & B ST E16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (20144 : 16.5% )t &/
MEZ L (FL) 5,623 (10,941)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERTIMAO T E
for tax purpose (3,272) (1,486)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DA HO G E
for tax purpose 2,113 10,514
Tax effect of share of results of associates FEREE A REENB BT E (1,363) (214)
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures B & & QAR EENTR BT L (152) (137)
Utilisation of deductible temporary B A ARBER IR E Rt =5
differences not recognised (183) (791)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREEBEENREZE 875 3,710
Utilisation of tax losses previously BABTRERNIEEE
not recognised (2,879) (482)
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERETT (BEREE) 158 (25)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries RN TR Rl oL V== NS P S
operating in the PRC TR (88) 1
Others Hfb 315 46
Income tax expense for the year FEEHAS 1,147 195
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13. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company for both years is
based on the following data:

. BERER (BR)

ARBHEEARMEFERIGZERERRET
a7 (&8) DREN T 8RR &

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEIT FET
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic and AR EAR KR EEEF| (Fi8)
diluted earnings (loss) per share MEEF (FEE) (KQF
(Profit (loss) for the year attributable to HEABGFE ST (BE))
owners of the Company) 33,028 (66,517)
Number of Number of
shares shares
(Restated)
B ® A gl 4=
(gE75)
Weighted average number of RERERRESRT (FE)
ordinary shares for the purpose of & < &R hnie 198
basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share 501,580,438 254,419,704

The denominator for the purpose of calculating basic earnings
(loss) per share for both years has been adjusted to reflect
the consolidation of shares in May 2015 on the basis of five
existing shares being consolidated into one consolidated
share.

In addition, the denominator for the purpose of calculating
basis earnings (loss) per share for both years has been further
adjusted to reflect the bonus element of the rights issue
completed in August 2015 on the basis of four rights shares
for every ordinary share (see note 42).

The computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share for
both years does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise price of those share
options are higher than the average market prices of the
Company'’s shares during both years.

R ERMEFENEREREN (BE)ME -
D EEEA B IARBMN2015F58 A HIRE A I’k
NEHB—REHBRND REENBRNDE G-

AN A ERMEFENSRERET (E8)
MmE  DE2IEE— P AEURBAN201558A
TEAK 2 DA AR 3B IR B U AR R AR AR 1 B AR Y
ML R D (R HIFE42) ©

AERMEFENSREEEN (BB RAR
BRRITEARRNRITERBERE AARMES
BARRBZFBERENTEES R AR BN
I E -



14.

15.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final

dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 (2014: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Annual Report 2015
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FeMBERMEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z2015F6A30H It FfE
14. iR 2
EESTEEUEE2015F6 308 FEE LT
KREARL B (20144 - 4) -

15. MR WER&iw

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Computer Motor
improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
HERE FHRRRE WLERE THERE RE o h
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
cosT 7% 3
At 1 July 2013 H2013%7AH1R 28,617 5,566 9,988 4,268 241 48,680
Additions NE 5,734 241 1,243 1,404 316 8,938
Disposals/write off L&/ (7,286) (251) (924) (361) (240) (9,062)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wis—RE LA
(Note 37) (B1##37) - - - - 255 255

At 30 June 2014 ©®2014F6A30R 27,065 5,556 10,307 5311 572 48 811
Additions nE 3,584 466 739 791 - 5,580
Disposals/write off HE /s (3,227) (586) (1,132) (262) (316) (5,523)
At 30 June 2015 #2015F6 A30R 27,422 5436 9,914 5,840 256 48 868
DEPRECIATION HE
At 1 July 2013 R2013F7A1H 21,006 4,478 7,084 2,689 241 35,498
Depreciation expense MERX 3,891 607 1,206 667 47 6,418
Eliminated on disposals/write off 11 & //#f 55 4 8 (5971) (219) (698) (321) (240) (7,449)
At 30 June 2014 R2014F6 A30R 18,926 4,866 7,592 3,035 48 34,467
Depreciation expense HERS 2,752 386 1,047 754 113 5,052
Eliminated on disposalsiwrite off  H1& /i 5 B 5 £ (2,944) (579) (1,021) (229) (95) (4,868)
At 30 June 2015 #2015F6H30H 18,734 4,673 7,618 3,560 66 34,651
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 30 June 2015 #2015F6A30H 8,688 763 2,296 2,280 190 14,217
At 30 June 2014 20146 A30H 8,139 690 2,715 2,276 524 14,344
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HREMBHRERME
For the year ended 30 June 2015 & ZE20159F6A30H -t FE -
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W -BWERRME (&
(Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant M- -BEMEENRABEBNEGENTE RHE
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the HETATRFERTAME SEOITEXNT :
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements 20% HEEE 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% R REE 20%
Office equipment 20% WRERAME 20%
Computer equipment 20% YR 20%
Motor vehicles 20% a8 20%
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. I{EWE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FET
At fair value NFEE
Balance at beginning of year FH S 27,500 60,000
Change in fair value recognised REEERAAFEE S
in profit or loss 2,100 1,500
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HEH B AR (A7:238) - (34,000)
Balance at end of year F AR R 29,600 27,500
The Group's property interests held under operating leases to AEBRBLEEHEEFFURRAS S IEE ARG
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured BENRNMEESNERAFERNGFEIL DA
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted RABRIIEIREWE -
for as investment property.
The Group’s investment property of HK$29,600,000 (2014 7K & B #929,600,000/% 7T (20144 : 27,500,000
HK$27,500,000) has been pledged to secure banking BIL)MIREMECDELERE - UAE FEAREER
facilities granted to the Group. HIRTTRVE 1EER
The investment property is situated in Hong Kong under KREMEMNES WIBEPEHBEOEAR -

medium-term lease.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued) 16. &YX (&)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
property

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at
30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by
RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL"), an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group. RHL is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The fair value was determined based on the market approach
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties. There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in the prior year. In estimating the
fair value of the property, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

Details of the Group's investment property and information
about the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

FRERBVRHLOFEHE

20156 H30A k201466 A30H A& H %
BYENNFETDEREAREEYN EEENET
BEMMGEMKNTHFERRERQE ([KFH
TR ARBETHREMER XFTRE

BREMEEEE -

RHEISERUNER ZEOTISEEERD
BEEE L FEMERZEEILEZS-
W& ZMEZ R TER ZYE2&ERRE
R TYE R -

R A YRS R AT EAR O E NS
mT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E ] - fat ] st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 30 June 2015 ®2015%6H30A8
Commercial property units located ~ fIFAEE 2 BREYEEN
in Hong Kong 29,600 - 29,600
As at 30 June 2014 1201456 A30R
Commercial property units located AR AE 2 BHRMEEN
in Hong Kong 27,500 - 27,500
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For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following cash-generating unit (“CGU”) during
the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014:

Money lending

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Directors covering
a five-year period, and a discount rate of 20.31% (2014:
29.17%) per annum. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are those regarding the discount rates,
the budgeted revenue and budgeted expenses during the
forecasting periods, which are determined by management
based on past performance and managements’ expectations
for the market development.

The Directors were of the opinion that based on value in use
calculation, there was no impairment of goodwill during both
years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014. The Directors believe
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause
the carrying amount of the unit to exceed its recoverable
amount.

FEaMBEREME
For the year ended 30 June 2015 & ZE20159F6A30H -t FE =
17. GOODWILL 17. @&
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET
COST BE
Balance at beginning of year RE R 60 -
Additional amounts recognised from RN E—FE QTR
acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) e ' (WiE37) = 60
Balance at end of year RE KRG 60 60
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
Balance at end of year RE R 60 60

# 220156 A30H Kk2014F6A30H IFFZ -
MHENEMS BEEHIEETIIREELAS
N ([BREEEBEM])-

B8

AReEEEGZAARE SRR EREET
8 A BEENRFREE B RAE AR
BemEBNAKRMEXRRFTF20.31% (20145 -
29.17% )5t B - EREEFENERRRAEH
BRAHEMNBREX BERARBE S HOHR
FREBRATEBRBAENRRLEEE
BMISHROHIEETE -

EX2RR REEREEFE BEREE2015
FR2014F6 A30R IEMEAFEL BRE-EF
BE BRERR (AT RSB AEE) ZERE
BRI REH B N 2 BB 2 MR E E A E AT
[0 & %8 -



18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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18. HfttfEfiz R E

Franchise
Trademark rights Total
[k YT #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
COST 5% 3
At 1 July 2013, 30 June 2014 and 7A2013F7H18
30 June 2015 2014F6A308 &
201556 A30H 2,957 1,979 4,936
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION E &85 iR E
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2013 2013 7H1H 2,957 495 3,452
Amortisation expense BIHEBR - 198 198
At 30 June 2014 R20149F6 A30H 2,957 693 3,650
Amortisation expense BHER - 198 198
At 30 June 2015 720156 A30H 2,957 891 3,848
CARRYING AMOUNTS RHEE
At 30 June 2015 7 2015F6 H30H - 1,088 1,088
At 30 June 2014 7201496 A30H - 1,286 1,286
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. Afth L EE (=

148

The Group’s trademark protects the design and specification
of “BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE LIMITED” logo, and
was assessed to have an indefinite useful life. On the date
of acquisition (i.e. 31 December 2010), the fair value of this
trademark is assessed using an income approach under
the relief from royalty method by a firm of independent
professional valuers, Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
(“Vigers”).

Franchise rights represent the right to use the name
“BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE LIMITED” under
contractual franchise agreements in the business of primary
tutoring services. The amortisation period of franchise rights is
10 years.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the trademark set out
above has been allocated to one CGU, being the operation
of primary tutoring services of Bachelor Education Centre
Limited (“Bachelor Education”), a business unit of the Group
included in the provision of private educational services
segment. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. To calculate
this, cash flow projection is based on five-year period financial
budgets approved by the management using a discount rate
of 19.74% (2014: 17.33%). During the year ended 30 June
2015, no impairment loss was recognised for the trademark as
the recoverable amount exceeded its carrying amount (2014:
nil).

RNEEKEZ(R# [BACHELOR EDUCATION
CENTRE LIMITED J £ 5580 5T R ARHE - WY E
BE B MR A0S - AU B HR (BN2010%F
12A318)  WEENAFETRELEEGHE
NABEHTEETGER AR AR ([EEAT])
AN SR ENBAEEL T -

AP RERE )N BHERBEBNENRF
& & F§ [BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE
LIMITED J &R HOHER < B PRV B SH A R 10%F

MBEANEMS EXAEEEE EE — @
I} & E & B BlBachelor Education Centre
Limited ([Bachelor Education | - 7k £ B £ — {@&
KXBEBEAM G ARBLARERBE D) B/ NE
HERGEK HRESEAEMNITRESE
DEGEHAEBEEAEEZET BUAFEME He
MEBRADERAEREM EZ AFHUBEE
S AR E19.74% (20144 : 17.33% )5t & -
REZE2015F6 308 IEFE RN R A WE S
EHAREEE WU ERNERERNEESE
(20144 : 487) o



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
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19. RBIELAFZHR

2015 2014
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted investments JELEMIRE KA 54,408 54,408
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEE W ZR T &
other comprehensive expense, HEmrmAx
net of dividends received (BB W E) 7,657 1,297
Accumulated impairment loss recognised ERAFREES (2,014) (2,014)
60,051 53,691
Loan to an associate BT —MBEARZER
(Note (iii)) (B 22 Gii)) 15,200 -
Balance at end of year RERER 75,251 53,691

At 30 June 2015, the Group had interests in the following

associates:

20156 A30H - REBERATHE R RESR

o -

Proportion of

nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation and capital held Proportion of
Name of associate operation by the Group voting power held  Principal activity
F&E
MR ILR FRBERT FisRRE
HELEEE BEB BAmEELH el EEEH
Seasoned Leader (note 1) BVI 47% 47% Investment holding
Seasoned Leader (#7:#1) EERLHS 47% 4%  REZR
Link Resources (note i) Hong Kong 43% 43%  Investment holding
B A (i) B 43% 13%  REZR
Vision Smart Limited (“Vision Smart”) (note i) Hong Kong 49% 49%  Property investment
and investment
holding
Vision Smart Limited ([Vision Smart |) (#f2£ii) 55 49% 49%  MERERFEER
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

0]

On 10 July 2013, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreement with independent third parties, to acquire an
aggregate of 47% interest in Seasoned Leader at a consideration
of HK$45,542,000, representing cash consideration of
HK$47,000,000 less fair value of contingent consideration
receivable of approximately HK$1,458,000 as at the date of
acquisition. Seasoned Leader acts as an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Seasoned Leader
Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of higher
education services and vocational skill oriented training in Hong
Kong.

Pursuant to the agreement (as further varied by the
supplemental agreement dated 8 November 2013), the vendors
guarantee to the Group that the average of combined NPAT for
each of the two years ending 31 December 2014 and 2015 of
Seasoned Leader Group will be not less than HK$14,000,000,
failing which the vendors shall pay to the Group the shortfall in
cash with a multiplier. On the date of acquisition, the fair value
of the contingent consideration receivable is estimated to be
approximately HK$1,458,000. The fair value is arrived based
on a discounted cash flow analysis of Seasoned Leader Group’s
forecast financial budgets by reference to a valuation carried
out by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited (“Ascent
Partners”), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option to sell back
all of the acquired shares of Seasoned Leader to the vendors
in the event that the auditors have expressed a qualified
opinion or a disclaimed opinion in any of the audited financial
statements of Seasoned Leader Group for the years ending
31 December 2014 and 2015 (“Qualified Event”). The fair
value of the put option was determined to be insignificant at the
date of acquisition as the Directors are of the opinion that such
Qualified Event is less likely to occur on the Seasoned Leader
Group for the respective years.

19. RBEARZEG (7)
it -

(i)

20137108 AEBBEBYE=FFIVER
e - FAUEE B EALAR(E A45,542,000% 70 (BIIR
% R {8 A47,000,00078 7T 5 FE W sl SRR B 2 A $
B #91,458,0007% 7T ) Y B Seasoned Leaderf) &
47%#E %5 © Seasoned Leader& — R E LA &)

LA B2 ELFfY /8 2 B] (£t 7% [ Seasoned Leader%ll )
IET&%E"%%&L\m—r%&ﬁ PR Rt peE

b=H [y

BiEZ = (KB HA2013F11 A8 2@
mE—ER]) B A RIASEIRE  Seasoned
Leaderfs B # Z=20144F K2015F12A31H IEW

BAFEFESF2IFHAHBRBEALFNER LR
14,000,000 7t RRIB AR AEB AR & X
NEZENETeBE-RRERR BURSAREZ
NFEEET451,458,0008 7T c A EELRE
NAFTEZRERAR ([XFA]) (BREEWE
BEZBYAEKREEGHAEM ETZHERRE
¥ Seasoned Leader B 2 FEETBI G TEE 2 IR IR
ERENNETE -

I AN o i 7% BLAT A Seasoned Leader(s @ EH &
20144 N2015F12A31H It FE 2 F A& B
MR ERTPERREEANIEBERER ([RE

BEREMH])  AIAKEBER T —EHR R
LATA) B8 /5 & Hi Seasoned Leader &8 & W BE BL (D) ©

N E SR ASeasoned LeaderE BN EFE 3£
ZERBERSH MR RKREBH
ROREEZ AT ERRBAETEK



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

On 4 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase and subscription agreement with an independent
third party and Link Resources, to acquire and subscribe for an
aggregate of 43% interest in Link Resources at a consideration
of approximately HK$8,866,000, representing cash
consideration of HK$9,500,000 less fair value of contingent
consideration receivable and put option of approximately
HK$353,000 and HK$281,000 respectively as at the date of
acquisition. Link Resources acts as an investment holding
company and its subsidiary (collectively, “Link Resources
Group”) is principally engaged in the provision of various
services in relation to corporate management consultation,
educational consultation (not including overseas studying
consultation), market information consultation and other related
services in the PRC.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 11 February
2014 (as further varied by the supplemental agreement dated
28 April 2015), the vendor guarantees to the Group that
the aggregate consolidated NPAT for the three years ending
31 December 2017 of Link Resources Group will be not less
than HK$9,000,000, failing which the vendors shall pay to the
Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier. The fair value of
the contingent consideration receivable was determined to be
approximately HK$353,000 at the date of acquisition. The fair
value was arrived based on a discounted cash flow analysis of
Link Resources Group’s forecast financial budgets by reference
to a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option (as further
varied by the supplemental agreement dated 28 April 2015) to
sell all or part of the acquired shares of Link Resources to the
vendor in the event that:

° if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31 December
2017 of Link Resources Group is less than the average
of consolidated NPAT for each of the three years ending
31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017, the Group shall
become bound to sell and the vendor shall become bound
to purchase all or part of 28% of the issued share capital
of Link Resources upon exercise of the option; and

o if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31 December
2018 of Link Resources Group is less than HK$1,500,000,
the Group shall become bound to sell and the vendor
shall become bound to purchase all or part of 43% of the
issued share capital of Link Resources upon exercise of
the option.

Annual Report 2015
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Fe BB RMEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z=2015F6A30H It FE

19. RBEARZEG (£F)
iz ()

(i)  M2013F9H4R - AEBENUEE A HE -2 BT
FE=N MBI AR LD EELRE RS UK
1B#98,866,0007 7T ( B1ER &R {8 /59,500,000 7T
BERIAREBERRERE 2 AFEDROR
353,000/ 7T £281,0007% 7T ) Y i K R BB AT &
ANAHBRER B EAR —HREERA
BIAREMBAR (S (B EASE]) T2
fe=RhBIRHAMEREEIRENR HEFENA (T
BREBINTERZR)  TmHE RS RECARR
%EZ AR -

RE BB R2014F2A110 2 KRR % (K B 5
7201554 H28R 2 M ik st — FIEFT) - &
FRAREERE BRI EAEERE2017F128
BIALE=AFE 2 A RRRLEMARE T RN
9,000,000 7T & A& 75 AR A K E AR S Y
EREONEHSBE-RNRBAH BRKAREZ
RTEDEE#) /353,000 7T - X FETES
NH (BAREEYEBAEZ BT S EREXME
fih) T Z AERRERA EHEEZ BT
BEZIRAREREDNAE -

UESN - B AETONIER  RIA B SER T —I8R
SEEIE (48 B H1R2015F4 28 H Z i Tt i —
HERT)  REBET E LB A B2 Rl BN
Bt

o (B UZTHEEEFT2017F12A318 1E
FEZEABBELT LREZ2015F
20165 2017 12A318 = AF E&F
Z R AEBRBIRAR  ANEBMMNITERR
BBREFVEHARE S EHNEE B A
AR I CBEITRAE28% ¢ &

o  fWEBRBEREEHE2018F12A31A LF
B2 REBREI%aH 211,500,000 T« A&
EEMAITEBREREEVELURE FE
BB EBA TR BRIHEBRITRAN
43%

151



152

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

BRHE (BB REEEERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBERMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & Z20159F6A30H It FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(Continued)

The fair value of the put option was determined to be
approximately HK$281,000 at the date of acquisition. The fair
value is arrived based on a discounted cash flow analysis of
Link Resources Group's forecast financial budgets by reference
to a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, the management has carried out the
impairment assessment on the investment in Link Resources.
The recoverable amount of the associate has been arrived at
on the basis of a value in use calculation carried out by Ascent
Partners, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. Its recoverable amount is based on
certain similar key assumptions. The value in use calculations
used cash flow projections based on the financial budgets
approved by management covering 5-year period, and a
discount rate of 20.18% (2014: 26.59%). Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated by assuming a 3.02%
(2014: 3.02%) growth rate. Such estimation is based on the
associate’s past performance and management’s expectation for
the market development. No impairment loss was recognised
during the year as the recoverable amount exceed its respective
carrying amount of the investment based on the cash flow
projections (2014: management has recognised impairment of
approximately HK$2,014,000 for the goodwill in the investment
in an associate based on the cash flow projections).

On 12 December 2014, the Group entered into a shareholders’
agreement with Mr. Leung Wai Hon (“Mr. Leung”) to subscribe
for an aggregate of 49% interest in Vision Smart at a cash
consideration of HK$49. Vision Smart is principally engaged
in the property investment and investment holding activities in
Hong Kong.

In addition, the Group and Mr. Leung had further agreed to
provide non-interest bearing shareholders’ loan in proportion to
their respective shareholding in Vision Smart for the purpose to
finance the acquisition of properties for an aggregate amount
not exceeding HK$90,000,000. As at 30 June 2015, the Group
has granted shareholder’s loan to the associate to the extent of
approximately HK$15,200,000. The loan due from the associate
is unsecured and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information of each of the Group’s
material associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

19. RBEQFIZHES (&)

Hrat: (%)
(i (#&)

REERS REMEZATEEEELOR
281,000 7T ° A FEIE2ENT (EAEET
BEECBYABREXMEM) ETZMEER
REBAENEE 2B MBREZFARBSR

BRI H -

R2015F6A30H  EEREE HBin] B2
ITRERE - B & AR Z ] BRSBTS A (8
AEBEVEBEZBLAEREEGBERM)ET
ZEABEFEZEENE - HJ KBS FEIIR
BETHEUTSZREAMEL -FRBEEFEDHE
REBEREEIEZ AFHYREEFERMIRRE
20.18% (20144 : 26.59% ) FEFI R & m Bt & -
hFERE RS RETERTIER3.02% (20144 :
3.02% )2 M RERETHEE - BT I AHE
REIZBARBLERBHMBEEZBHA
Ef -mREEZARESERBERERSRE
TERGTE 2 BRI E ZBREE SN F R ERE
RREREE (014F ERECRERESREE
BT EBRER—HBEA QR ZEERIRED
2,014,000/ 7T) °

(i) 72014128128 7K £ B 8 2 E % % 4
(MREEDNFTY—HBRERHF ZRERE
497% JT R B Vision Smartz & 49%H# 25 ° Vision
SmantEFZREBNEMERE MIRE TR ER-

BEAN REBMEREADE—FHTE EHTEER
5% B F Vision Smartf B Hb (I3 4 S AR 5
B LA B U BE 48 58 4 158 #890,000,0007% 7T 2 ¥
¥RMES - N2015F6A30R  AERE DR EL
15,200,000 7T 2 B R E R T B & A 5 o 3278
FEURES &R ) 2 BRI IR K S E E (EE -

EXBELFCHMBERHER
AEEBZEABERRZMBEERBEZEHIIM

T NX Atz BRI TR E R RRIE
BAMBHREEARR M BERERT TSR

FRIAZERZ RRRNRAMBERRTHRA#ER
AR



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z=2015F6A30H It FE

Summarised financial information of material

associates (Continued)

19. RBFERFIZHE (&
EXREQFICHMBRHEBE (&)

Seasoned Leader Group Seasoned Leader% B
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
F T FET
Current assets MEEE 18,467 23,937
Non-current assets ERBEE 18,847 3,225
Current liabilities melaE 17,006 18,550
Non-current liabilities EREAE 276 -
Period from
Year ended 1 October 2013
30 June 2015 to 30 June 2014
B2013%
B E2015%F 10A1H#
6A30H £2014%F
ILEEE 68308 IHEE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue e A 74,663 39,708
Profit for the year/period £ HRHF 15,420 2,695
Other comprehensive income FERNEMEEBA
for the year/period - -
Total comprehensive income F/HRNEERABE
for the year/period 15,420 2,695
Dividend received from the associate BUHE 2 QR R E 1,880 -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBBATZRESE (£

Summarised financial information of material

associates (Continued)

Seasoned Leader Group (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate EAAZEEEBEZHERAT

Seasoned Leader$£ 8 (#Z)

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

EXREQFTICHMBRHEBE (£)

SR B R R R B AR A B R P P R AR O B

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Net assets of Seasoned Leader Group Seasoned Leaderfs B~ & & %58 20,032 8,612

Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7K & B 7 Seasoned Leaderfs [#

interest in Seasoned Leader Group HmEEEZR 2O 47% 47%

Goodwill ma 42,760 42,760
Carrying amount of the Group's 78 %= B 1A Seasoned Leader B #)

interest in Seasoned Leader Group w2 REE 52,175 46,808
Link Resources Group BuZaEE

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET FET

Current assets MENEE 11,089 7,769

Non-current assets EREEE 355 384

Current liabilities mENEE 2,409 1,427
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBELATIZER (&
Summarised financial information of material EXBREBAFIZCHESTHEE (£2)
associates (Continued)
Link Resources Group (Continued) BaUsmEm (&)
Period from

Year ended 11 February 2014
30 June 2015  to 30 June 2014

B20144F
#HBE2015%F 2A118#E
6HA30H £2014%F
IEEE 6A308 18/
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Revenue A 11,155 1,479
Profit for the year/period F /R 2,354 74
Other comprehensive expense F/HRNEMEERY
for the year/period (45) ()
Total comprehensive income F/HRNEERALE
for the year/period 2,309 69
Dividend received from the associate B UEE = N E AR B - -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information it i B L B BAR A B S R R P BT I R A B
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate BNEZEREEBECHEROT
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Net assets of Link Resources Group B AAEB cEEFE 9,035 6,726
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBERB T ABEE
interest in Link Resources Group HEHERER 2O 43% 43%
Goodwill BES 3,991 3,991
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEERB I EREEMNER
interest in Link Resources Group ZERHEE 7,876 6,883
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBBATRIZER (&
Summarised financial information of material EAXBEAFICHMERHEE (&)
associates (Continued)
Vision Smart Vision Smart
As at
30 June 2015
w»
2015%6A30H
HK$’000
F#ET
Current assets MEEE 31,019
Non-current assets IEREE E —
Current liabilities mEEE 31,034
Non-current liabilities EREBEE =
Period from
6 October 2014
to 30 June 2015
B2014%
10A6H &
FE2015%F
6A30H ILHARS
HK$’000
FETT
Revenue LN -
Loss for the period B JEE 15
Other comprehensive income for the period B E At 2 E U A -
Total comprehensive expense for the period HAZHRAZ B 15
Dividend received from the associate BN N -



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Summarised financial information of material
associates (Continued)

Vision Smart (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Annual Report 2015
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19. RBBATRIZER (&
EABEBEAFICMERHEE (&)

Vision Smart (%)
B RS E R B AR A B TS TR R N PR R PR B
BARZEAFEmEZHENT

As at
30 June 2015
20155
6A30H
HK$’000
FHEITT
Net liabilities of Vision Smart Vision SmartZ & (5/F %8 (15)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7 5= [E A Vision Smart¥ 5 # #E 25 2 HL )
interest in Vision Smart 49%
Loan due from Vision Smart Vision Smart/BIE & 7§ 15,200
Unrecognised share of loss of Vision Smart RHMEFR 2 FE{h Vision SmartH ) &5 18
for the period 7
Carrying amount of the Group's N2 E A Vision SmartZ #2352 BRTI(E
interest in Vision Smart 15,200
20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REEBATFICER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Cost of unlisted investments JEETIRE KA 14,250 14,250
Share of post-acquisition losses, B Z E1E
net of dividends received (BB E) (3,890) (3,314)
Balance at end of year RNERER 10,360 10,936
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
At 30 June 2015, the Group had interests in the following joint

20. REBERXFZRE (&)

MR2015F6A30H  REBRIUTEERRESR

ventures:

M

Proportion of

nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation and capital held Proportion of
Name of joint venture operation by the Group voting power held  Principal activity
FREME
MR BRITHRF FisRRE
RENFEE EEmE EELH el EERH
Full Profit Hong Kong Development Limited (“Full Profit") Hong Kong 50% 50%  Provision of services
(note i) for kindergartens
REETRERBERAR([RE]) (Witi) B0 50% 50%  RHZERERS
Creative Education Technology Limited Hong Kong 50% 50% Provision of private
(“Creative Education”) (note ii) educational and
training services
BIEHERBAERAR BA 50% 50%  REIAHERE
(TRIBHE]) (Hi) R %
Notes: B i

0]

On 8 April 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, to acquire 50%
interest in Full Profit at a cash consideration of HK$14,000,000.
Pursuant to the agreement, the vendor guarantees to the
Group that profit after tax for each of the two years ended
30 June 2014 and 2015 of Full Profit will be not less than
HK$4,000,000, failing which the vendor shall pay to the Group
the shortfall in cash with a multiplier. The acquisition was
reflected as the purchase of intangible assets represented by
service contracts with ten years useful life as Full Profit has not
commenced its operations at the date of acquisition. For the
years ended 30 June 2014 and 2015, the profit after tax of Full
Profit and its subsidiary (“Full Profit Group”) reached not less
than HK$4,000,000 and has fulfilled the profit guarantee for the
two years ended 30 June 2014 and 2015 which it made to the
Group. The Directors are of the opinion that as Full Profit has
fulfilled the profit guarantee for the two years ended 30 June
2014 and 2015 and hence the fair value of the profit guarantee
is insignificant at the end of the reporting period.

(i) M2013F4A8H AREBEE BT E =51
BE W LIRS R E14,000,000/ TWE R 2
R50%Em - BIFZHBE BEARASEEER

B WA E 20144 20156 A30H IF A S E
XEEE’JB%W%;E% 15 1~ 124,000,0005% 7T 7 Bl
FARAAEENRE S FE2HENETEE A

mﬂmuﬁﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁlﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁfék WU EER
B%Z%E%?éiHﬁﬂ‘%é%@ﬁﬁ%‘aﬁiﬁri‘ﬂiﬁﬁi,ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ/
BEE B ZE20144F R2015F6 430 L E - &
MEW B A T((mﬂé%lj)zmmém‘miu
A F24,000,0008 70 WE TR B AN EE L 2
HZE20149F K 201596 4308 1/ EF £ 2 5% F
RFE-EERE ARA E%;ﬁ%&zomi&
201556 308 IE M EFE 2 & F1 L
FURTBE A ?EE&W%&HXITEK



20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

On 3 June 2013, the Group entered into an agreement with a
joint venture partner (“JV Partner”) in relation to the formation
of Creative Education. Pursuant to the agreement, each of the
Group and the JV Partner holds 50% equity interest in Creative
Education by contributing cash of HK$250,000 each by the
Group and JV Partner and may increase the investment in
Creative Education up to a total amount of HK$20,000,000 with
prior consent of each other.

Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the JV
Partner:

in the event that the JV Partner (or the holding company of
the JV Partner or a company which is owned as to 50% or
more by the JV partner) has met the listing requirements
of the Taiwan Stock Exchange (including listing on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, listing on the GreTai Securities
Market and registration on the Emerging Stock Board)
or Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM Board”) of the Stock
Exchange, the JV Partner shall be entitled the right to
subscribe an additional 10% interest in Creative Education
at a subscription price determined at the net asset value
of Creative Education or five times of profit after tax of
Creative Education, whichever is higher (“JV Partner’s Call
Option”); and

in the event that Creative Education has met the listing
requirements of GEM Board of the Stock Exchange, the
Group shall be entitled the right to subscribe an additional
10% interest in Creative Education at a subscription price
determined at the net asset value of Creative Education
or five times of profit after tax of Creative Education,
whichever is higher (“Group’s Call Option”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of Group’s Call
Option and the JV Partner’s Call Option is insignificant at date of
incorporation and at the end of the reporting period.

Summarised financial information of material joint

ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents amounts shown in the

joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs.
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z2015F6A30H It FfE

20. REBLARZEE (&)
iz (#)

(i)

M2013F6A3H ARBERAERHF ([FER
HDRK LA BERER L — M= RIEZWD
#AREESARHEAEBAARERS]
BHE BB S5 250,000/ T A Bl BEHE 6
S0%MHE - ARl & B FRREAER B MR
BIEHE R EE R %45 520,000,000 7T ©

REAEEEAERH 2O G

e BB (e ERHMERARH—H
HEERBHERAA0%IIA RSN AF)F
EREERRZM (BRRBEESXSM
£ R EAE T R EAE ) S R P
AER(TAIZERDWETER BEER
HEERZREE (ZAEHENEEFE
FEABHERVRAENNAESE (ARS
ERE)VETE)RBABEREBINO%ES
(RERHABNE]) Rk

HEIEHE AR ARG LR &L
AIREEKAREZREE (RABHENE
EFERAERERRBREFNNRESHE
(AEEERBE)ET)RBAEHE RN
10%#E ([ AEERBHE]) -

EERAL AEE R NERS LB R
REEMAL B SRR S AN AFELFREA-

EXGELFICMBERHER

AEEBEXAERRZMBEN R ZH S 0
T TXFatz B ERBEIEE ERARIE
BAEMBHREEARE M BEHRRPATER
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. REELFIZEE (&)
Summarised financial information of material joint EXSELAFICHMERHEE (&)
ventures (Continued)
The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method BERNRANFRAERENZSHEEVHREA
in these consolidated financial statements. BRo
Full Profit Group EEFE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FiET
Current assets MENEE 5,628 5,680
Non-current assets EMEBEE 14 8
Current liabilities mEBEaE 1,977 3,107
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the MEERBESEBEATSE:
following:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FiET
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 5,545 5,660
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade  HEB4@mMEBE& (FTEREEH L
and other payables and provisions) H e 5R08 SR ) - 23
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20.

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures (Continued)

Full Profit Group (Continued)

REBQFIZHEEG (&

EXSEQFICHMBRHBE (&£)

BEEE (&)

2015 2014

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue A 8,177 7,757

Profit for the year F 2 4,084 4,100

Other comprehensive income for the year FEEMEBEEHRA - -

Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EBA LR 4,084 4,100

Dividend received from the joint venture SR E IS 1,500 750
The above profit for the year includes the following: Tl FEEFEEUNTSIE:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ETT FET

Depreciation and amortisation P8 K 8 3 2

Interest income B UEA 1 1

Taxation Bi1A 806 804
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. REEBELAFIZER (£
Summarised financial information of material joint EXSEBEAFICUMBEHEE (&)
ventures (Continued)
Full Profit Group (Continued) BEsEm (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information Ll E R E E N R A SRR A TR R
to the carrying amount of the interest in Full Profit recognised BEEDZFREEZHERNT:
in the consolidated financial statements:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFETT FET
Net assets of Full Profit Group REEBMNEEFE 3,665 2,581
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEERRESEHEG®
interest in Full Profit Group 1 5 8 B 50% 50%
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition UtFERF A FEFEF L 14,000 14,000
Other adjustments H A% (5,543) (4,447)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AEERBESEER L
in Full Profit Group BREE 10,289 10,843
Information of joint venture that is not individually material BT EXEELFIEFH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
The Group's share of post-tax loss REEEEKRTEER (21) (128)
The Group's share of other comprehensive N5 B fE{h E 2 E KA
income = -
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AEEEGGEERS &8
expense (21) (128)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBREERRER L
interests in the joint venture EERE B 71 93




21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
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21. (THBAERS

2015 2014
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#ETT FiET

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB LETMRAFS  ERAFE
at fair value (Note (i) (Haa)) 21,300 15,565

Unlisted investment fund, at cost JEEMIWEES IR

(Note (ii)) (H1aai)) 7,939 -
29,239 15,565

Notes:

0]

On 17 June 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, to purchase
the zero-coupon convertible notes of GET Holdings Limited
(formerly known as M Dream Inworld Limited) (“GET")
with a conversion price of HK$0.108 per share at a cash
consideration of HK$60,000,000. The investment was
initially designated as “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” as it contained a conversion option embedded
derivative. On 28 August 2013, the Group converted in full the
convertible notes into 555,555,555 shares of GET, representing
approximately 21.39% of the issued share capital of GET as
enlarged by the allotment and issuance of the conversion shares
on the date of conversion. A gain on the fair value change in
the unlisted convertible notes of approximately HK$556,000
was recognised with reference to the quoted market bid price
of the shares of GET on the date of conversion. The total fair
value of the GET shares in relation to this conversion amounted
to approximately HK$60,556,000 on the date of conversion
became the cost of available-for-sale investment.

On 20 December 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party, to
purchase the zero-coupon convertible notes of GET with a
conversion price of HK$0.108 per share at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$4,547,000. The investment was initially
designated as “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” as it contained a conversion option embedded derivative.
On 30 December 2013, the Group converted in full the
convertible notes into 72,172,360 shares of GET, representing
approximately 1.47% of the issued share capital of GET as
enlarged by the allotment and issuance of the conversion shares
on the date of conversion. A gain on the fair value change in
the unlisted convertible notes of approximately HK$72,000 was
recognised with reference to the quoted market bid price of the
shares of GET on the date of conversion. The total fair value
of the GET shares in relation to this conversion amounted to
approximately HK$4,619,000 on the date of conversion became
the cost of available-for-sale investment.

Wt

()  M2013F6R17H AEEE-—ZBHIE=FF]
B E i W3R £ K (E60,000,00078 T2 it
0.108B T HREREL FERAR AT (ATHE
BE2RNURBERAR) ([BH)WEREAH
BEBE-RENFEER EAFEFARS
MEREE] RESHBELAMERAITET
B o 20138 28R  AEE K Al MR RIBHH
3 #173555,555,555 8 S B {0 - (AT R B HIK
il g% R BT AR R A 28 5 B BHITRAH
#21.39% - KL ER LA BT SO B PTIRS
BEANE ERERFLMABEREEREAFEE
B UL 25 £9556,00078 7T o 70 5.3 B A - B IR A
B REE 5 & 2 FE 485 4960,556,000/ 7T
AR ERERRA -

MR2013F12A8208  AEEHE—RBILFE=FFF]
B B RS R{E 494,547,000 iR &%
0.108B LML ERESZNTEBEBRRKRE
BB DNNPEEAEAFEFTAEBRENS
MEE] REAAEBRERRIERASTETR
M2013F 12 A308 » A EE AT A ZH B
#1572,172,36008 % 5 B0 - (h 7 5518 B B i
BERBRTABRERMIEACE S EETRANLY
1.47% - E2EREBERBESRMHOATHRMS
BAE CHERFELTABRREEAFEEHN
Uz 4972,000/8 70 - R H IR BER - EAOX KRB R
B 5 BP0 A FELEEX4,619,00058 T A ]
I EIRERRAE o
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

0

(i)

(Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group disposed of
an aggregate of 419,380,000 of GET shares on the market
through the Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$20,677,000 and recognised loss of
approximately HK$24,207,000 from the disposal for the
respective year.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period in August 2015,
the Group further acquired an aggregate of 118,600,000
GET shares on the market through the Stock Exchange for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$50,815,000.

At the end of the reporting period, the available-for-sale
investment represented the GET shares which were stated at
fair value with reference to the quoted market bid price in the
Stock Exchange, resulted in a gain on the fair value change
in the investment of approximately HK$1,433,000 (2014:
loss on fair value change in the investment of approximately
HK$28,273,000) recognised in other comprehensive income,
which was reflected in the “investment revaluation reserve”.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the investment
was determined to be impaired and the cumulative loss
of approximately HK$6,451,000 (2014: approximately
HK$28,273,000) previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.

The above unlisted investment fund represents the investment
in private fund established in the Cayman Islands. The unlisted
investment is held for an identified long term strategic purpose
so the Group does not intend to dispose them in the foreseeable
future. The investment is measured at cost less impairment
at the end of the reporting period because the ranges of
reasonable fair value estimates are so significant that the
Directors are of the opinion that the fair values cannot measured
reliably. During the year ended 30 June 2015, the management
had determined an impairment loss of approximately
HK$61,000 by making reference to the unaudited management
account of the investment fund.

21. MIEEHERE (2)

Biat: (&)

(i)

(ii)

(%)

REVZE2014566 A30H IEFE A - R EEISE @R
FrRA 5 E & & #£419,380,000F% 2 5 i 17 - 48
HAB4920,677,00078 7T N MR A BAF [Z 69 (H & 65
$8#924,207,000% 7T °

HZ=2015F8AMEH R AEE B BB MR
M5 Fi#E— WS +£118,600,000/% 5 2 17 -
#R(E4950,815,0007 7T ©

RBERR AIEEEREESERE IR
mIZEANERAFEINENE Z B LEHR
Hip 2R ST ERORE R FEZS UL
1,433,000 7T (20144 : %R & NP EZEHH S
#028,273,000/ 7T) - E IR [RE B FHE] A
i

RBE2015F6 A30R EFE RN RETIKETE
FLBEM LA MM E B FEET RN RAE
18496,451,00048 7T (20144 : #)28,273,0007% 7T )
HEEHMHBEEER-

FMIE MR EESENRAESBEER I ZAAR
SHRE IEEMIRENFHEAN BE R R ERES -
AEAEBRAI TR AR REBIS HE - ZBE
ERREBFRAKANBREN 2 RRAEE
ATEGEBENETEZ EERADTFETLE
A SEETE - NELZE2015F6 A30B IEFER - &2
EREHRHS I AKEEREERA®% SEEBEE
SELE E518 4961,00058 7T ©
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23.

NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS
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22. FRERE

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ETT FET

Rental deposits (Note 23) Meks (Ki723) 7,508 14,296
Investment deposit KRE%LS - 500
7,508 14,796

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. RARHEMEKRKREA

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
F#T FET
(#&E2)
Accrued revenue and trade receivables JEFTIRA R B 5 FE IR R 552 603
Rental deposits ek 19,608 19,822
Other deposits Hipiz e 3,069 932
Prepayments AT FUIE 8,794 4,609
Other receivables H b pE U sk I8 1,486 7,327
33,509 33,293

Less: rental deposits (shown under BHeEe (WIAERBEE)
non-current assets) (7,508) (14,296)

Trade and other receivables B 5Kk EAMEUGRIR

(shown under current assets) (FIATEEE) 26,001 18,997
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. R REMBURE (&

166

The following is an aged analysis of accrued revenue and
trade receivables, presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates:

ATAREREHRERAY (RESRARER
HEIRE) 25 R RA R E 5 B U AR A iR
O

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FEr

Accrued revenue not yet billed im] AR B B B A B AT IR 225 145
Trade receivables: B 5 EWER

0 - 30 days 0£30H 218 189

31 - 60 days 31&60H 66 1

61 — 90 days 61290H 10 21

Over 90 days B iB90H 33 247

552 603

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$33,000 (2014:
HK$247,000) which were past due as at the reporting date
for which the Group did not provide for impairment loss. The
Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. The
aging of these receivables was over 90 days (2014: over 90
days).

As at 30 June 2015, accrued revenue and trade receivables
primarily arose from the continuing franchise income of
primary tutoring service to franchisees (2014: arose from the
continuing franchise income of primary tutoring service to
franchisees). The accrued revenue is not yet due as it is billed
in arrears. The credit periods ranged from 30 days to 90 days.
There is no credit period granted for tuition fee as they are
normally received in advance.

AEENEBESRBUEREHRCREREOREAR
33,0005 7T (20144 : 247,000/ 7T ) K 2 R R 25
H HA %8 HA i AN 58 B0 R 3 0 VR DR B R B R E A
JE USRI o 2N 55 [ 00 4 5% S5 A A S B T (R 3K 5
0o 2 EEWFIER R L A B B90H (20144 -
#B3B90H ) °

201556 A30H ' FEEt A R B Z FEWEE R T)
TEREBIFERNMBLEERR N SEHEREH
R (2014F : RERKERMNBLEEE
B NBEERBOFTECERAN) - ARERT
WARBRE LIRS WARH B - EEHANT
0HEVHZE -HRBEREWEE  HAI &
REEER-
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FEaMBHREME
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z=2015F6A30H It FE
24. LOAN RECEIVABLES 24, BIgE®R
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET
Loan receivables U E X 30,401 6,033
Less: balances due within one year R —E AR B A A
included in current assets MBNVEE 28 (23,547) (6,033)
Non-current portion EREE D 6,854 -

Loan receivables represent outstanding principals and interest
arising from the money lending business of the Group. All
of the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity
within 1 to 2 years. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk
by reviewing the borrowers’ and their guarantors’ financial
positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually
agreed between the contracting parties, ranging from 9%
to 12% (2014: 12%) per annum. As at 30 June 2015, loan
receivables to the extent of approximately HK$4,896,000 were
secured by pledged equity shares beneficially owned by the
borrower (2014: nil).

Loan receivables were neither past due nor impaired at the
end of the reporting period.

RREREHASREESEXEBMEL 2 HARK
BIARS FA S - P %S BKE AR & X5 5
BN FRIZE2F R - AEE KBS IEHI A
R ER  BBBEMERAREERAZHBR
S AREEE R -

EREFRIZRTNA 2HEEBECFENTE
FI%ZE12% (20144F : 12% ) 51 B - 120156 A
308 - £ 84 54,896,000/ 7T 2 FE W E K TH LA tE
RAEmBEE 2 RO EIFIERR (20144
) o

¥R E BR - EUCE S A B SR (A -
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 25. BIgRREALTRIA
Maximum amounts
outstanding during the year
REARNKREENRSSE
At At
30 June 2015 30 June 2014 2015 2014
20155 20144
6H30H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
Modern English Limited BREBERQA 966 774 966 774
World Wide Resources RFEREE
Management Limited BRAE 136 136 136 136
Phoenix Investment Limited EREEREBRRAA 65 65 65
Modern iClass Limited ARETHEERAE - 6 -
1,108 975

26.

27.

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The relationships with the Group of
each related party are disclosed in Note 39(a).

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

The amount represents equity securities listed in Hong
Kong. The fair values of the investments are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid prices in the Stock
Exchange.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH, FIXED DEPOSITS

Bank balances carried interest at market rates ranging from
0.001% to 0.02% (2014: 0.001% to 0.02%) per annum. As
at 30 June 2014, fixed deposits carried fixed-rate interest
ranging from 0.7% to 2.8% per annum.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s bank balances and cash with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$3,902,000
(2014: approximately HK$1,979,000) were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The government of PRC has
implemented foreign exchange control and the remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the government of PRC.

26.

27.

ZERASEE RENARERKEE X
5B R FEE A TR R RN M 39K B -

FEEERR

EZBRENE R LM RAR S ZFRENRQ
FEDESERBIMABRMISEABRETE -

HITHREES BETEHER

RITEBIEN T EE0.001%50.02% (20144 -

0.001%%0.02% ) BTHZFI 5T B - 1A2014F6 A
308 BEEFEHIENFEE0.7%22.8%HE E T
KB

7201556 A30H » 78 5 B 48 AR [ {8 493,902,000
78 7T (20144 : 491,979,000/ 7T ) < #R1T &5 84 &
RBEUARE (AREFHE MARELIFE
B Lz BEmAREY FEBFCETINE
Bl EeELTBEBINEAZPEBRNERE
SR HIFTARR o
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29.

30.

Annual Report 2015

2015%F )}

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERMEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z2015F6A30H It FfE

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HtfEftRIAR FE & B A

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other payables L FE T 5RI8 8,011 4,728
Accrued tutor contractor fee, salary and JEETERARE FHe MIEA K
bonus and other accruals HifEsr & A 8,385 5,603
16,396 10,331
AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 29. EFRREALTRIEA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts due to directors and/or ENFIREENEE R
non-controlling shareholders of SR FEVE AR AR SR A R
Able Investment 195 232
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and EBERTVERR R RIRESRKEEE-
repayable on demand.
DEFERRED TAXATION 30. ERERIA
The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and UTARMEEENBERNELHEBENREE
movements thereon during both years: &
Intangible Accelerated tax
assets depreciation Total
‘mLEE mERBEIRE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2013 #201347 A1H (245) (1,041) (1,286)
Credited (charged) to profitor ~ F AR EZF
loss during the year A (HBR) 33 (207) (174)
Disposal of subsidiaries TEWERQA
(Note 38) (H15#38) - 438 438
At 30 June 2014 #2014%6 5300 (212) (810) (1,022)
Credited (charged) to profitor ~ F AR EZF
loss during the year A (HBR) 33 (227) (194)
At 30 June 2015 7201546 A30H (179) (1,037) (1,216)
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

31.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$33,140,000 (2014: approximately
HK$45,285,000) available for offsetting against future profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. All tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$7,097,000 (2014
approximately HK$8,206,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Able Investment

On 22 December 2010, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with Six
Stars Consultants Limited (“Six Stars”), a related company
of the Group, Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine (“Ms. Yiu"), Able
Investment and the non-controlling shareholders of Able
Investment, namely, Ms. Poon Wai Sze, Ms. Mok Sze Wan,
Mr. Ng Hoi Tin and Mr. Ng Ping Lun, for the acquisition of
60% equity interests in Able Investment and its subsidiary,
Bachelor Education, from Six Stars at a cash consideration
of HK$6,000,000 (including HK$3,000,000 which was
settled in 2011 and HK$3,000,000 in 2012 and a contingent
consideration of HK$2,000,000 (which is adjusted by
reference to the financial results of Bachelor Education for
the financial periods ended 31 August 2012 and ended 31
August 2013). Upon completion of the acquisition on 31
December 2010, Able Investment was owned as to 60%
by the Group and 40% by non-controlling shareholders.
Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, various call and put
options have been granted to the Group and non-controlling
shareholders of Able Investment.

30.

31.

BERE (&)

RBEPR AKENRPARBERORD
33,140,000/ 7T, (20144F : 945,285,000/ 7T ) Al
P DAHE $H B2 A 5 1R 8 RN R BB ) o R 08
A HOR ) AN E] TR - 3 M B % F A IR B IR R
EXEHBEE -FAAREBEERTERAEE-

RBERR AEBEFEE AT NRERFEZELD
7,097,000 7t (20144F : 498,206,000/ 7T ) ° Ha
RN R] BEAB FERR B0t IS AT PR 5K 85 A R EE
RIS Z 50 ML ERL A B Al R B 1L Z R R
EXEHBEE

Hth&mEE

FIERS

201061222 - AL EHEAEEHBE AR
NEBREBRAR ([NE] - hEE T ([
Zt])  FIREERFIRIEE W IFEERR TR - 8D
BEELLT BERBERL RERXLEERZRMAG
% A& Bt M 75 & BAIR & (86,000,000 7T (B 1
3,000,000 7T 2 X201 14 18 1+ }2.3,000,000%5 7T
ER2012F &) R AR E2,000,000% 7T ()
BREBAHEE E201298A31H £20134F8
A3IB I FER M EE T AR EF
HIRENEWB AR BT HEORRETLEE
e ([UREEWE]) - H2010F 12831 H W g 5
B 1% - MR IR E A AN S B B 60% & B IEE R %
REEBL0% - BBEWEHZ B TRERRLEH
BERTAEERFRIEE K IEIERRR
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31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 3. Rttt &MEE (=

Able Investment (Continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration is estimated
to be insignificant because the specified level of the audited
NPAT for the financial periods ended 31 August 2012 and
31 August 2013 has not been achieved.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Group was
granted a call option to acquire additional 40% issued share
capital of Able Investment and a put option to sell back
60% of the issued share capital of Able Investment from/
to the non-controlling shareholders. On 31 March 2014, the
Group exercised part of its call option to acquire an additional
28.75% equity interest in Able Investment (Note 40). As
at 30 June 2015, the Group has unexercised call option in
relation to 11.25% (2014: 11.25%) of the issued share capital
of Able Investment.

In addition, the Group granted a put option to the
non-controlling shareholders (“Vendor Put Option”) to sell
11.25% issued share capital of Able Investment to the Group
on 31 December 2015 upon fulfilment of various conditions,
including, the accumulated NPAT of Bachelor Education for
the five financial periods ending 31 August 2015 is equal to
or above HK$19.3 million. The exercise price of the Vendor
Put Option is determined as 11.25% of the audited NPAT for
the financial period ending 31 August 2015 adjusted for a
multiplier set out in the Acquisition Agreement. The fair value
of the Vendor Put Option is estimated to be insignificant as
at 30 June 2014 and 2015 since the management considers
that it is highly unlikely that the specified level of accumulated
NPAT can be achieved by reference to the latest profit forecast
of Bachelor Education.

FIRRSE (&)
FAREBORAFTEGEFETELR AL KiE
HE ZE20129F8A31H &201348A318 IF B K
F S MR EAZBR B 1% 40 F) W45 7 K -

AR AR L B 155 N S (B IE SR B A DA 1) SR PR
P& PR U B B SRR & B BT IR AN RO RESMO0% + LA K
R A MR R ERFRIEEE %
1T AR EI60% ° 1220143 A31H  REBITFHE
EB17 52 B HA A LA Uk BE ) SR I% B B9 BB HN28.75% %
¥ (P 5£40) » 7220156 5308 » A &£ E & 14 &
TERBHEATREREDBEITRAMNILY%
(20144 :11.25% ) °

BEAN - AEE R FEERR AR L RE B ([E
RORHIRE ) - LAR20155F12 A31 H 2 BUR R IR
BRARKEEHENREREDHEITRAMNIL25%
FRGHERE L HEHE2015F8A31H IE
hEMBRBEERFTBRRRAMNBERNER
19,300,000/& 7T » B /5 B0k IR T RE I EE &
h 45 B 199 7 P R A8 AR S B B £ 201558 A31H
IR R R E BRI R A A A11.25% - R
20144 201556 H30H & A R B m A &
EFAETER DEAREEERRELEELH
= A BT A FROR A R] BE S BUR AT R TR AR AU R
B R TE K o
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31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 3. Hth & MEE (2)

172

Seasoned Leader

On 10 July 2013, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreement with independent third parties, to acquire an
aggregate of 47% interest in Seasoned Leader.

Pursuant to the agreement (as further varied by the
supplemental agreement dated 8 November 2013), the
vendors guarantee to the Group that the average combined
NPAT for each of the two years ending 31 December 2014
and 2015 of Seasoned Leader Group will be not less than
HK$14,000,000, failing which the vendors shall pay to the
Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option to sell back
all of the acquired shares of Seasoned Leader to the vendors
in the event that the auditors have expressed a qualified
opinion or a disclaimed opinion in any of the audited financial
statements of Seasoned Leader Group for the years ending
31 December 2014 and 2015. The fair value of the put option
was determined to be insignificant at the end of the reporting
period as the Directors are of the opinion that such Qualified
Event is less likely to occur on the Seasoned Leader Group for
the respective years.

Link Resources

On 4 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase and subscription agreement with an independent
third party and Link Resources to acquire and subscribe for
an aggregate of 43% interest in Link Resources.

Further pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated
11 February 2014 (as further varied by the supplemental
agreement dated 28 April 2015), the vendor guarantees to
the Group that the aggregate consolidated NPAT for the three
years ending 31 December 2017 of Link Resources Group
will be not less than HK$9,000,000, failing which the vendors
shall pay to the Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier.

Seasoned Leader

MR2013F7H108 AEBEBYE=FHFILE
E 5 LA B Seasoned Leader® H47% k% o

RiEz iz (K AHA2013F11 88 2/t
HE—SER) B A RARKERE - Seasoned
Leader®s B i & 20144 20154128314 I
MEFESFHNTFHEHBRBEENET DR
14,000,000 7T * B RIE A BRAA KBRS IZ
Bt ERE-

gb AN - 7R 5 B R R RO B R - W X BUAD Bt
Seasoned Leader®k [& 7 & £20144 k20154
I2A3IA L FEMNAMLEEZTEHREBERR
BERUERERERN AJREAFSEMERE
U % My Seasoned Leaderf& 19 o RH HAHE Y A F
ERREPRRETALTERN NEAAEERA
Seasoned Leaderse BRERIFEE T RAIge 3 AR
BAREBEERENH-

BnrE

MR2013F9A48  AEEBBYFE=H MBATE
HET BB MRBE WS RS MR BT E
& HA3% R o

AN - 1R 4R B #IR2014F2 A 11 R RBR ek (48
H 85201554 A28 B 2 /i el — HHERT )
B RANKERER A EHEEREE20174F
12A318 L =AFE AR RE AN AREK T
219,000,000 7T - BAIEH BRMAEEINR S
BREBNER-



31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Link Resources (Continued)

In addition, the Group was granted a put option (as further
varied by the supplemental agreement dated 28 April 2015) to
sell all or part of the acquired shares of Link Resources to the
vendor in the event that:

e if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending
31 December 2017 of Link Resources Group is less than
the average consolidated NPAT for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017, the
Group shall become bound to sell and the vendor shall
become bound to purchase all or part of 28% of the
issued share capital of Link Resources upon exercise of
the option; and

e if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending
31 December 2018 of Link Resources Group is less than
HK$1,500,000, the Group shall become bound to sell
and the vendor shall become bound to purchase all or
part of 43% of the issued share capital of Link Resources
upon exercise of the option.

Summarised information of the Group’s other
financial assets

The following is the analysis of the Group’s other financial
assets at the end of the reporting period:
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31. Hth & MEE (&
BrEm (£
AN - AN B R RS B (LA HIR20155%4 A
28R Z W R — FHERT ) MR B AT =1
iy 7] 5 7 & [ BT W B &Y 22 B 3l BB 40 B A A s AR
fn:

o (HBAMEAMEENEE2017F12A31H 1k
FEREGREBRFEEFERE E20155
2016%F K2017F12A31H I =ZAFEEF
B ER A BRBIE AR - RITEZEAER
AEBBHEERBFBNEER I EHAE
BB B BITIRAM28% &

o (R Al AAEBENEE2018F12A31H 1E
FE ARG BRBRAE NI 1,500,0008 7T
RITEZBER  AREBLHERETH
LEEBRA AR ERN C BITRAN
43% °

FREREt1eMBEETHBER

AEERNBEPRNEMEREEDTAT -

2015 2014

Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000

Bt F#T FET

Call option RAEHARE (i) 670 -
Put option SR0m H R (i) & (iv) 1,614 2,199
Contingent consideration receivables JE UG S AR (B (i) & (iii) 325 1,855

2,609 4,054
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31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

3. HthemEE (F)

Summarised information of the Group’s other
financial assets (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

The call option is granted to the Group for five years, which
will expire on 31 December 2015, to purchase the remaining
11.25% of the issued share capital of Able Investment from
the non-controlling shareholders. The exercise price of the call
option is determined as 11.25% of NPAT of Bachelor Education
adjusted by a multiplier set out in the Acquisition Agreement of
the respective financial period when the call option is exercised.

The put option is granted to the Group for five years, which will
expire on 31 December 2015, to sell back to the non-controlling
shareholders 88.75% issued share capital of Able Investment if
the NPAT of Bachelor Education during the five financial periods
ending 31 August 2015 is less than 88.75% of the guarantee
NPAT set out in the Acquisition Agreement. The exercise
price is the total consideration for the acquisition of 88.75%
issued share capital of Able Investment under the Acquisition
Agreement plus 88.75% of the net asset value of Bachelor
Education at the date the put option is exercised.

As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, the fair values of the call option
and the put option were estimated by Vigers, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

The contingent consideration receivable is determined as the
average of combined NPAT of Seasoned Leader Group for each
of the two years ending 31 December 2014 and 2015 adjusted
by a multiplier if the actual combined NPAT for the respective
periods is less than HK$14,000,000 as set out in the sale and
purchase agreement.

As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated by Ascent Partners, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group.

FRERfteMRERTHEBE (&)
Hisz -

i BTYAKENRBEHESHPILF RGR2015%F
12A31REH - URFFEBRBRRBEENREED
BITRAH R T11.25% - RIBHENTTEE Y
ETRERARHRETERSMBHMAKE
175 &% P BUAE BUE S B B R = RO BR B AR AL A Y
11.25%

BT ASENRE BERPEF R R2015%5
12A31E 28 M2+ = H £201548H31H
1E T (B B B ER R RO BR B 1R 4B R D TR W B 1h 2 P E8E
AR B& AT #988.75% » Bl FEFE AR AR R & [l
MR E B EITIRARB.75% I B RRIEU
B B M SRR B B BT IRAM8B.75% M A K
B MBLHERRLEREETERRANEEF
{E#88.75% °

20155 k201456 H30H - R 5 B 2 3804 H3
Lo ﬂ?fﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬁizﬁﬁllﬂﬁﬁ@m%j B

H BB RN AR T T AR o

(i) ERSKAREBNETHAZES HREATHEE (1
W@i2014¢&2015$12ﬂ31EUtI?WIgrRi
M E PR A BHER TR 12 40 2572 14,000,000 7T ) 45 4
#Seasoned Leaderfs IEAXHHFEJE’Jii’]/\Hl@TR
1B 4EF] o

720154 201446 4300 - EW S AR B R
FEDHEAEEYEEENBH LA ERITEMA
AR ST LAREAES



31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Summarised information of the Group’s other
financial assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The contingent consideration is determined as the aggregated
consolidated NPAT of Link Resources Group for the three years
ending 31 December 2017 adjusted by a multiplier if the actual
aggregate consolidated NPAT for the respective period is less
than HK$9,000,000 as set out in the shareholders’ agreement
(as further varied by the supplemental agreement dated 28 April
2015).

As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated by Ascent Partners, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group.

The put option is granted to the Group to sell back to the
vendor up to 43% issued share capital of Link Resources if the
consolidated NPAT of Link Resources Group during the financial
year ending 31 December 2017 is less than the average
consolidated NPAT of the three years ending 31 December
2015, 2016 and 2017, and if the consolidated NPAT is less than
HK$1,500,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2018.
The exercise price of the put option is determined as up to 43%
of average consolidated NPAT of Link Resources Group adjusted
by a multiplier as set out in the shareholders’ agreement at the
date the put option is exercised.

As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, the fair value of the put option
was estimated by Ascent Partners, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

The above fair values are determined in the manner described
in Note 6.
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3. HthemBEE (£Z)
FEEHMEMNIEIHEE (£)

Wiz (&

(i) IARBEIHETE /RBR B (KA B H2016%5F
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FEDHEAEETRBENET A EBEEML
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2017F12A31H Lt = EFEMFHEZEEBRE %
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32. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 32. RAIRE £ n

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET FET

At beginning of year REH 1,921 2,264
Charged to profit or loss during the year FRRIBZHRMNBk 20 12
Reductions arising from payments NEREEZIR (39) (355)

At end of year REF 4R 1,902 1,921

33.

The provision for long service payments is based on the
best estimate of the future payments required to settle the
obligations under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in

relation to the employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

EHRB S BEDRBRRN RO REMTE
H MARRNRTIAREERETBRE G
AEEEBRBNRBAAENET-

SHARE CAPITAL 33. & &
The movements of share capital of the Company are as RATEREARESH DT :
follows:
Number of
shares Amount
& A &8
Notes HK$ 000
By it FET
Authorised JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 201347 H1H 20144
at 1 July 2013, 30 June 2014 and 6A30H K2014F7AH1H
1 July 2014 BREMBE0.VEITH T mAR 1,500,000,000 150,000
Increase in authorised share capital R2014F11 A26 81 N
on 26 November 2014 VA TE BEAS (iv) 1,500,000,000 150,000
Share consolidation Betn & OF (vita))  (2,400,000,000) -
Sub-division of unissued consolidated 7 %77 & HH %1 47 48
shares (vi(c)) 29,400,000,000 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 72015F6 A308 Z R EE
at 30 June 2015 0.0 TR E @R 30,000,000,000 300,000
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 33. B&x (&
Number of
shares Amount
;20 4 &8
Notes HK$'000
st TET
Issued and fully paid BEEITRHR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R2013F7A1BE EREE
at 1 July 2013 0.178 To Ay L 38 % 576,000,000 57,600
Issue of shares upon placing on M2013411 A29H fit £ 85
29 November 2013 BTG, (i) 272,800,000 27,280
Issue of shares upon placing on 1201445 A30H fd & iF
30 May 2014 BITRMD (i) 115,200,000 11,520
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each MR2014F6 A308 R HEE
at 30 June 2014 0.178 Jo Ay L 38 % 964,000,000 96,400
Issue of shares upon placing on MR2014F7 A31 H i & FF
31 July 2014 BT (iii) 394,080,000 39,408
Issue of shares upon placing on MR2014F 12 H18H il & ks
18 December 2014 BITIRA (v) 271,616,000 27,162
Effect of capital reorganisation R AREHRNTE (vi) (1,303,756,800) (159,711)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R2015F6 A30H SR EE
at 30 June 2015 0.0178 JT Ay X 38 % 325,939,200 3,259
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 29 November 2013, an aggregate of 272,800,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued to not less
than six placees, who were professional, institutional or other
investors and who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were
independent third parties, at a price of HK$0.220 per share
representing a discount of approximately 16.98% to the closing
market price of the Company’s shares on 18 September 2013
as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 18
September 2013. The net proceeds were used to provide
additional working capital, repayment of borrowings and to
finance the acquisition of 47% interest in Seasoned Leader
Limited (Note 19).

On 30 May 2014, an aggregate of 115,200,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each were issued to not less than six placees,
who were professional, institutional or other investors and
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were independent
third parties, at a price of HK$0.145 per share representing a
discount of approximately 14.71% to the closing market price
of the Company’s shares on 13 May 2014 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2014. The net
proceeds were used to provide additional working capital of the
Group.

On 31 July 2014, an aggregate of 394,080,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each were issued to not less than six placees,
who were professional, institutional or other investors and
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were independent
third parties, at a price of HK$0.145 per share representing
a discount of approximately 14.71% of the closing market
price of the Company’s shares on 13 May 2014 as set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2014. The
placing shares were issued pursuant to a specific mandate
obtained at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 18 July 2014. The net proceeds were intended to be
used for the development of the existing business and the
development of online education business of the Group.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
26 November 2014, the ordinary resolution in relation to
the increase in authorised share capital was duly passed
by way of poll. Following the passing of the resolution, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$150,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each to HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000
shares by the creation of an additional 1,500,000,000 shares.
The increase in authorised share capital took effect on the same
date.

33. B&E (&)
st -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

72013511 8298 A #£272,800,0008% & i% @
H0.1058 7T 89 % 3 A% £ 12 3 AR0.2208 7T 80 B 1%
(AR AT B EA2013469 A 18A W AR FrEL
AR QAL D A2013F9 B 18H MY R T (BT :E 4
16.98% )%EITFRIRANEERA (BELE
¥ MEKEMREE MESRFESZERE
HHEABBME=F) - FISRIEFEE ARNE
HEINEEE S HEMBE AU Seasoned
Leader Limited®47 %iEm 2 & & (MIFE19) ©

M20144E5 5308 » & $#£115,200,0000% & i% &
0.10/8 LB &A% B 12 T %0. 1458 T B4 (3
AN R BHE A2014F5 138 B A M FTEL - &
NRERD R2014F5 138 Mm@ 4
1471%) BT TFAIPRANBEAEA (BREAEHR
¥ HMENEMEEE MESRFESECRRES
BEEANBBYE=R) -FIBFUEFHEEAREAR
EERHBEINEEES -

7201447 A318 » & $£394,080,0008% & % & &
0.1078 L H & AR B 1R & A%0. 14575 LRI B8 (3
AN aE HEA2014F58 138 QM T & - 18
NRFRE D R2014FE5 138 MR T B E 4
1471%) BT FRIRANEBEARA(BRELAE
¥ BESEMREE MESAFEEZERER
BEANEBBYE=R) BERKEREAQT
F2014F7A18H RITH R ERF RIS FEEFH
BRREMET - TERBEFERAREEASE
ERREEENERP EARFTER-

RARRRR2014F11 26 £1TH R R EF
ARG FEBIVEERAN T BRARZNR
ERRTAELA BB RNRBRBEER
AR B H) A F AN F1150,000,00008 7T (9 A&
1,500,000,0004% & % 1 f£0.107 7T &) i 47 ) 14
HNZ300,000,0007% 7t (43 A3,000,000,000/% &
1) - # LA E%1,500,000,0008% FEIMNE 7 © 3 A%
ERATRR A £ e



33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

On 18 December 2014, an aggregate of 271,616,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued to not less
than six placees, who were professional, institutional or other
investors and who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were
independent third parties, at a price of HK$0.122 per share
representing a discount of approximately 14.69% to the closing
market price of the Company’s share on 3 December 2014 as
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 December
2014. The net proceeds were used to provide additional working
capital of the Group.

On 17 February 2015, the Company proposed to put forward
for approval by the shareholders of the Company a capital
reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) which involved the
following:

(a) Consolidation (“Share Consolidation”) of every five
existing ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company into one
consolidated share of HK$0.50 each (“Consolidated
Share(s)”) and where applicable, round down the total
number of the Consolidated Shares in the issued and
unissued share capital of the Company to a whole number
by cancelling any fraction in the issued and unissued
share capital of the Company which may arise from the
Share Consolidation;

(b) Reduction of the issued share capital of the Company
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.49 on each of the issued
Consolidated Share such that the nominal value of each
issued Consolidated Share would be reduced from
HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 (“Capital Reduction”);

(c) Sub-division of each of the authorised but unissued
Consolidated Share of HK$0.50 each into fifty new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each; and

(d) The transfer of the credits arising in the books of the
Company from (i) the cancellation of any fraction in the
issued share capital of the Company which may arise from
the Share Consolidation and (ii) the Capital Reduction to
the contributed surplus account of the Company.

The special resolution approving the Capital Reorganisation
was duly passed by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 22 April 2015 and the
Capital Reorganisation became effective on 27 May 2015.
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33. B&E (&)
Wi ()

(v) #2014%12818H A #£271,616,0000% & % @
H0.1058 7T 89 % 3 % £ 12 & AR0.1228 T B 1%
(AR T B E A20145 12 A3R Y A AT -
BARRQBIRDR2014F 12 A3 KT BITED
14.69% )BT FRIRANEBERA(BELE
¥ BESEMREE MESkFEEZERER
WEANGBBUE=R) - ISRUEFHEE ARM
REEREHEINEEESD -

(vi) PR2015%F2A17H  ARFRZFEE AN AR
HERAEE (TRAEE]) B R TFIEAE:

(@) BERRRBEHTRRETRATTAKER
B EREE0.I0ETTZ K BRAIH AT
fRE{E0.508 T 2 & fHiktn (T&FF it 1)
(M ast])  REBEHEARRCETR
REITRRAR BB & 0f Al BEE £ 2 (E A
B AR R R B 31T RORETTRA D 2 & 6
O @EETRETEEE (WEM)

(b) BBEHARFEREETAGIRMN 2B
PEAR0.49 7T - I ERE BT RN 2E
{EH0.5078 7L HIM 2=0.0178 7T - 1 M BRL AR
RECEHTIRA (THRABE]) :

(©) BEEERBITEHEREEOSOEBTLZ GRE
BFR D AR AR SOR T AR EEC.O LB T 2 7 &
B R

(d) BARBREPEOEHEARASEITEA
TR R & OF AT BE B A 2 AR AR AR K (i)
A BB M 2 A 2 ERR R B E AR R REA

HAERAETHZFHIRBREEARABRRR
2015FAA22H 81T 2 IR FRIAE EIEAURIE -
AR AN B B2 R2015F5 827 B &k o
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33.

34.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The shares issued rank pari passu with other shares of the
Company in issue in all respects. None of the Company or its
subsidiaries repurchased, sold, redeemed or cancelled any of
the Company’s shares during the year ended 30 June 2015.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted pursuant to a resolution
in writing of all shareholders passed on 11 June 2011
(“Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Option
Scheme are to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentives or rewards to full time
or part-time employees, Directors (whether executive or
non-executive), consultants, supplier, customer, joint venture
partner, business associates and advisor (professional or
otherwise) of the Company for their contribution to the
Company and to promote our success. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 4 July 2011 (“Effective Date”).
Subject to earlier termination by the Directors and approved
in advance by the shareholders in a general meeting, the
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effecting for a period
commencing from the Effective Date and expiring at 5:00 p.m.
on the business day preceding the tenth anniversary of the
Adoption Date.

The total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
Effective Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of
the options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled or outstanding
options) to each participant (other than a substantial
shareholder, chief executive or director as explained below) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

33.

34.

B (=

BETIRMNAA T EEARR D #EIT 2 HAMA
NEBRFEMA - NEE2015F6 A30H I FE
W ARBSEMBARMERD HE Ok
LRI AR A A o

R B i &t &Y

RRBMRE2ERERMN2011F6 A11R ([E#RHH
H] ) EBNEMARRRANR R 2B
(TRt )) - BBRUERT 815 EWaI Rk B &
FET  RRARRNERIKRESR B (&
WATTRIEIT) ERA HER TP -AZ
B EBRA R (XX EM) RERINE
Bisk @ UREWREHARRMENER - I
fREA R A MAY) - FE AR 8110201147 A4 R
(TERB ) £R - B 8IS 8 £k B HE
ERMBEYFETRFAEEB T FLELERR
IFEEAR A HEFAERSRRERRBRAE
FEAMEBRATRERL-

RIBERME B AT H BT ZARRR D BEA
NEBBARRARNERBRHD EITRAZ10% -

AR+ B A AR RIE B S A e T
Bu2EE (TR TXAcTBRR -T2
TTRABHES) 2ERE (BREETE EHEX
R RTTE 2 B ) EITEm Al 1T 2 D 2 B
FRAGBBARRAEREETRAZLI% -
it ER 2 EE — SR OB ARNBRRAE
EEUS IR
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34, MERRHERE (2)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive Directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options).
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in
writing by a participant within 21 days from the date of
offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by
the grantee. No consideration is payable on the grant of an
option. The exercise period for the share options granted is
determined by the Directors, which period may commence
from the date of acceptance of the offer for the grant of share
options but shall end, in any event, not later than 10 years
from the date of the conditional adoption of the Share Option
Scheme by the shareholders subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Share Option Scheme.

ARARFREE TETRABHTIERRAKSE
EEZEABEAL (ERER EMMRADRTE
BEBSANGELIIFNTES (TEESGRE
PR AR A 2 BB IEITE S ) Hf - 1t
HEREERLBH (BHZE) L+ A H
R BFARBEEMERIBLIFATESRN
BEZBZEABEA T ZERBREBHAR
AR BTN 201% 8488 (RERLEBAR
Az Y T (B 5+ & ) #87815,000,000/% 7T - AllZA
ERRAE EEGBIRILE

REEABRIBTZz2ERER 2EEAR
ZHRBEF -+ HAEEEMNERBERELZ
Z2H -HHBRESAXMNRE CRLEBRE
ZITEMBEERE  ZHHA AR EAREER
B2 EZX A HFRG  B BRI EZBRBCERA RT
RNBIES S AR THFRRLE WARE
PRRERT SR N 2R B R IERSCPTARIR -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to Directors, employees, consultants and other
eligible participants of the Company during the year and
movement in such holding during the year are as follows:

34. BB R (&F)

FARBEREFERAARTES B8 &H
AREMAEBERBEERD ZBEREREENEF
WA AE 2 S BRIFNT

Number of share options Number of share options

Exercisable  Outstanding Granted

Exercised  Outstanding Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding

price per at 1 July during during During at 1 July during during During  at 30 June
Date of grant Exercisable period share 2013 the year the year The year 2014 the year the year The year 2015
R2013% R2014E R20155
7A1R 7R1R 6A308
L fedid BRTER  BEE FhRH FRiTE REAAE FRER FREN FRiTE RF{TE
HKS
AT
Directors 25.07.2013 25.07.2013 t0 24.07.2014 151 - 4,608,000 (1,152,000)* - 3,456,000 - (3456,000)* - -
EH 13578258 PORERPAIZES
14575248
Directors 09.12.2013 0912201310 08.12.2014 1.2 - 1,091,200¢ - - 1,091,200 - (1,091,200 - -
EH 01312898 N13F12/98%
14512888
Directors 14.10.2014 14.10.2014 t0 13102015 1,03 - - - - - 4,340,800 - - 4,340,800
EH 145108148 01451071482
215F10713R
Employees 25.07.2013 25.07.2013 t0 24.07.2014 151 - 1,088,000 - - 1,083,000 - (1,088,000 - -
&2 13578258 PORERPAIZES
14575248
Employees 09.12.2013 0912201310 08.12.2014 1.2 - 4,244 800* - - 4,244 800* - (4204800 - -
&2 01312898 N13F12/98%
14512888
Employees 14.10.2014 14.10.2014 t0 13102015 1,03 - - - - - 4,827,200 - - 4,827,200
&2 145108148 01451071482
215107138
Consultant 09.12.2013 0912201310 08.12.2014 1.2 - 1,697,600¢ - - 1,697,600 - (1,697,600)* - -
EEIN 01312898 N13F12/98%
14512888
Consultant 14.10.2014 14.10.2014 t0 13102015 1,03 - - - - - 3,734,400 - - 3,734,400
EEIN 145108148 01451071482
215107138
Others 25.07.2013 25.07.2013 t0 24.07.2014 151 - 2,304,000 - - 2,304,000 - (2,304,000 - -
At NIETEBE  WI3ETRBAEE
14575248
Others 09.12.2013 0912201310 08.12.2014 1.2 - 4,486,400 - - 4,486,400 - (4486400 - -
i 01312898 N13F12/98%
14512888
Others 14.10.2014 14.10.2014 t0 13102015 1,03 - - - - - 6,377,600 - - 6,377,600
At NWEIORI4E  014E10B148E
215107138
Totﬂ - 19520000 (1,152,000)* - 18368000 19,280,000 (18368,000)* - 19,280,000*
a5z
Exercisable at the end of
the year 18,368,000 19,280,000*
RERATR
Weighted average
exercise price (HAS) - 1.34* 151 - 133 1.03* 133 - 1.03*
WETHHEE(Er)

During the year ended 30 June 2015, 19,280,000* options
were granted on 14 October 2014 (2014: 8,000,000* and
11,520,000* options were granted on 25 July 2013 and
9 December 2013 respectively). The Group recognised total
expense of approximately HK$2,385,000 for the year ended
30 June 2015 (2014: approximately HK$5,897,000) in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

R E E20154F6 A308 I E W 19,280,000*
DB AE 2 N 2014F 10814 B % 1 (20144 -
8,000,000*5 K 11,520,000* 5 i & 1 2 5 Bl 7%
201397 A 250 K%2013F12A9B&E ) - A& E
BLAD AR A BB AR R E £ 201596 308
1EFE 8B S 4258 492,385,00058 7T (20144F « 49
5,897,000/ 7T ) °



34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant.

The fair values were calculated using the binomial option

pricing model. The inputs into the binomial option pricing

model were as follows:
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34. WBkEE (2)

IR ERER R R ESHRE -

RNFEDEA-_BEAREEEEATUAE =
EAMREEEAMANBABENT

25 July 9 December 14 October
Date of grant 2013 2013 2014
20134 2013% 20144
#HEA™ 7H25H 12A9H 10A14H
Closing share price s sqnnl =R 1[0
at the date of grant f&% 15 U i (& HK$1.38*# 7T HK$1.22*# 7T HK$0.88* % 7T
Exercise price TIE(E HK$1.51*4 7T HK$1.22* 7 7T HK$1.03*/& 7T
Contractual option life BRI ET 1 year & 1 year £ 1 year &
Risk-free rate 3 g 1) = 0.263% 0.219% 0.090%
Annualised dividend yield FEAKBER 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility of FE R AR 10 HY TE HA R 1R
underlying share 72.972% 64.248% 51.660%
Expected exercise multiple THTTEER 1.60X — 2.47X 1.60X — 2.47X 1.60X — 2.47X

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the most recent
period commensurate with the expected life of the share
options.

The fair values were calculated by Ascent Partners, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
to the Group. The binomial option pricing model is one of
the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of the
options. The value of an option varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions. Any changes in the
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimate of the
fair value of an option.

* The above information has been adjusted to reflect the share
consolidation in May 2015 as set out in Note 33 pursuant to
which every five existing ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in
the issued and unissued share capital of the Company into one
consolidated share of HK$0.50 each as if the transaction had
always been in effect throughout the years presented.

TEHTR MR TH {8 AN 2 R AU(E 10 £ 8 AR T8 A 47 1
BT ST P E 2R IBEE -

REETHEARBYEEENEYIAEREE
HERM T FIAGTE - —IHAA MR EERA A
IEFFEREAFENEREMARAZ — B
REEEE TIERKNTRAZEEMSE -5l
R S I EB NS HBREAFENG
AHEBRERTE-

o EE RSB AR BN 2015%5 A B A M A
& 0f (BNHEE33) Bt ARRE BT RAKRHE
TRAP SR REREE0.I0ETHIRA &R
AR — R EREE0.50E TR & i 4N
ZRFRENNFE-—BEAN-
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35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for the following future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases to mainly
independent third parties in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:

35. BEHAKIE
FRESFEEAA
RBEMR REAEELREDEATZBILE
= AEN AT REAETEE  AEBRKKE
HE 2 HmT :

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Within one year —F N 41,747 47,445
In the second to fifth years inclusive EFE_FEFERTF

(BEEMTEBFBEEA) 33,765 45,181

75,512 92,626

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of
one to five years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

BOKERRABECHEE HHAA—ZERF-

FRESHEA

RE|EMR - AEEEBEP R AT HR 2 HH
TAREEEHER TORRKERESTLA
#:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET FET

Within one year —FNR 713 618
In the second to fifth years inclusive EFE_FEFERF

(EEMEBEEN) 1,586 103

2,299 721

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of
one to three years. The property held has committed tenant
for next year.

HOgEmRRBEEES M/ —E=%F-
A2 MECEBP AN AR —FHEMA -
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COMMITMENTS 36. &iE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not RUTREBEETNERRGS
provided in the consolidated financial MBI EBENERFAX
statements in respect of:
— acquisition of property, — B WS KR
plant and equipment 2,584 304
— capital injection in a joint venture —REERFREE 9,750 9,750
— shareholder’s loan to an associate — W TFHMERNT ZIRERER 28,901 -
41,235 10,054
Capital expenditure authorised but not AT SHEBEREERTHN
contracted for in respect of: EENG
— investment in a PRC learning centre —RE—FEFRREHE R D = 500

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 1 June 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity interests
in Online Global Limited (“Online Global”) at a cash
consideration of HK$2. Online Global was beneficially owned
as to b0% by Ms. Yiu and 50% by Mr. Lee and was inactive as
at the date of acquisition.

On 13 June 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, for the acquisition
of 100% equity interests in China Rich Finance Limited (“CR
Finance”) at a cash consideration of HK$850,000 payable on
completion. Upon completion of the acquisition on the same
date, CR Finance became an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group.

CR Finance is the holder of a valid money lenders licence
under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Group plans to develop money
lending business after acquisition of CR Finance and believes
that such new business will diversify the income stream of the
Group.

37. BB 2R

R2014F6 1R AEBE AR REB THE
ERARAE ([EH])M100%kH# - B B i
LT EREEAORER N T REEREHS0%
B ARNKRBEHEREE-

R2014F6 130 REBEF T E = 7] L
EEWm WRBEZEVHAERAR (NZEH
B1)E100%B#E Rl AN RSRE
850,000/ 7T ° i[RI H se BB 12 - 0= B BT IS A 7%
AEBzHAZE2EMNBAR-

EEV B RERENEI6IZRENEHITH K
MEAEROFAEA AEEAERNKWBEEEY
BRERBERD  WHREZNEBH S TR
B e AR ©
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$1,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in
the period, within the “other operating expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition

37. WEBMB 2T (&

Y iE R AR 401,000/8 T E B FrE R EHIR -
WERAANERREZE2014F6A30R EFEH
reEalHEtEERERS [HagEmR ]
A AN -

REBAMMEBHEERBRHAR

Online Global CR Finance Total
o HEME st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHEIT FHEIT
Non-current assets IEREEE
Property plant and equipment  #1% - BE &R - 255 255
Current assets MENVEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A fE WA - 11 11
Bank balances and cash IRITHB LIRS 6 690 696
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables and accruals HMENFIBERESTER (65) - (65)
Current tax liabilities BNEAf IR B E - (166) (166)
(59) 790 731
Loss/goodwill arising on acquisition KEREENEE We
Online Global CR Finance
T HEMHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consideration transferred EEAE - 850
Less: fair value of identifiable net (assets) W PTG (B E)
liabilities acquired BEFENAFEE 59 (790)
Loss/goodwill arising on acquisition WEEFTE £ EIE, e 59 60
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. WM B AR (&
Loss/goodwill arising on acquisition (Continued) KkEmEENER B8 (&)
The Directors determined that the acquisition of Online HREBEANEAREREEREFT FEERR
Global would resulted in a loss to the Group, since on date of 459,000 T MEEETWHEE BB AE
acquisition, Online Global was inactive and maintained a net B SEE - ERNEEMT G N R ERIR
liability position of approximately HK$59,000. The Group did AEEEHEANBETSEEEAFE-
not expect any goodwill arising from this acquisition in view
of the financial position and operating performance of Online
Global.
Goodwill arose in the acquisition of CR Finance because WEEEVBEERE REAMESMHZMN 2K
the consideration paid for the combination effectively BERPEEHEEBNEERERPERFR W
included amounts in relation to the reputation and customer ANERREABKRE —BIWARRTHERNR
relationships of CR Finance, revenue growth and future H-ZENmIWAEFESHAER RAAKS
market development as part of the acquisition. These benefits THEAHANERLEENERZE - HEKEEZ
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they EUSEEMNE BT T -
do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible
assets. None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition of CR
Finance is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
Net cash (inflow) outflow arising on acquisition KEFAEENRS (RA) HHSBHE
Online Global CR Finance Total
1] EEMS #Et
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FrETT FET FET
Consideration paid in cash BEXNRERE - 850 850
Less: cash and cash equivalents J& : FTUREEER & &%
acquired ReFEY (6) (690) (696)
Net cash (inflow) outflow Be ORA)/mHFE (6) 160 154
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37.

38.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Online Global and CR Finance did not contributed significantly
to the revenue or results of the Group for the year ended
30 June 2014 since the respective dates of their acquisition
as they were completed near the end of the respective year.

Had the acquisition been effected at 1 July 2013, the revenue
of the Group would have been HK$236,767,000, and the loss
for the year would have been HK$61,509,000 for the year
ended 30 June 2014. The Directors of the Group consider
these ‘pro forma’ information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 July 2013, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 30 June 2015

On 7 November 2014, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Modern Bachelor Education (Whampoa Garden)
Limited (“MBE Whampoa”) to an independent third party at
a cash consideration of HK$10,000. The net assets of MBE
Whampoa were approximately HK$4,000 as at the date of
disposal, comprised of trade and other receivables.

37.

38.

WEBME AT (&
BREHERERAHEE
RRERENMEEVHENRBREZEOERFERD
TR MEREEEMEERBIAK RELE
HAEEEE2014F6 A30H I F EHIR A X
BIFELEARER -

i W HBE B M2013F7A1IB AR A& =
20146 A30RA LFE - AEEM KA
1 /236,767,000 T RERNEE KRB
61,509,000 L - AKHEER S %F [
ZIEMEEGRARZ T—EBAREREER
20137 A1A A ARBEERERNKLEE
B EBERRKEETEN -

HEMBELAT
#E2015F6A30HLLFE

2014 11A7H A& ELAE £ K E10,000
7 7T & E B Modern Bachelor Education
(Whampoa Garden) Limited ([MBE Whampoa ] )
NEAREFBLE=ZF -RNHEBH
MBE Whampoa#) & & % {E 44,000/ 7T - B4 &
5 N EL A JE U R TE

Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEN B 2 51894 2
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received ERERRAE 10
Net assets disposed of FrhEEEFE 4)
Gain on disposal 0 & s 6
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38. HEMEB AR (£)

For the year ended 30 June 2015 (Continued)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal

B E2015F6A30HLLEE (&)
HEHRELNT SR BT

Total
#ast
HK$'000
FET

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances disposed of

For the year ended 30 June 2014

On 21 February 2014, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in AL H (L) BB A MER AR (“Jingli Beiya”)
upon deregistration.

On 14 March 2014, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Achieved Success Company Limited
(“Achieve Success”) to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$35,408,000.

EREREE LR FEMRE 10
BT ERE RIREFEMER -

10

B E2014F6A30HILLFE
R2014F2H21H  AEBERBHEMR L ER
REAAHE (L) BERBERAE ([RAdk
L) By 2 BR AR AE o

MN2014F3F148 AEEBEURSRED
35,408,000/ JT i & E M Achieved Success
Company Limited ([Achieved Success )12 &
REETEIE =T
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMB AR (£
For the year ended 30 June 2014 (Continued) H$F2014F6A30BLLERE (&)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost EERFRHEERBEST
Achieved
Jingli Beiya Success Total
Achieved
mAdeH Success Ht
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KEME - 34,000 34,000
Current assets MEVEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H b fE W FRIE - 6 6
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS - 359 359
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables and accruals HMENFIERESEA - (57) (57)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Non-current deposits EmBIE S - (300) (300)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEEE - (438) (438)
Net assets disposed of T EEEFE - 33,570 33,570
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B 2 Fa9 % &2
Achieved
Jingli Beiya Success Total
Achieved
mAOdeH Success st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Consideration received B WERE - 35,408 35,408
Net assets disposed of T EEEFE - (33,570) (33,570)
Cumulative translation gain B IE X AR AR5
released from translation WS ()
reserve (note) 85 - 85
Gain on disposal o & W= 85 1,838 1,923
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMB AR (&
For the year ended 30 June 2014 (Continued) B F2014F6A30BLLEFERE (&)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) HERNE 2 il (&)
Note: Bt
Jingli Beiya was an inactive company with no assets and liabilities RO A—EEREENHDT  RREE MBI &
on the date of deregistration. The gain on disposal represents the BERAE - HE W IB R 1S 5 R 35 0 0. 3 Ik
translation gain realised on deregistration. e
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HERELRR LKA BE
Achieved
Jingli Beiya Success Total
Achieved
Wk (4] Success #st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FETT FET
Consideration received in cash 2 WEUR & &
and cash equivalents BeZEYRE - 35,408 35,408
Less: cash and cash equivalents & : FTHEBR S &
balances disposed of BeZEBYEH - (359) (359)
- 35,049 35,049
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. IEFXS
(a) Parties are considered to be related if one party has, (@) M—FHBEENEEMFERIEMEERER
directly or indirectly, the ability to control or jointly BEEN TS st E s s S s
control or has significant influence over the other BEEAXE Bz AR EBREMANEE
party in making financial and operating decisions. The FoBEBEREB UWTAR ALAFANR
management is of the view that the following companies/ REBETEAR G BEGHEES -

persons were related parties that had significant
transactions or balances with the Group during the year.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

Name of related party

MES &

3. MEFEXH (&)
(@ (#&)

Relationship with the Group
HBEEEPRAE

China Vantage International Holdings Limited

1

ol
=l
3

A
Ji
at
wa
5
ol

Creative Education

BIEHE

Modern English Limited

RREBARAQT

Modern iClass Limited

ARETHEBRAF

Online Global

\
/

I
b

Phoenix Investment Limited

BFEREBRAA]

Tellet Investment Limited

REREARAT

World Wide Resources Management Limited
RFEREEERAT]

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric

Ribfmit

A wholly owned subsidiary of Seasoned Leader and an
associate of the Group with effect from 1 October 2013,
operates Compass College

Seasoned Leaderz 2 &M E AR - WE2013F10A1HRE A
REENEERNE KERURER

A joint venture of the Group

AEEZAEAT

66.67% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and
33.33% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
R B fm ST 155 66.67 %A K ok 2+ #5H33.33% A

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
w22 + 5B 100% M 12

50% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu and 50% equity interest
held by Mr. Lee; being acquired by the Group with effect
from 1 June 2014

P T FFB50% A & 2 5 FE B 50% AR 1 -

B2014566 A1 EHAE B

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
w22 + 5B 100% M 12

33.33% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Wing and
16.67% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
RIFL L EFFBI33.33%MME R R B fa 55 EFFA16.67%HE

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
22 + 58 100% Mz 1

A former director and the elder brother of Mr. Ng Norman and
Mr. Ng Kam Wing
ESRRERNEERRBELEE PR



39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

Name of related party
REHRB
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30. MEFXS (&

@) (#&)

Relationship with the Group
HBEEEPRAE

Mr. Ng Kam Wing
RIBEEFE

Mr. Lee
ThAE

Mr. Ng Norman

REMELE

Mr. Ng Hoi Tin

REREE

Ms. Mok Sze Wan

RERRL

Ms. Yiu

w2+

Ms. Huang Hui

BEERL

Bt

A brother of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and Mr. Ng Norman
RiffmeE RRER T LMD

A director of the Company
KARIESE

A former director of the Company and the brother of Mr. Ng
Kam Lun, Eric and Mr. Ng Kam Wing
RARIMEERRBHAEERRBREEZ S

A director and a former non-controlling shareholder of Able
Investment which is owned as to 88.75% by the Company;
ceased to have 9.58% equity interest in Able Investment
with effect from 31 March 2014

FIRIE (AR REHEES8.75% e ) FE B3 A1 FEIE AR
R B20145F3A31 A BB MNEIRE 29.58% Mk #

A non-controlling shareholder of Able Investment with
11.25% equity interest in Able Investment; and a former
director of Able Investment (cessation since 21 October
2013)

MERRE B FEERBIR  FH A MRIRE R 11.25% 0 : &
RBEEMAES (H2013F10A21HETBAFRIEE Y
%)

A former director of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company
ARG EERARRE THEARINES

The Spouse of Mr. Ng Kam Wing and the sister-in-law of
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and Mr. Ng Norman
RIVEEENHEBRARBEERREBEEN TR
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Save as the balances with related parties as disclosed (b) B4rs
in the consolidated statement of financial position, the

Group entered into the following significant transactions 2

with related parties during the year:

3. MEFEXH (&)

B TSR SR P4 BR B RBR A T B0 45
S REBRFERNEBEDI LA TEAR

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
Rental expenses, building BIEETNEERFIYHN
management fee, HAR BIE=H
air;jcontditi?nilng(gj charg(gjest TRECEY g
and rates to independen " N .
third parties und:r licence BER EHBRLREM:
arrangement with related
parties: (i)
— Online Global — B = 4 492
— Modern English Limited —HRAEZBERAA 2,723 2,623
— World Wide Resources —RFEREEBR AT
Management Limited - 9,086
Rental expenses to: MU TARYNHEERAS:
— Tellet Investment Limited —REREBEBRRAFA 1,251 1,200
Management fee expenses to: MUATATSANEEERY
— Mr. Ng Hoi Tin —REXREHE - 365
— Ms. Mok Sze Wan —REBLL 60 60
— Creative Education —BIE#HA 19 51
Marketing expenses to IRIREA LA T B T 5T S HY
independent third party under Al MBI E=
licence arrangement with a ST RERE Y
related party: (i)
— Online Global —EE - 220
Commission expenses to: BMUATRAR SRS :
— China Vantage International —HEREREEERE AR
Holdings Limited 6,921 8,114
Tutor contractor fee to: AT AT EMEAER
— Mr. Ng Norman RE LA 1,783 1,612
— Mr. Lee *?5‘6% 255 819
- Ms. Yiu — kit 90 232
Impairment loss recognised FEW — M REERRIFIA L
on amount due from EHERREREE
a related company:
— Phoenix Investment Limited —BHREBERAA 65 -




39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(Continued)

Notes:

(i)  These premises were leased initially by the above related
parties from independent third parties. These related
parties then licenced the premises to the Group at the
same rates specified in the respective lease agreements
with independent third parties.

(i) The advertising space was licenced initially by the above
related party from independent third party. The related
party then licenced the advertising space to the Group
at the same rates specified under respective licence
agreement.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest in Online Global from
Ms. Yiu and Mr. Lee for a cash consideration of HK$2.
Further details of the acquisition are set out in Note 37.

The related party transactions disclosed in (b) above are
non-exempt continuing connected transactions within
the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, except
for management fee expenses, commission expenses,
rental expenses to Tellet Investment Limited, and tutor
contractor fee to Ms. Yiu.

The key management personnel includes Directors and
chief executive and the compensation paid to them is
disclosed in Note 11.
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3. MEFXH ()
(b)y (%)

BT

() ZFVERTH LREENRBELE=TTH
B REWENARREBYE =TI
HREEHHEENERES I AEERE
RZEME-

(i)  FEEC&KIA L EER MBS =TS
A o R ERET A RIZEBF A HEEE
MAERME S AR AR B A RS

(c) EZE2014F6A30RLFE  AREEL2E T
ZReRERAKZETRFTEENEER
100% M 1 - W iE ETHM#E — HFHIFE IR
MI5E37 o

(d) REXDERAWENETRS A ETRA
FUABFIREHERR R ERERS
HERBH BERX BNAERKESR
RARIEES RS RN L T BRAE
BRI

e) TEERABBREZERIETHRAR M
AR E SO R 113K EE -
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. EEMB LT
Particulars of Company's principal subsidiaries at 30 June RARR2015F 201456 A30B 2 = BB A
2015 and 2014 are set out as follows: AIFFIBESI AT
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of principal subsidiary establishment operation registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
BEREF
IEMBLTRE R,/ B B HEm EmEE SRARGERFERE FERH
2015 2014
Able Investment BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 88.75% 88.75%  Investment holding
FMREE HERUEE B 10,000% ¢ 88.75% 88.75% ZEEMK
Bachelor Education Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 88.75% 88.75%  Provision of primary tutoring
services, skill courses and
test preparation courses
2Y=E BE B 10,000/ 7T 88.75% 88.75% HRELNEMBRY RERR
REHRE
Beijing Strength Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ROERAF HERUEE B 100% 7T 100% 100% #HEZR
Dignity Choice Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Property investments
RERIHES B IE 100% 100% MERE
Intelligent Education Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Provision of secondary school
education services
BRIABGHEBR AT BE B 1007 7T 100% 100% REUFHRBRRERS
Modern Beiya (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRI (FE)BRARF BE B 1007t 100% 100% HEZR
Modern Education (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of tutoring services
Limited
BRHE (B8)BRAT BE ) 10,0007 7 100% 100% REHBRS
Rosy Lane Investments Limited* BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
HERUEE B IE 100% 100% #HEZR
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. T EMB AT (&)
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of principal subsidiary establishment operation registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
BREREF
IEMBLATEE R,/ 3 B HEM EmEE *EARGERFER FERH
2015 2014
Sky Link Management Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ATEBRERAA BE B 10087t 100% 100% ®EZK
Sino Network! BVI Hong Kong US$13,983 100% 100%  Investment holding
HERUHEE 9 13 983% T 100% 100% #HEZK
Utmost Vantage Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Property investments
RERIHES B IEY 100% 100% MERE
Wise Action Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment in securities
BBEERAF BE BE 10,000/ 100% 100% #®EEH
BMNKNHEBABRRA PRC PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of educational
consultant and management
services
# i AR %1,000,0007C 100% 100% REHBHAREEZRY
CR Finance® Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Money lending
ERRB BE B 1,000#7T 100% 100% f&&
! The companies are directly held by the Company. All other !

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

2 This company was established in the PRC in the form of wholly- 2
foreign owned enterprises.

HZERBRARBEEFE AEMLIEAE
MARRMEFEA -

3 Acquired on 13 June 2014. 3 2014567138 W& -
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding PRSI R s RE B - BB A ) %A 1A
at the end of, or during, either reporting period. MARITEMEEES -
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

40. X EMBLT (&

ERAVNZARBTMBLRAE NEERREUAE
BeRxEREEEAEATEZHNBAR EER
R AL EMMB AR HEREREEE
BRItk -

RBEPRR ARBBEAEHAKREMSUIFES
AOWEMHERE - AZEZFNERBNES
BE-ZFMNBARZEEZRBHAINT

Number of subsidiaries

TEXEH ETEBREWME MEAFZ&E

2015 2014

Investment holding Hong Kong 17 13
WEER B
Provision of educational consultant and PRC

management services 1 1
REHKEHARERRS Y

18 14

The Group had no subsidiaries which have material
non-controlling interests for both years.

Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group exercised
part of its call option (see Note 31) to acquire an additional
28.75% equity interest in Able Investment at a nil
consideration as determined by the Acquisition Agreement,
increasing its continuing interest to 88.75%. The fair value
of the call option at the date of exercise was estimated to be
insignificant. An amount of approximately HK$727,000 (being
the proportionate share of the carrying amount of consolidated
net assets of Able Investment and its subsidiary) has been
transferred out of non-controlling interests. The difference
of approximately HK$727,000 between the decrease in the
non-controlling interests and the fair value of consideration
paid has been credited to accumulated losses.

ROFRELE [ 7+ 74 3 1 BB A SR AR 25
ZHBAA-

R—RREBATRZRAESEE
BE2014F6 A0 L F & - AEBETER AL D
REAZ (AWME3DNRUBHEMEEZE
REWBENFRIRE 2 FHN28.75% M4 - W I8 INE
FrEEmDE88.75% - RBHIENITE B BN AT
EFIEEAK - 49727,0008 7T 2 288 (BIFIR
BREREMBARZGAEEFEZIKREE L
{5 {7 %8) O 88 FR YR AR R o o JF 1% AR A 2R R 2
ENREXFEZEHERELN727,0008TTEFTA
Rt EE-
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41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 41. BH&EFIEE

The Group operated a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme were held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme
was to make the required contributions under the scheme.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees and
each required to make contribution to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 effective from 1 June 2014 for
the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$1,998,000 (2014: approximately HK$1,832,000)
represented contributions payable to the above schemes by
the Group during the year.

AEERBRUERESFAEGOIRBERA
BEBEERLATEAEEE ([BESA
2 RELFENEEEB —RBIUITEA
BHHMESEAREMFEED A - RIFH
BertalmBRA BEREEE D RIAZRANGT
BREYLE R A ET B R - R B R B2 5 8
MM — B TR RIEZ EEL AR - RIER
Bertdl BERERESAAREEARBUA
(XB2014F6 A1 AN T ARBBAZ £
FR30,000/8 TLAT AR ) Z5% A &I R - W |WE
YR UK AT AR FORUR SR F R PR A 3R -

KRB ENREEESEPEBRARINERE
ERARENGE - EPEMBARAREEELR
IR E T B AR RENE IR B
EFRMEHRES - AEBERIRENG B ME—
BERIRBAEEL B HZK -

MreRakHEMEERERTHRZAERY
1,998,000/ 7T, (20144 : 471,832,000/ 7T ) 5 A<
RE AR a5t ) gz K-

i
JiE
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42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the following significant event took place
subsequent to 30 June 2015:

(i)

(ii)

Proposed Rights Issue (with the Bonus Issue)

As announced by the Company on 24 April 2015,
the Company proposed to raise approximately
HK$384.6 million (before expenses) by issuing not less
than 1,303,756,800 and not more than 1,363,513,600
rights shares by way of rights issue on the basis of
four rights shares for every one existing share held
(immediately after the Capital Reorganisation as defined
in Note 33) of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.295 per rights share (“Rights Issue”) and by
issuing not less than 651,878,400 and not more than
681,756,800 bonus shares accordingly on the basis
of one bonus share for every two rights shares taken
up (“Bonus Issue”). The Rights Issue with the Bonus
Issue was approved by the Company’s independent
shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 3 July 2015. As a result, an aggregate
of 1,303,756,800 rights shares and 651,878,400 bonus
shares were allotted on 7 August 2015.

Proposed acquisition of the remaining 51%
equity interests in Vision Smart

On 26 August 2015, the Group entered into a conditional
sales and purchases agreement (“SP Agreement”)
with Mr. Leung in relation to the acquisition of Vision
Smart by further acquiring 51% of the entire issued
shares of Vision Smart and the entire debts owing
by Vision Smart to Mr. Leung at the consideration of
approximately HK$16.81 million. Upon completion of the
SP Agreement, Vision Smart will become an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. As at the
date of this report, the aforesaid acquisition is yet to
complete. The completion of the proposed acquisition
will be subject to the conditions as stipulated in the SP
Agreement and shareholders’ approval.

42. &

MRESEH

RREERAMBRREMETAMBEEEIN R
201556 A30B &  REBEB A TEKREIA:

(i)

(ii)

Bt (GERFIRRRTT)

AN R B FA2015F4 A24 B B A AR
RIEEREFE —RRERD (BEREKE
A (EZE R33N ®)EZHNREREKS
ZEEDREETRERRKH0.295%8 TiE
i@ AR 7 = BT A 2 01,303,756,8000% K
B i81,363,513,6000% AR A% 1 (T4£R%])
& & #9384,600,0007% 7T (1B FSZAT) LA K
B UL R T E M IR AR AR (D B 5 — IR AT IR
2 HAEFIT R D A651,878 4000% & T B 18
681,756,800A% AT fig ([4LAR3E4T]) o HhARE
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REAT B B 201548 A7H &Rl % -
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201568 H26H  AEEEREEFT L
—hERHEEEHREZ([EEHRZ])  AA
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Vision Smart#s /K 255 &£ /2 EERH) 5 20U
B8 Vision Smart o A B & & 5o AL & -+ Vision
Smarti$ K AA AT EEEZEMRB AR -
RARERE LB EE S RTAH - &
FEWHEIRKATEE MR ARG
R NERERER  HETK -
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Statement of Financial Position of the Company
. /NGRS 8

Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting

period is set out below:

ARTRBEBROH HANRTIMT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Investments in subsidiaries RIBARIMIRE 322 322
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUR I B A R F B 267,535 238,081
Bank balances and cash WITHEB MRS 84,085 18,725
Other current assets HEMReEE 1,236 177
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A~ —FEI B /BB R B 3k 0E (1,359) (1,364)
Other current liabilities HimehaE (1,687) (645)
Net assets BEFE 350,132 255,296
Share capital & 7R 3,259 96,400
Reserves (Note) (W) 346,873 158,896
Total equity AR 350,132 255,296
Note: Hia -
Reserves G
Share
Share  Contributed Merger options Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BRiPRE ERER SUEEE  MERRIERE RitEi8 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FET F&T F&r FEr FEr
At 1 July 2013 R2013%F7A1H 170,123 - (28,079) - (11,713) 130,331
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - (13,334) (13,334)
Issue of ordinary shares BITEBR 37,920 - - - - 37,920
Transaction costs attributable to BT BREG
issue of new ordinary shares RGEA (1,918) - - - - (1,918)
Recognition of equity-settled R S EE AR D
share-based payments AEBNR - - - 5,897 - 5,897
Share options forfeited BRERU - - - (398) 398 -
At 30 June 2014 120146 A30H 206,125 - (28,079) 5,499 (24,649) 158,896
Profit for the year F 5 F - - - - 4,763 4,763
Issue of ordinary shares BITEER 23,709 - - - - 23,709
Transaction costs attributable to BT L BRENL 2
issue of new ordinary shares RHHEA (2,591) - - - - (2,591)
Recognition of equity-settled RS LEE AR D
share-based payments BEBRNR - - - 2,385 - 2385
Share options lapsed AR R 7L - - - (5,499) 5,499 -
Cancellation of share premium account & # % 17 % (B BF (227,243) 227,243 - - - -
Effects of Capital Reorganisation BABENTE - 159,711 - - - 159,711
At 30 June 2015 2015F6H30H - 386,954 (28,079) 2,385 (14,387) 346,873

At 30 June 2015, the Company had reserves of approximately
HK$372,567,000 available for distribution in accordance with the
Companies Law of Bermuda (2014: approximately HK$181,476,000

available for distribution in accordance with the Companies Law of the

Cayman Islands).

R201546 A30R » AR AR IR B 55 R FLAR) A (1 0 IR (oA
1#8#9372,567,000/8 7T (20144 - RIFFH S B D ENERIA]
IR H##)181,476,000/8 T ) -
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Five-Year Financial Summary
AFEMBHRE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and T AREEZT XM EERER B AR ENIK
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on FEMNETREELREERABEHRE-
the basis set out in the notes below.

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 30 June

B E6A30HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHEIT TET T FET TFET

Revenue A 208,439 235,805 248,348 318,654 268,614
Profit/(loss) before tax B ATRF, (EE) 34,078 (66,312) (24,676) 38,270 26,106
Income tax expenses Frigfif = (1,147) (195) (1,990) (6,298) (5,596)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHRA, (FE) 32,931 (66,507) (26,666) 31,972 20,510
Attributable to: AT AL

Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ =N 33,028 (66,517) (25,239) 31,157 20,538
Non-controlling interests JEE R (97) 10 (1,427) 815 (28)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SERERE

As at 30 June
®6HA30H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FETT FET FET FET FET

Total assets WEE 364,954 233,393 228,104 187,664 98,462
Total liabilities waE 28,337 21,200 30,018 24,995 95,018




Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended
30 June 2011 and 2012 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 30 June 2011 and 2012 have been extracted from
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2012. Such
summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had
been in existence throughout these financial years.

The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended
30 June 2013 and 2014 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 30 June 2013 and 2014 have been extracted from
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2014.

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2015 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at
30 June 2015 are those set out on pages 65 to 68 of this annual
report.

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

Annual Report 2015
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Five-Year Financial Summary
IFMBERE

frst -

(1)

REEHZE2011F %2012F6 A30H IEMEFE & FH
IRAFERAEEN2011F R20129F6 A30AMERE &
ERBENREAARBEE2012F6A30H LFER
Fi-BREMEN BN AEENRERBERZENH
BEE-—BEFEMRS-

REBBEFE20135F N 2014F6 A30H IEMEFE X FH
fRAEERAEER20135F R2014F6 A30EHEGREE
ERBENREFEARBEE2014F6A30H LFER
Filo

REFEHE2015F6 A30H IEFEMNGE EERAER
R2015%6 A30HMERE B E R B E N RFHE6S
£688

ERBEE Y MERE R XM B mR A — 8 -
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Particulars of Major Investment Property

FERBURZFER

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT BHERBZME

Location Existing use Lease term

wE HAHE A

Office No. 1303 on 13th Floor, Argyle Centre Phase |, Shops Medium-term lease
No. 688 Nathan Road, No. 65 Argyle Street, Mong Kok,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB LB BT UE6S8E I oh B & 655 JE & FHIEE

B 757 0 —Hi1312 1303 %
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